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B

“AGM”

“Articles of
Association”

“associate(s)”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“Chengdu Yueyihai”

“Chengdu Lease
Agreement”

“China” or “PRC”

“Company”

“Companies
Ordinance”

“Controlling
Shareholders”

“Corporate

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
in Beijing on Tuesday, 21 May 2019 at 2:00 p.m. or any
adjournment thereof

the articles of association of the Company, as amended
from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

the audit committee of the Board
the board of Directors of the Company

Chengdu Yueyihai Co., Ltd.* (& HEEHEBR L T),
a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 28
April 2014 and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

the lease agreement dated 6 July 2018 entered into
between Chengdu Yueyihai and Sichuan Haidilao in
connection with the lease of a parcel of land with the
properties and fixtures thereon by Sichuan Haidilao to
Chengdu Yueyihai

the People’s Republic of China and, except where the
context requires, references in this annual report to the
PRC or China exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (EE /&SI IEIRA R A
7l), an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 18 October 2013

the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules,
and unless the context otherwise requires, refers to Mr.
Zhang Yong, the non-executive Director, Ms. Shu Ping,
(the executive Director and spouse of Mr. Zhang Yong)
and ZYSP YIHAI Ltd

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14

Governance Code” to the Listing Rules

“Director(s)”

director(s) of the Company
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“Financial
Statements”

“Framework Sales
and Purchase
Agreements”

“Group”

“Haidilao
Customized
Products”

“Haidilao Group”

“Haidilao Retail
Products”

“Haidilao
Warehouse
Storage Service
Agreement”

“HK$”' HHKD” Or
“HK dollars”
and “cents”

the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers

collectively, the hot pot soup flavouring products sales
agreement dated 6 July 2018 entered into between Yihai
Shanghai and the Joint Venture in relation to the sales
of hot pot soup flavouring products from Yihai Shanghai
and its subsidiaries to the Joint Venture, and self-
serving small hot pot products sales agreement dated
6 July 2018 entered into between the Joint Venture and
Yihai Shanghai in relation to the sales of Small Hot Pot
Products by the Joint Venture to Yihai Shanghai and its
subsidiaries

the Company and its subsidiaries

the hot pot soup flavoring and Chinese-style compound
condiment products manufactured by the Group using
formulas owned by Haidilao Group for use in its hot pot
restaurants

Haidilao International Holding Ltd., whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6862), and its
subsidiaries

the retail hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce
and Chinese-style compound condiment products
manufactured by the Group using formulas the Group
owns for display and sale to consumers in Haidilao Group
hot pot restaurants, which are the same products as
those sold by the Group through independent third party
distributors

warehouse storage service agreement dated 24 June
2016, entered into between Sichuan Haidilao and Yihai
Shanghai, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed to provide warehousing
facilities and related services, including sorting process
management, stocktaking and other logistics services, to
the Group for products we sell to Haidilao Group

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong
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B

“Hong Kong”
“Investment

Cooperation
Agreement”

“Jingyuan
Investment”

“Joint Venture”

“Latest Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules’

“Macau”

“Master Sales
Agreement”

“Model Code”

“Nomination
Committee”

“Non-competition
Undertaking”

“Prospectus”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the investment cooperation agreement dated 11 July
2017 entered into between Yihai Shanghai and Xinpai
Shanghai in relation to the formation of the Joint Venture

Jianyang City Jingyuan Investment Co., Ltd.* (k5 /7 5%
EIREEMRDT]), a limited liability company incorporated
in the PRC on 13 March 2009, which is held as to 68%
by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Shu (the Controlling Shareholders),
32% by Mr. Shi Yonghong (the executive Director) and
his wife

Fuhai (Shanghai) Food Technology Co., Ltd.* (88 ( L&)
EmBARAF), a company incorporated in the PRC
and a 60% owned subsidiary of the Company

4 April 2019, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this annual report for the purpose of
ascertaining the information contained herein

13 July 2016, the date on which the Shares were listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the master sales agreement dated 24 June 2016,
entered into among Yihai Shanghai, Sichuan Haidilao
and Singapore Haidilao, each for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries, in relation to the supply of Haidilao
Customized Products and Haidilao Retail Products by the
Group to the Haidilao Group

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules

the nomination committee of the Board
the non-competition undertaking entered into between
the Company and the Controlling Shareholders on 25

June 2016

the prospectus being issued by the Company on 30 June
2016

[&%
[REAFHZE

[FHERE

[RERER
AI{TRE

[EmHE]

[ Em#RAl

2P |

[ HSHEw =

[R%E<r Al

MREEEE]

[ 35 F it |

[ARER]

|

15

HEEBRHTHE

EELBEFHRLERN
2017E7B 11 ARKYE
BRRTINRESER

=3
7

BETHEREARAD
B — X R2009%F3A
13AEHERINER
BN ARBAER
SELLBRRR)EE
68% * HEKELE (BT
EE)RHEZSTEERY%

EE(LE) RRBEAR
DA —REPERIN
DE ARDEERC0%
RENHEL R

2019545840 BIAE
BADARERTRES
TENNREERTTH
Elﬁ

20165 7R 138 » RHR
BRFERLETH A

BERBARSMERAE
FHEHRA

HERMRRITHE

A A2016F68248H
MEEE HEsLE -
B EB R IEER
(BREREAGRAREN
BARHAEEREEE
EEHESESERERR
BESZEERME L

LR AR A L
BRTAESEORSFRS
HRREF A

EERBETHNREZESR
AAREERBFRN 2016
FoABATINTHT
R

AATR2016E6A30R
HEBMRRER



“Remuneration
Committee”

“Renminbi” or “RMB”

“RSU”

“RSU Scheme”

“Second
Supplemental
Master Sales
Agreement”

“SEQ”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shuhai Sales
Agreement”

“Shuhai Supply
Chain”

“Shuhai Warehouse
Storage Service
Agreement”

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

the restricted share units granted to RSU participants
pursuant to the RSU Scheme

the RSU scheme approved and adopted by the Company
on 24 February 2016 for the grant of RSUs to RSU
participants, a summary of the principal terms of which is
set forth in the section headed “Appendix IV—Statutory
and General Information—D. RSU Scheme” of the
Prospectus

the second supplemental master sales agreement dated
22 March 2018 entered into between Singapore Haidilao
and Yihai Shanghai to revise certain terms of the Master
Sales Agreement

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with
nominal value of US$0.00001 each

shareholder(s) of the Company

the sales agreement dated 6 July 2018 entered into
between Yihai Shanghai and Shuhai Supply Chain in
relation to the sale of hot pot soup flavoring products,
hot pot dipping sauce products and other compound
condiment products by the Group to Shuhai Supply
Chain Group

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.*
(B8t R)HESEEEEREELR), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 3 June 2014 and
is indirectly held as to approximately 52.17% by the
controlling shareholders, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping, and their associate and 24.65% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong and his wife

the warehouse storage service agreement dated 6 July
2018 entered into between Yihai Shanghai and Shuhai
Supply Chain in relation to the provision of warehousing
facilities and related services by Shuhai Supply Chain
Group to the Group
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“Sichuan Haidilao”

“Sichuan Haidilao
Group”

“Singapore Haidilao”

“Small Hot Pot
Products”

“Stock Exchange’

“subsidiary” or
“subsidiaries”

“Supplemental
Master Sales
Agreement”

“Xinpai Shanghai”

“Yihai (China)”

Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.*
(W)IIERBERBRMERAT), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC on 25 June
2009, or its predecessor, Sichuan Jianyang Haidilao
Catering Co., Ltd.* (MU)I| &G T EREEMBREE D
7l), which was incorporated in the PRC on 16 April 2001.
Sichuan Haidilao is directly held as to approximately
33.5% by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (Controlling
Shareholders), 50% by Jingyuan Investment and 16% by
Mr. Shi Yonghong (the executive Director) and his wife

Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries

HAI DI LAO HOLDING PTE. LTD., a private company
limited by shares incorporated in Singapore and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haidilao International Holding
Ltd. (stock code: 6862)

the self-serving small hot pot products manufactured and
sold by the Joint Venture

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

the supplemental master sales agreement dated 18
September 2017 entered into between Sichuan Haidilao,
Singapore Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, to regulate the
sale of Small Hot Pot Products by the Group to the
Haidilao Group

Xinpai (Shanghai) Catering Management Co., Ltd.* (7
K(EE)BREE B R 2 F), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability and is controlled as to
approximately 62.70% by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu
Ping, and 29.7% by Mr. Shi Yonghong (the executive
Director) and his wife

Yihai (China) Food Co., Limited (BB (FE) B M ER A
7l), a company with limited liability incorporated in Hong
Kong on 6 December 2013 and an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company
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“Yihai Shanghai” Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. (EB8#(LEB) EMBER A
7]), a foreign investment enterprise established in the
PRC on 1 December 2014 and an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

“Youdingyou” Beijing Youdingyou Catering Co., Ltd.* (1t 518 R E & &R
3EBR 2 7)), (formerly known as BeijingYoudingyou Catering
Management Co., Ltd.*). a company with limited liability
incorporated in the PRC on 30 July 2012, which is indirectly
held as to approximately 31.76% by Mr. Zheng Yong and
Ms. Shu Ping, 15.71% by Mr. Shi Yonghong and his wife and
0.86% by Mr. Gou Yiqun®ete

“Youdingyou Sales  the sales agreement dated 24 June 2016 and entered
Agreement” into between Youdingyou and Yihai Shanghai, each for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries, pursuant to which
we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring products, hot pot
dipping sauce products and other compound condiment
products to Youdingyou for use at spicy mixed stew

restaurants it operates

“ZYSP YIHAI Ltd” a business company with limited liability incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 10 October 2013, one of the
Controlling Shareholders

“US dollars”, “USD”  United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United
or “US$” States

“%” percentage

Note:  Mr. Gou Yiqun has resigned from the post of non-executive Director
with effect from 21 March 2018.
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman) NoteV
Ms. Dang Chunxiang ®ete

Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Guo Qiang®ete?

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yong
Mr. Pan Dj (Nete3)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yau Ka Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Qian Mingxing MNete4
Ms. Ye Shujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Ye Shujun (Chairman)
Ms. Shu Ping
Mr. Qian Mingxing

Note 1: Mr. Shi Yonghong has been re-designated as an executive Director
from the post of a non-executive Director and has been appointed
as the chief executive officer and resigned from being a member of
the audit committee with effect from 9 December 2018. Ms. Dang
Chunxiang has been re-designated to vice president from the post of
chief executive officer with effect from 9 December 2018.

Note 2: Mr. Guo Qiang has been appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 26 March 2019.

Note 3: Mr. Pan Di has resigned from the post of non-executive Director with
effect from 26 March 2019.

Note 4: Mr. Qian Mingxing has been appointed as a member of the audit
committee with effect from 9 December 2018.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Ms. Chan Yin Wah ®eted)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Ms. Chan Yin Wah ®ete9

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISER

Davis Polk & Wardwell

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1 - 1205 Cayman Islands

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

1st and 2nd Floors, Building 6

Songlei Office Building

Heng Song Yuan

Middle Road of South 3rd Ring Road

Fengtai District

Beijing, PRC

Note 5: Ms. Chan Yin Wah has been appointed as the joint company secretary
and the authorized representative with effect from 31 May 2018. Mr.

Wong Yat Tung has resigned as the joint company secretary and the
authorized representative with effect from 31 May 2018.
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Sunlight Tower
No. 248 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai,

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

T: +86-10-57423508
E: tzzgx@yihchina.com

WEBSITE

www.yihchina.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1579

FE 5B PR IR B PR A & Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE HHRZEEEENE
INCOME
(RMB’ 000) (AR®FT)
Twelve months ended 31 December
BZ12A31HIL12/EB
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 2017 & 2016 & 2015 2014 £
Revenue ON 2,681,373 1,646,221 1,088,014 847,339 498,231
Gross Profit E7 1,038,897 611,806 416,942 294,233 119,478
Profit before income tax BRETEEALEA 730,501 369,080 255,089 166,920 57,156
Profit for the period HRER 547,904 261,090 186,720 124,547 42510
Profit attributable to: PTATEGZEWAZEE
- Owners of the Company - RARHEEA 517,793 260,670 186,720 124,547 42,510
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL HHHZE S IERR R
POSITION
(RMB’ 000) (ARMFT)
Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12A318L12(8A
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 & 2017 & 2016 £ 2015 % 2014 £
Non-current assets FRBEERE 580,875 288,071 165,874 136,089 153,384
Current assets RBEELE 1,881,164 1518620 1,257,792 453,275 132,253
Total Asset EELE 2,462,039 1,806,691 1,423,666 589,364 285,637
Equity attributable to RDRRAE NEL#ES
owners of the company 2,005,190 1,501,389 1,266,205 141,924 45,738
Total Equity BB 2,039,721 1,505,809 1,266,205 141,924 45,738
Non-current liabilities FRBEERaE = — — 186,667 —
Current liabilities FEEEELE 422,381 300,882 157,461 260,773 239,899
Total liabilities B8 422,381 300,882 157,461 447,440 239,899
Total equity and liabilities REaREELR 2,462,039 1,806,691 1,423,666 589,364 285,637

1
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In 2018, the economy of China was reasonably on track, being
generally stable whilst developing continuously and progressing
steadily. The basic role of product consumption was further
strengthened. The growth trend in the catering industry continued with
optimism which made outstanding contributions to economic growth
and social development.

With the continuous growth of the catering industry and the continuous
upgrade of the consumption trend, the compound condiment market,
especially the hot pot condiment market in China, also showed a
strong growth trend. As the largest mid/high-end hot pot condiment
manufacturer in China, the Group continued to leverage on its strong
brand, accurate market sensitivity, diversified product portfolio,
nationwide sales network, unique personnel incentives mechanism and
continuously increasing supply capabilities, to maintain its position as a
leader in the mid/high-end hot pot condiment industry.
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In 2018, the Group’s major businesses focused on actively developing
the multi-brand strategy, continuously expanding product portfolio,
continuing to deepen its national sales network, and innovate personnel
incentives, and constantly complementing supply capabilities.

The Group adhered to the mission of “Easy & Tasty” and actively
adopted the multi-brand operation strategy. During the year, we created
a number of original brands adopting the product characteristics from
different brands, to meet the individual needs of different consumers.

Under the multi-brand strategy, the Group continued to expand and
optimize its product portfolio. In addition to strengthening our leading
position in the existing flagship products (hot pot condiment, Chinese-
style compound condiment and convenient ready-to-eat food products)
markets, we developed and launched various new products during
the year, including crawfish condiments in a variety of flavors, self-
serving small hot pot products and ready-to-eat sauce products. In
2018, for operation management, the Group introduced the project-
based system for products, to promote employees with new product
ideas and coordination and management capabilities as project
managers and let them lead the implementation and development of
such projects. Such project managers developed and promoted new
products by integrating internal and external advantages and resources
and leveraging on the strong R&D platform and channel support of the
Company.
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In 2018, the Group continued to deepen its national sales network,
improve the sales efficiency of third-party retail channels, strengthen
online marketing efforts, and accelerate the expansion of third-party
catering customers. As of 31 December 2018, our distributors covered
31 provincial areas in China, and the regions of Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan, as well as 42 overseas countries and regions. For the year
of 2018, the Group’s revenue generated by sales to distributors was
RMB1,263.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 115.2%.
The Group’s online channels continued to be focused on enhancing
brand communication and consumer experience. As of 31 December
2018, online sales revenue increased 105.2 % from RMB105.9 million
in 2017 to RMB217.4 million.

In 2018, in addition to the introduction of innovative project-based
system for products, the Group also launched a “partner” incentive
mechanism in the sales system. The introduction of the two innovative
incentive mechanisms enabled the Group to improve its product
development success rate, enrich new product stocks and improve
market penetration rate in a faster, wider and deeper way.

In 2018, the Group continued to expand its production capabilities and
enhance its supply capabilities in accordance with the growing market
demand and its strategic development plan. At the beginning of 2018,
the first phase of the plant in Maanshan, Anhui Province was put into
operation. During 2018, the Group commenced the construction of the
second phase of the new production base in Maanshan Anhui Province.
Moreover, at the end of the year, the Group basically completed the
construction of the first phase of the plant in Bazhou, Hebei Province. It
is expected that the construction and commencement of production of
the new plants will ease the pressure on production capacity utilization
rate brought by the rapid development of the Group’s business. The
Group will also increase its overall production efficiency and lower
the labor cost by introducing fully automated production lines to the
new production bases. Meanwhile, the new plants can also provide
guarantee for the launch of new product types in future.
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In 2018, the Group maintained steady growth in its results. The Group
recorded a sales revenue of RMB2,681.4 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 62.9%; and a net profit of RMB547.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 109.9%. The Group’s gross
profit increased from RMB611.8 million in 2017 to RMB1,038.9 million
in 2018, and the gross profit margin increased from 37.2% in 2017 to
38.7% in 2018.

Looking forward to 2019, with the sustainable and healthy development
of China’s economy, the gradual stimulation of the vitality of the
catering industry market, and the continuous upgrading of the
consumption trends, the Group will continue to uphold its corporate
mission of “Easy & Tasty”, focusing on product innovation, distribution
channel moving closer to consumer and management efficiency
improvement. The Group will deploy plant constructions according to
the needs of the Company, further stabilize our leadership in the mid/
high-end hot pot condiment and Chinese-style compound condiment
products markets.

First, in terms of our brands and products, we will continue to
strengthen our brand and implement the multi-brand strategy.
Meanwhile, we will continue to upgrade and improve existing products,
expand and supplement the offerings of our existing products, and
develop more diversified and differentiated new products in pace with
the market trend, to meet and guide market demands.

Secondly, in terms of sales network construction, we will further
deepen channel construction and elevate channel penetration rate. On
the basis of continuous expansion of existing third-party retail channels,
we will expand product offerings while developing new retail channels
suitable for different categories of products. We will also expand new
sales channels and enrich the ways by which our existing products can
be consumed. Moreover, we will continue to deepen and explore the
sales staff management model and product innovation model.

Third, in terms of supply capabilities, we will continue to build new
production bases, supplement and expand existing production
capabilities, and enhance our supply capabilities.

The Group will collaborate with all of our colleagues to continue our
progression and innovation, to capture market opportunities and
respond promptly to market trends, so as to provide higher-quality
services to consumers, thereby actively creating more value for
Shareholders.
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2018 PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2018, the national economy was stable in general. The pace of
the upgrading in the consumption structure was accelerated, the
momentum of consumption growth continued to strengthen, and the
percentage of online retail sales increased remarkably. During the year,
the catering market recorded a steady growth, and the overall trend of
the condiment industry was upward and optimistic.

In 2018, the Group continued to deepen the development of operating
strategies for various business segments. In relation to branding, the
Group introduced a variety of original sub-brands for the first time
during the year, and continuously expanded its business boundaries
by classifying product categories with brands. In terms of channels,
in addition to deeper penetration in low-tier market segments in the
regions, the Group also developed and innovated channels according
to the different characteristics of the respective product categories.
Together with the effective contribution to the Group’s performance by
internal sales personnel and the new product development incentive
system launched at the beginning of the year, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB2,681.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing a year-on-year increase of 62.9%; net profit amounted to
RMB547.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 109.9%.

For sales to distributors, the Group continued to develop lower-tier
channels and innovations, through effective incentives for internal
sales staff, and the close cooperation with distributors, effective
enhancement was achieved in the number of distributors, the density
of points of sale and the scope of city coverage. As of 31 December
2018, the Group’s distributors had covered over a total of 31 provincial
regions in China, the regions of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, as well
as 42 overseas countries and regions.

For sales through e-commerce, the self-operated online flagship
store was a major platform for brand dissemination, pilot sales of
new products and display of products. Through various types of
featured and thematic marketing and customer service activities, the
Group’s brand awareness among consumers and brand reputation
were enhanced. In 2018, the Group continued to develop third-party
e-commerce channels with dedicated efforts. Apart from its self-
operated flagship store, the Group also sold its products actively
through other prominent online sales platforms with abundant traffic
such as Tmall.com supermarket and JD.com self-operated stores, the
overall online sales performance was encouraging. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the amount of online sales of the Group increased
by 105.2% year-on-year from RMB105.9 million in 2017 to RMB217.4
million.
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In terms of products, the Group further expanded the product
categories in 2018. Based on the three main categories of the existing
key products, namely, hot pot condiments, Chinese-style compound
condiment products and convenient ready-to-eat products, the Group
actively developed new product categories. Motivated by the unique
“project-based system for products”, the Group developed 16 new
products during the year, including different flavorings of crawfish
condiments, different types of self-serving small hot pot products and
ready-to-eat sauces, all of which received favorable market feedback.
For sales of products to related parties, by combining with the demand
for personalized soup-base condiments under “Thousand People
Thousand Flavors” series in the restaurants of Haidilao Group, the
Group has researched, developed and supplied several types of basic-
version hot pot soup bases under the series of “Thousand People
Thousand Flavors” suitable for use of the automatic hot pot soup-base
mixing machine. Meanwhile, the Group continued to research, develop
and innovate soup bases with various special flavors for different
localities and successfully launched the first soup base of foreign style
series in the restaurants of Haidilao Group. In future, the Group will
launch more flavors under this thematic series.

Regarding staff incentives, the Group actively innovated an incentive
system in line with its own features in 2018, including the project-based
system for new products and partner incentive mechanism. Under the
incentives of these two mechanisms, remarkable performance was
achieved in the breakthrough of product innovation boundaries and
deepening the management for lower-tier channel penetration.

On production capacities, the Group continued to expand production
capacities in 2018 based on the market demand and its own
development needs. Not only the new plant located in Maanshan
commenced operation at the beginning of the year, the construction
project for the Phase Il new production base at Maanshan also started
during the year, and the plant construction for Phase | Factory at
Bazhou, Hebei, was basically completed by the end of 2018. It is
expected that the construction and commencement of production of
the new plants will ease the pressure on production capacity caused
by the rapid development of the Group’s business. The Group will also
increase its overall production efficiency and lower the labor cost by
introducing fully automated production lines to the new production
bases. Apart from that, in the future, with the launch of new types of
products, the new plants can also satisfy the demand for the Group to
introduce the corresponding new types of production lines.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Throughout the year of 2018, the national economy of China was
reasonably on track, and being generally stable whilst developing
continuously and progressing steadily. As the supply-side structural
reform was further implemented, the trend of economic transformation
and upgrading continued. Against the background of steady growth in
the catering industry and retail sales, the growth trend of the condiment
industry continued with optimism. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group recorded revenue of RMB2,681.4 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 62.9%; net profit amounted to RMB547.9
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 109.9%.

Sales Channels

The Group not only provides hot pot condiment products to the
Haidilao Group, one of our related parties, it also acts as a solution
provider of cooking flavorings for Chinese family cooking customers,
catering service providers and food industry companies, while selling
hot pot condiments, Chinese style compound condiments and
convenient ready-to-eat food product through third party channels like
distributors, e-commence and catering clients.

In 2018, enhancing the sales capabilities of third-party retail channels
remained one of the key strategies of the Group. In addition to the
steady growth in the number of distributors and the further coverage
of low-tier cities, the internal sales staff of the Group being “partners”
were granted more direct incentives and sufficient authorization to
adopt measures with innovative ideas that were consistent with local
conditions in developing new channels and enhancing sales efficiency
of individual points of sales such that sales efficiency of terminal points
of sales was enhanced. Moreover, we strictly controlled inventories and
adopted screening methods in the selection of distributors to manage
the healthy expansion of channels.

During the year, the Group started to implement the “partnership”
incentive system to replace the previous appraisal method of achieving
sales target ratio. The result performance of each sales staff will be
linked to the operating profit of the business unit managed by him/her,
and they will be given sufficient authorization on the right and ways to
use channel fees. With this strategy, the passion to work of sales staff
was greatly encouraged, the growth in sales amount and utilization
efficiency of fees were notably enhanced.
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The convenient ready-to-eat food products launched by us in 2017
also expanded from online to offline channels during the first half of
2018. In addition to replenishing inventories through the increasingly
mature existing condiment sales channels, we also focused on the
convenient ready-to-eat characteristics of self-serving products to
open new channels at convenience stores, highway service stations
and new retail outlets which were not previously available for various
condiments.

E-commerce channels remained one of the key focus points for
development of the Group’s business segments. In 2018, with
continuous launches of new products and elimination of old products,
the online flagship store acted as a major platform for pilot sales of new
products, which was helpful for us to collect feedback from consumers
and make timely adjustment to the positioning and ingredients of
new products. Meanwhile, the self-operated flagship store, being an
important brand dissemination and consumer experience platform,
aimed to increase brand awareness among consumers and enhance
brand reputation thus establishing the industry status of an online
platform brand. In optimizing the shopping experience of consumers,
the Group established not just a number of e-commerce logistic
branch warehouses to enhance the timeliness of goods collection by
consumers in various regions, but also conducted diversified tests
on the scope of membership services at the self-operated flagship
store to enhance the frequency of visits and satisfaction of consumers
through innovation of gifts, eating trials of new products, redemption
of reward points and other methods. For online marketing, the Group
formulated targeted marketing campaigns based on different festivals
and promotional events, sound performance was recorded during key
promotional periods such as New Year Goods Festival, “Foodaholic
Festival”, November 11, Hot Pot Festival, etc. In 2018, according to the
relevant data from Taobao.com and Tmall.com, the amounts of sales of
self-serving small hot pots products and hot pot soup flavorings under
the Haidilao brand were ranked top of that sub-category respectively.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had 6 flagship stores
on e-commerce platforms such as Tmall.com and JD.com. The Group’s
sales revenue from e-commerce channels in 2018 was RMB217.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 105.2%.
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Benefited from providing services to Haidilao Group and its associated
companies over the years, the Group accumulated extensive
experience in the catering service industry in China. The Group
continued to provide customized and standard packaged catering
products to third-party catering customers during the year. As at
31 December 2018, we had 94 customized catering customers. For
sales of standard packaged catering products, the Group continued
to focus on developing products in line with demand of the catering
market, expanding the product portfolio for catering products and
increasing the number of catering distributors, and promoting our
brand and products through various forms of activities such as eating
trials and exhibitions. For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue
from third-party customized catering clients reached RMB21.6 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.8% as compared to 2017.

For sales to related parties (referring to the Haidilao Group and its
associated companies), with the background of the steady growth in
the catering industry and hot pot catering consumption market, the
Haidilao Group recorded not only stable growth in same store revenue
but also rapid growth in the number of stores in its store expansion for
this year. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
of sales to related parties was RMB1,176.1 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 28.4% as compared to 2017.

Products

The strategy of product research and development for this year was
changed due to the introduction of a number of sub-brands. On the
basis of multi-brand strategy, the Group determined the positioning of
products under each sub-brand in detail and started to break through
the existing boundaries of product categories to develop more new
product categories suitable for the market trend. Meanwhile, we had
been improving the recipes and upgrading the packaging for existing
core products continuously to further reinforce their market leading
position.

SERZFEFRESREEER BB L
A AEBBRTHHEBHRRBETE
NWEELER AFEFEAKEEFEAE=
FEREFRUHEHFHREE(LLEREE
Mo BE2018F 1283181 B
EEFIBHMEF MR - TIEE/BE
ERHEFHE  AEEFEFHONER
HEBUTHSERNER  BEXERE
mE . WIEMESKHEEHE  WER
ETSERCRRETBNENERER
EREMR - BE2018F 12831 A LLE
B ZF=REFEREFVRANEARY
216 BB B2017F 2 FELL T ®
7.8% °

FEBAHEIEGEREREEERE
BEAT)  EPEBESITERNIBER
HEMBRBSERNEST  AFESR
EHEBEMEER B ERESRE
WANBEER  FEEMEHERRL
RBERIZRE - HIE2018F 1231 H
IHFE . AEEOBRBELTNHEERAR
ARBA7T61EE T B2017E R L
BE28.4% -

Em

AEEERAEREASIATZEFR
BMAEMRNE  EZmEBREET
RE B 18 F o b P R B Y ma E {2
#EITHREMAD - WK BREAMEE
R HBRESHETSBENH@E-
B EE - R EANROERET
TEHNEIARMNBEAR  E—FR
B8OV i Y T35 SR S A ©



In 2018, in order to fully consolidate internal and external resources,
strongly develop products in line with customer and market needs,
enhance development efficiency and the success rate of new products,
and further activate the motivations of staff, the Group has introduced
the project-based system for product innovation. Under this incentive
system, the responsible person of the project will be the person who
advocates the creative idea of the new product and possesses the
capabilities of coordination and management. He will lead the team
to complete the project throughout the whole process from inception
to market launch. By relying on the Group’s strong research and
development platform and channels to support the development and
sales of new products, the project team will receive the corresponding
incentive rewards upon realization of profit after the product is launched
on the market. The implementation of this strategy has enhanced the
development efficiency of new products and the motivation of staff in
market exploration.

For the portfolio of retail products, 3 new flavors of crawfish condiments
launched in the first half of 2018 had received overwhelming market
response. This product series not only grasped the seasonality and
regional demand of crawfish products, but also effectively alleviated
the changes in seasonal sales of retail hot pot soup products. During
the year, the Group conducted the ingredients and packaging of
tomato-flavored hot pot soup flavorings and hot pot dipping sauces
of all flavors. Also, due to positive market feedback on tomato
flavors, several tomato-flavored hot pot soup flavorings and Chinese-
style compound condiments were developed during the year. In
the convenient ready-to-eat category, the Group conducted many
optimizations and upgrades on the packaging and condiments of all
self-serving small hot pot products during the year, and developed
many self-serving products in many new flavors and forms. Ready-to-
eat sauce, being our brand new product category, went through many
pilot sales through a number of online and offline channels. While the
ingredients and packaging were upgraded according to feedback of
consumers, we kept on conducting research and development actively
for new flavors with special local tastes and creative elements.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Company had new additions of a total
of 5 Chinese-style compound condiment products, 3 hot pot soup
flavoring products, 5 self-serving small hot pot products, 3 ready-to-
eat sauce products and 12 standardized catering pack products. As at
31 December 2018, the Company had a total of 52 hot pot condiment
products, 19 Chinese-style compound condiment products (including 3
ready-to-eat sauce), 7 convenient ready-to-eat food products.

The table below sets forth the data on the Group’s revenue, sales
volume and average selling price by product categories and distribution
channels for the periods as indicated:

B Z2018F 128310 » A a H FHiE
TO5RPREESHARBER  SHMABER
REM SHEMB/NAIBER  3FED
REEMR12REELEREER - &
Z2018F 12831 H » AARHEHS2
RNBARRE R - 19X PN ES Tk
PRERBEIRNRE)  TRAHEER

Em e

TREIAFFRPEAREBIZRERER
MEHERBEDHKRA - HERFIIE
BRI -

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20176
Average Average
Selling Selling
Sales  Price per Kg Sales  Price per Kg
Revenue Volume =7 Revenue Volume I
KA HE THER KA 2 HIEE
(RMB’000) (Tons) (RMB) (RMB’000) (Tons) (RMB)
(AR#FT) (W) (AR#T) (AR¥TR) () (AR¥7)
Hot pot condiment KSR
Third parties B=H 812,277 28,153 289 523,845 19,955 26.3
Related parties k) 1,143,243 43,772 26.1 871,563 31,914 213
Subtotal Nt 1,955,520 71,925 21.2 1,395,408 51,869 26.9
Chinese-style compound condiment? mREATKRE @
Third parties B=Fh 228,731 8,851 25.8 142,860 6,007 238
Related parties )yl 26,784 963 218 43413 1,908 22.8
Subtotal gt 255,515 9,814 26.0 186,273 7,915 235
Convenient ready-to-eat FEER®
food products®
Third parties B=Fh 444,569 10,749 414 61,341 1,359 451
Related parties Ly 4,704 89 529 104 2 52.0
Subtotal Pt 449,273 10,838 45 61,445 1,361 451
Others® Hipw 21,065 2,985 71 3,095 872 35
Total s 2,681,373 95,562 28.1 1,646,221 62,017 26.3




Notes:

(1)  Mainly including the sales of products in 2018 such as hot pot soup
flavoring and hot pot dipping sauce

(2) Mainly including the sales of products in 2018 such as Chinese-style
compound condiment and ready-to-eat sauce

(3)  Mainly including the sales of products in 2018 such as self-serving small
hot pot

(4)  Mainly including the sales of certain products in 2018 such as golden
popcorn and snail rice noodle

The table below sets forth the revenue in absolute terms and the
percentage in total revenue of the Company, by product categories, in
the periods as indicated:

EEENWED

(1) EEEE2018FHENNBERRKX
PENESER

@ FEBE2018FHEMNFRNESHAK
RRANEEER

B EEEES2018FHEMNBMEN AL
£EMR

@ EZEBFE018FHENETER W
FEEFKE - BEHE

TREI BB EERERER S

DHRANBEERERRATRANE
oLE

For the year ended 31 December

BE12ANALEE

2018 2017
20184 20175

Revenue % of Revenue % of

RMB’ 000 revenue RMB’ 000 revenue

L ON TN ON HEWA

AREFT BRlE  ARETR Btk

Revenue from hot pot condiment K EBFABRRIA 1,955,520 72.9% 1,395,408 84.7%
Revenue from Chinese-style FHEERREERA

compound condiment 255,515 9.5% 186,273 11.3%

Revenue from convenient FERRERBA

ready-to-eat food 449,273 16.8% 61,445 3.7%

Other revenue HeWA 21,065 0.8% 3,095 0.3%

Total revenue FAI PN 2,681,373 100.0% 1,646,221 100.0%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the three major product
categories of the Group, including hot pot condiments, Chinese-style
compound condiments and convenient ready-to-eat food products,
realized faster growth when compared with the corresponding period in
2017. As at 31 December 2018, the Company had new additions of a
total of 5 Chinese-style compound condiment products, 3 hot pot soup
flavoring products, 5 self-serving small hot pot products, 3 ready-to-eat
sauce products and 12 standardized catering pack products. As at 31
December 2018, the Company had a total of 52 hot pot condiments, 19
Chinese-style compound condiments (including 3 ready-to-eat sauce)
and 7 convenient ready-to-eat food products.

HZE2018F12A31ALEE  A&EH
W=HFTEER:: ABAKE - PRE
ERAKRBERAFERER > B2017FEH
HEEBREER - H/£2018F 12 A 31
B AQXBHFETSHPRNES K
BER SHRABERER 5HKEME
NRBER SHEBEBERRI1I2FE
EEBEREER - BE2018F 12 831
B AQBHEE2RXNBAKEE
B 1I9ORFAREESARBER(EEIXK
BRE) RIRXAHERRER °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BA %% 51 A

Revenue LON

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the Group  REZ2018F12A31HILEFER » &
increased by 62.9% from RMB1,646.2 million for the year ended 31 EENWRABABE2017F12A318 1
December 2017 to RMB2,681.4 million for the same period in 2018. FENARY1,646.2 BB TIEMN62.9%

Z2018FFENARK2,68148ETT °

Revenue by product R ERE TR

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12RA31 HLEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
% of revenue % of revenue
Revenue from hot pot Revenue  from hot pot
(RMB’000) condiment (RMB’000)  condiment
L ONIREPE 3 OIS EEl e

(AR%T) HWABESE (AREFTRT) WBWABDHR

Revenue from hot pot condiment PEEEIIS T ON

Revenue from third parties REFE=HKRA 812,277 41.5% 523,845 37.5%
Revenue from related parties REBHHRA 1,143,243 58.5% 871,563 62.5%
Total revenue from hot pot condiment X S8 380k L & @A 1,955,520 100.0% 1,395,408 100.0%

Revenue from hot pot condiment products increased by 40.1% NIBFARBERFFEBIWABREZE2017
from RMB1,395.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to F12A31HILEFEMNMARY1,39548
RMB1,955.5 million for the same period in 2018, accounting for 72.9% BT M401% Z2018ERFHMW AR
of the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. Of these, revenue 195558 B T’ 1§ 8 £2018%F 12
from sales of hot pot condiment products to related parties increased B31BLEFEWANT29% - HAf
by 31.2%, while revenue from sales of hot pot condiment products to MEAETHEHENBFAKEERIRAEZE
third parties increased by 55.1%. The increase in revenue from sales 312% > ME=ZFEENBARBER
of hot pot condiment products to related parties was mainly due to MARES5.1% - MEE S HEENIET
the effects of steady growth in the same store revenue of Haidilao HKRERWRAERETESZSEREER
Group and an increase in the number of restaurants. With further EISEFE %;F_i*ﬁ BEMEHEER

refined management of third-party distributor channels by the Group EHHETE - BEEAREBE2018FLHE

in 2018, innovation of the incentive mechanism for internal sales staff, CSHEEEREEEENE—S R K
development of lower-tier sales regions, effective innovation of channel IREHE A %;‘gﬂgj}if&%] el tHEREE
marketing, enhancement in efficiency of terminal points of sales, and BTN RELHENEXRAEH  UEK
the launching of new products, continuous rapid growth was recorded I E e ytmﬁ)ﬁ BINEHFER
in third-party sales. ML E=FHEERFEZESHRR

HIBE o
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For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
% of % of
Chinese- Chinese-
style style
compound compound
condiment condiment
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
(RMB’000) faH=X#4&  (RMB'000) fHES
[ O 17 3 T 9N WA FERRBHIA
(AR#F 1) Botk (ARETT) Bot
Revenue from Chinese-style F IR AR BRI
compound condiment
Revenue from third parties RKEE=FHWA 228,731 89.5% 142,860 76.7%
Revenue from related parties RE R WA 26,784 10.5% 43,413 23.3%
Total revenue from Chinese-style 8 SRR BRI
compound condiment 255,515 100.0% 186,272 100.0%

Revenue from Chinese-style compound condiments increased by
37.2% from RMB186.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
RMB255.5 million for the same period in 2018, accounting for 9.5% of
the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. Of these, revenue
from sales of Chinese-style compound condiment products to related
parties decreased by 38.3%, while revenue from sales of Chinese-style
compound condiment products to third parties increased by 60.1%.
In respect of sales to related parties, the Group supplied products and
services to certain catering customers in the Shuhai (Beijing) Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd. on continuous basis. During the year, the
Group continued to develop and improve existing individual products
with strong performance in the third-party business of Chinese-style
compound condiment products, researching and developing new
products to satisfy the trend of market tastes, and coordinating various
types of marketing activities with consistent product characteristics
and market positioning, so that product innovative properties were
maintained while continuous growth in sales amount was recorded.

PFRESAKRBAMBRABEZE2017
F12B31BILFEMNMARY186.3H
BT M3T2% E2018EEMN AR
25558 B 7t 1h & £2018F 12 A 31
BIEEEWANISY% - Hh » B
HERXES AR UL T#38.3% -
BEZAEERFNESAKRSBAER
60.1% - B HEE T H  AEEF
BB (LR)HEEEEERETELD
AMNBLEREFRHERNRE - &
FEEEEF=AFFPRNESAKRDER
FH BEBENRRERBER M
BEAEMBEORBENTER  UEE
BERECERBERTSEMNE T
B EREFERAIFENEEREIEE
HEREER -
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Twelve months ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALEE

2018 2017
20184 20175
% of revenue % of revenue
from from
convenient convenient
ready-to-eat ready-to-eat
Revenue food Revenue food
(RMB’000) EHE (RMB’000) EAE
[N ERWA ON ERWA
(AR#F ) Botk (AR#ET) BAL
Revenue from convenient FEERESBAN
ready-to-eat food
Revenue from third parties REE=FWA 444,569 99.0% 61,341 99.8%
Revenue from related parties REBEHHRA 4,704 1.0% 104 0.2%
Total revenue from convenient FEREBEREBAN
ready-to-eat food 449,273 100.0% 61,445 100.0%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group continued to
upgrade the formula and optimize the flavoring of self-serving small hot
pot products, and a number of new self-serving products in different
flavorings and forms were launched in 2018. Benefited from the fast
expansion of distributors’ offline channels and new channels such
as convenience stores and retail, along with featured promotional
activities and sales promotion plans during holiday seasons, revenue
from convenient ready-to-eat food products, primarily consisting of
self-serving small hot pot products, increased substantially as a result.
Revenue from convenient ready-to-eat food products increased by
631.2% from RMB61.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
RMB449.3 million for the same period in 2018, accounting for 16.8% of
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.

HZE2018F12B31BLLFE ZEH
BESEMADNIBERETR S AR
MOBKE > TR2018FEHWHT ZHE
BORERERNNEMBER  SERE
HRESTREBURMNERE - FTZE
EHRENRRER  UEESAEHEE
M EEENMET B RS FRME
PRBAETEERNSERREERW
AEESETEAEE - FEERERME
WABREZE2017F12831BILEFEW
AR¥61.48 BT MN631.2% 22018
FEEMNARYIOIFET - LHEZE
201812 A31 HIEFEW AR 16.8% °



Revenue by distribution network

EEENWED

BREHARE D HBA

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
(RMB’000) revenue (RMB’000) revenue
L ON EARITN ON EECTON
(AR#T ) Botk (AR#Tr) Ot
Related party customers MEAER
Haidilao Group and its affiliates BESEBRAKENR 1,176,095 43.9% 915,911 55.6%
Third party customers E=AER
Distributors FSEeh] 1,263,248 47.1% 587,076 35.7%
E-commerce B 217,398 8.1% 105,942 6.4%
Others Hit
Third party catering enterprises F=HEMLE 21,507 0.8% 23,434 1.4%
One-off sales activities —REHETE 3,035 0.1% 13,858 0.9%
Total revenue FAI PN 2,681,373 100.0% 1,646,221 100.0%

With continuous stable growth and consumption upgrade in the hot
pot catering industry in China, the sales amount of Haidilao catering
business of the Company continued to record a stable growth in
2018. Benefited from rapid growth in the number of Haidilao Group
restaurants, the Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,176.1 million
in the sales to related parties (mainly referring to sales to the Haidilao
Group) for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a year-on-

year increase of 28.4%.

BEPRABERTENBEERAHE
BEARNEE AR FREREEEEN
HEBEE018FRHESRBEEER -5
mREREEEEEMEHENIREIE
B AEEHE2018F 12831 B LEE
EOREF(EEEREEHEEEHEE)
HENHEEKRABARKE11761HE
Tt BEHIER28.4% -
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For sales to third parties, the Group continued to implement the existing
distributor network, effective incentive mechanism and distributor
management system to enhance the sales capability of terminal points
of sales. Innovative channels were created in line with the positioning
of new products to further expand the scope of coverage by points of
sales. In e-commerce, while advantages of the flagship store continued
to take effect, self-operated strong online platforms such as Tmall.
com and JD.com were also relied upon to maintain rapid growth in
sales amount. For the year ended 31 December 2018, sales revenue
derived from sales generated by distributor channels amounted to
RMB1,263.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 115.2%.
Sales revenue from e-commerce channels amounted to RMB217.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 105.2%. Sales revenue
from third party catering enterprises amounted to RMB21.6 million,
representing a decrease of 7.8% as compared to the same period in
2017.

Revenue by geographic region

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographic regions of the
Company for the periods as indicated:

EFE=FHEEFE AEBFEFED
BREEERE UWIT2E M B E#
FIFGHEREEHE  BFERRLRE
HHEERED AoV mEERNEN
FREAFRE  E—SREREIES K
FoHhEEWAHE FEZEEEEED
WEIE  ERRFEEBETRARBEESRH
t@BFE HERESSRER - B
F2018F12A3IBLEEMEHED
HENHEERAAARYK12632HE
Tt B R115.2% ; EEEE R
ERABARME2174BE T BT
R105.2% ; E=HERBEHEERAA
R#¥216BE8 T B2017FRH T B
7.8% °

i 87 A

TRYRT A D TR TR HA [ S i 15 2
DHIA -

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALEE

2018 2017

20184 20175
% of total % of total
(RMB’000) revenue (RMB’000) revenue
[ON TN A LT ON
(AR#F 1) Botk (AR%TFT) Batk
North China® B 40 1,339,493 50.0% 874,665 53.2%
South China® #@o 1,255,998 46.8% 715,674 43.4%
Overseas markets B 85,882 3.2% 55,882 3.4%
Total L 2,681,373 100.0% 1,646,221 100.0%
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Notes:

(5) Including Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Beijing, Tianjin,
Hebei, Shandong, Shanxi, Henan, Ningxia, Shaanxi, Gansu, Qinghai,
Xinjiang and Tibet.

(6) Including Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi, Fujian, Hubei,
Hunan, Guangdong, Chongqing, Guizhou, Guangxi, Sichuan, Yunnan and
Hainan.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales, including raw materials, employee benefit
expenses, depreciation and amortization and utilities, increased by
58.8% from RMB1,034.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB1,642.5 million for the same period in 2018.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

EEENWED

FfEE -

(5) BEBEI- MK EBEE REL -4
= R#Eowdb - WWER -~ WLE - AR -
BE -BA--HE B FERA
gﬁo

6) BIEI&H- - LE I ZH®- Ik
BE- B - HE BER - BEE- &
M- ErE - M)l - 2GR

SHERAR

AEEBNHERNEBERME - EE
B  WEREBHEELAASE)H
BE2017F12A31ALEENARK

1,034.4H & JT 1€ hN158.8% = 2018 FF F
ERARE1,6425HETT

EMRBFER

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F

Gross profit Gross profit

Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin

E7 EFf=E EF EFE

RMB’ 000 % RMB’ 000 %

AREFT % AR®TR %

Hot pot condiments K SRR R 768,809 39.3% 509,075 36.5%

Third parties %= 455,567 56.1% 265,859 50.8%

Related parties 2k ) 313,242 27.4% 243,216 27.9%
Chinese-style compound I8 & AR

condiment 125,423 49.1% 79,157 42.5%

Third parties %= 117,592 51.4% 66,649 46.7%

Related parties kel 7,831 29.2% 12,508 28.8%

Convenient ready-to-eat food HEER 138,715 30.9% 21,260 34.6%

Third parties %= 136,927 30.8% 21,217 34.6%

Related parties 2]y 1,788 38.0% 43 41.6%

Others HE 5,950 28.2% 2,314 74.7%

Total “t 1,038,897 38.7% 611,806 37.2%
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The Group’s gross profit increased by 69.8% from RMB611.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB1,038.9 million for the
same period of 2018, while the gross profit margin increased from
37.2% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 38.7% for the same
period of 2018. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly due
to two main reasons: firstly the percentage of sales from third parties
with higher gross profit margin increased significantly compared to the
same period of 2017; secondly, cost of production was reduced due to
lower raw material price, higher production volume and optimization of
production process.

Distribution expenses

The Group’s distribution expenses increased by 46.7% from RMB164.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB241.5 million for
the year of 2018. The Group’s distribution expenses as a percentage of
the Group’s revenue decreased from 10.0% for 2017 to 9.0% for the
same period of 2018. The increase in distribution expenses was mainly
due to the increase in operating expenses brought by the development
of the Group’s business and further deepening in channel construction
and terminal promotions.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 113.4% from
RMB76.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB163.2
million for the same period of 2018. The Group’s administrative
expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue increased from 4.6%
for 2017 to 6.1% for 2018. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the following reasons: the company approved and
granted 1,510,000 RSUs pursuant to the RSU Scheme on 9 December
2018, and such RSUs have been vested in the current period; the
preparation of Bazhou factory and the formal commencement of
operations of 2 factories in Maanshan.

Other income and gains

The net amount of Group’s other income and gains increased by
29.1% from RMB43.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB56.5 million for the same period of 2018, mainly due to
government subsidies received by the Group.

AEBEWEFBHEZE2017F128
J1THLEEFENARYEG11.8FE TIEM
69.8% £2018FE FE ) A K #1,038.9
BET MEMNEHEBEZE2017F128
31B L FEM37.2% £ F E2018F [F
HH938.7% c EFEBLEAWEREREE
2 E— BEANEESMNE=ZFHEEK
MG A L I8 2017 S E Hi A A FE IR
B EEMRERTR EER
SMEERREEBLEREZNTET &£
ERAINE K

B

AEENKHEBZHBE2017F12A
S1THLEEENARE 1646 B E TIE N
46.7% Z2018FE ) A R #2415 B
To e AEERLHEBE M AEERAL
B2 2017 F 1910.0% % 1€ £2018
FH9.0% - KLHATIEMEZREZME
EEEERNBRE REBEER Kk
E @Rt - R AVIE M -

TTHRX

AEENITHRHEAZIHBE2017F12A
STEEEFMNARYKT76.48 B TIE N
113.4% Z2018 FFEEMARE163.2H
B AEBETHAIMMAEERAN
BHOLEH 2017 F /Y 4.6% EMNZE 2018 F
6.1% @ ITHRAXIEMEERNLLTR
CE— 0 AATIA2018FE12 A9 HR
BESRFABRMOEMTEMERTI51E
DERFBRDEN  WREPEE 5
O HEMNIREEREELMXIKIE

H A R Wz

AEENEMBMUARKZFHEHEE
2017F 12 A31BEFEMN AR 437
BETIEMN29.1% Z2018 FEM AR
565HEBT TERHERAEEKRREN
BURTEBRFTEL -



Finance income - net

The Group’s net amount of finance income recorded a net loss of
RMB45.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, and for the
same period of 2018 the Group recorded a net gain of RMB39.8
million, which was mainly due to the exchange gains arising from the
appreciation of Hong Kong dollar and US dollar.

Profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit before income tax
increased by 97.9% from RMB369.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB730.5 million for the same period of 2018.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by 69.1% from RMB108.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB182.6 million for
the same period of 2018. The effective tax rate decreased from 29.3%
for of 2017 to 25.0% for the year of 2018, mainly due to the exchange
losses arising from the depreciation of Hong Kong dollar and US dollar
in the same period of 2017 which could not be deducted before tax.

Net profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, net profit of the Group increased by
109.9% from RMB261.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB547.9 million for 2018. Basic earnings per share increased from
RMBO0.269 for 2017 to RMB0.534 for the same period of 2018, and
net profit margin increased from 15.9% for the same period of 2017 to
20.4% for 2018.

Capital liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s operations were
mainly funded by cash generated from operating activities. The Group
intended to apply internal resources, through organic and sustainable
development, to provide financing funds for its expansion and business
operations.

EEENWED

e W — FE

AEBHBMERAFEHREZE 2017 F12
A31BHLEFENARBISABETHE
EE > 22018 FEMARKISEHETT
MRt EWE  TEEHNBEMETH
EEERE R WESFTE -

BB AT 7

HREXFMAR » NREBWRAEH
B A EABEE2017F128318 Lt F
EHARY369.18 B T MI7.9% =
2018 FEMARKET7305HETT °

FRGBiFA

REBHFESHBAZHBZE2017F 128
STHEFEEMNARK108.0EE LiE M
69.1% E2018 FEMN AR 1826 HE
JC c B ER 2017 EW29.3% B E
2018 F M 25.0% » TEEZHMMN 2017 FE
BB (B 0B B K T ee R Al 5 2 P
g(o

FRFNE

HREXFERASR  AEEFFBEH
HZEZ2017F12A31BLEFENAR
#¥261.1 8 8 7T 3L N 109.9% £ 2018 F
WARMBA7TIOEETL BRELXER
H2017F FE KM A R #0.269 jt 12 i1
Z2018FEHN ARME0.534 7T 1 FF
EHEBZE2017TFFEMN159%EME
2018 FEM20.4%

B E2018F12A831A L EE K&
EXrZRRAKLEMSHESALERME
L - AEERDARNDBER BBEEA
B ERRAHBRERERLERM
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Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
mainly comprised Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The
amount of cash and cash equivalents was approximately RMB1,179.9
million (31 December 2017: RMB1,130.2 million).

Asset-liability ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the asset-liability ratio” of the Group was
17.2% (31 December 2017: 16.7%). The increase was mainly due to an
increase in trade payables, contract liabilities and other tax payables.
The Group did not have any bank borrowings.

Note:

(7)  The asset-liability ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total
assets as at the end of the financial period.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories consist primarily of raw materials, work-in-
progress and finished goods. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
inventories of approximately RMB275.8 million (31 December 2017:
RMB147.6 million). The turnover days of inventories decreased from
49.1 days for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 46.4 days for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease in the turnover days of
inventories was mainly due to the fact that the Group increased its
control over the efficiency of inventories in 2018.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers in respect of
sales of goods in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December
2018, we had trade receivables of approximately RMB206.9 million
(31 December 2017: RMB131.5 million). The change was mainly due
to an increase in sales by the Group to related parties and certain third
parties (such as e-commerce platforms) during 2018. The turnover
days of trade receivables increased slightly from 22.0 days for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to 22.7 days for the year ended 31
December 2018.

RERREEEY

H Z£2018F 128318 1t KREEK
HeRBRSEEYFTERHARE B
THESHAR BRERBEEEBYHNE
ARM®1,179.98 & (2017512 A 31
H: AR#113028ET) °

BEERMELR

HZEZ2018F 12831 B XEBHNE
EEEHLEROR17.2%(2017F 12 B 31
H:16.7%) tANEFERRARESE
& BREFRERESTHIE EFHA
B o REEWETMRITER

FfRE -

(7 EBEEBHRZEDBRRNBEMERU
REEME -

w5

GEFZEEREMR - EEREEK
B BE2018F12A31ALEFEELN A
A K ®275.88 & t(20175F12 A 31
H: AR#147688t) FTEFE
REMREZE2017F 12831 BLLEFEW
491K THREIBE2018F 128318 Lk
FEMLI64K - GEAEREBURD
WEERREAEBET 2018 FHERFX
RICIRBLUIRT »

B 5 BUWAR

ESRWNRABAEERBETHREES
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F12ANBLEESERERANAAR
206.9H B T(2017F 128318 : A
R¥131558x) SHNFEREERR
2018 FAKEELRAM A R D E=F (1
BT A )HEEIEMATE - B EWER
REAEXHREE2017FE12A8318 1
FEN22.0 REM EABEZ 2018512
B31BILEEER22.7XK °



Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. As at
31 December 2018, we had trade payables of approximately RMB188.7
million (31 December 2017: RMB136.6 million), which was due to the
effects of low and peak seasons for production and sales and the
seasonal procurement cycle. The turnover days of trade payables
decreased from 37.0 days for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
35.6 days for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any contingent
liabilities.

Charge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not charge any fixed assets
as securities for borrowings.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any bank
borrowings.

Debt-to-equity ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the debt-to-equity ratio® of the Company
was zero.

Note

(8): Debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total
equity. Total debt is defined as including interest-bearing liabilities
which are not incurred during the routine process of business.
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Foreign exchange risk and hedging

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has certain cash
in hand denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
and is so exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group has not hedged
against its foreign exchange risk. However, the Group will closely
monitor the exposure and will take specific measures when necessary
to make sure the foreign exchange risks are within a manageable
range.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 1,976 employees
(including temporary workers), comprising of 1,531 employees
in production, 346 employees in marketing and 99 employees in
administration and management functions, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total staff costs (including
salaries, wages, allowance, benefits and costs of equity incentive plan)
incurred by the Group amounted to RMB308.2 million.

The Group follows closely the demand of business development
and continuously improves its incentive system, and implements
competitive remuneration policy.

Material acquisitions and disposals

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
acquisitions nor any disposals of subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Industry and Business Outlook

In 2019, it is expected that China’s economy will make steady growth
while facing challenges. The National Bureau of Statistics predicts that
the economy will still operate within a reasonable range and economic
fundamentals will remain positive in the long run.

In terms of product development, the Group defined its multi-branding
strategy for the first time during the year. A number of sub-brands were
created to have a more refined breakdown of scenarios and product
categories, and the thematic slogan “Easy & Tasty” was adopted when
building products, brands and corporate image. Through structural
innovation of products, the business boundaries were further widened.
New products were launched and old products were eliminated on an on-
going basis for the product categories of hot pot condiments, Chinese-
style compound condiments, and convenient ready-to-eat products.
While reinforcing the market position of existing individual products
with strong trends, the Group’s research and development and market
exploration capabilities were also utilized to enrich the matrix of product
portfolio. In developing new products, we will continue to adopt the
“project-based system” as incentive strategy. Special and unique local
recipes and foreign flavors will be used as a guidance for introducing
differentiated products continuously. A strict product delisting system
will also be adopted to adjust the product portfolio in a timely manner,
for cultivating large individual products and eliminating non-performing
products, so as to enhance comprehensive product competitiveness.

In terms of channel development, the Group will continue optimizing
lower-tier sales channels, strengthening sales capabilities of sale points
and developing wholly new channel models through internal organic
growth and outward extension development in order to increase
the market share and industrial position of the Group continuously.
Meanwhile, staff incentive policies will be further optimized and
improved to encourage internal sales staff and external distributors, and
increase the coverage density by points of sales and sales efficiency
of individual locations. For e-commerce platforms, through addition of
Al customer service robots and strengthening further cooperation with
third-party logistics customer service experience will be optimized and
customer service staff will be streamlined to enhance the departmental
operational efficiency. In terms of third-party catering channels, by
enhancing service standards and introducing more standardized
product distributors, sales volume may be expanded rapidly.
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In terms of marketing, the Group will continue to pursue active online
and offline promotions. By considering the product features of each
sub-brand and combining with the “partnership” incentive system, and
through innovative marketing approaches at various sales terminals,
such as measures to show affection to the owners of sale points, which
have effectively and practically improved the impression and passion
that the sales terminals have on our brands, and so the sales efficiency
is enhanced. The Group will continue to deepen the cooperation
with distributors, in order to explore more channel space and more
diversified categories of points of sales.

For overseas business, the Group will start planning the expansion of
overseas business, expecting to establish several overseas companies
during 2019 and gradually transfer some foreign trade products to
overseas factories for production or processing to reduce production
and transportation costs, as well as for making regional adjustments
to flavors of our product, and in line with the objective to research and
develop local products.

In terms of supply chains, we will introduce two fully automatic production
lines for the first time in the newly constructed factory at Bazhou. In
the next few years, several factories will be built and commenced for
operation. We expect to continue investing in refining our production as
well as research and development of automatic equipment.

Material Investments and Prospects

In order to ease the pressure from continuously increasing production
capacity utilization rate, the Group mainly adopted the following
measures in 2018:

Firstly, the factory construction for new plants located in Bazhou,
Hebei province, China was basically completed. The factory plant
of Phase | in the Bazhou project was basically completed in 2018.
As at the first quarter of 2019, the project is still in the equipment
installation and commissioning stage. It is expected that the south
workshop and north workshop included in Phase | of the Bazhou
factory project will commence mass production in May and September
of 2019, respectively. More than 70,000 tonnes of production capacity
is expected to be provided, including the special production line
for developing soup flavorings for the “Thousand People Thousand
Flavors” series of Haidilao Group restaurants and the production line
for retail products of hot pot soup flavorings. The project is located at
the central area of Northern China, which will be helpful to the Group in
controlling and managing logistic costs and the pressure on production
capacity during peak seasons.
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Secondly, a contract was entered into for the new construction of
Phase Il Maanshan condiment production base located in Anhui
province, China. The Group entered into a land acquisition agreement
with the local government of Maanshan in Anhui province in August
2018, the project is expected to be completed and will commence
production in 2021 to provide an addition of approximately 200,000
tonnes of production capacity. The factory will be equipped with
condiment production equipment and quality monitoring devices at
advanced technological level in terms of local and overseas standards
to enhance the overall production line efficiency of the Company.

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group will continue to extensively identify potential strategic
investment opportunities and seek to acquire potential high-quality
target businesses that create synergies for the Group in relation
to aspects including product research and development, product
portfolio, channel expansion or cost control.
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Mr. Shi Yonghong (i 7%k 7% ), aged 49, was re-designated as an executive
Director of the Company and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, respectively, on 9 December 2018. Mr. Shi is one of the
founders of the Haidilao Group and has over 20 years of food industry and
management experience within the Haidilao Group. He was appointed as
a non-executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2016 (appointed
as the Chairman of the Company on 14 November 2017), and has been
a Director since December 2015, primarily responsible for participating
in making major decisions for the Company. Mr. Shi has held various
positions at Sichuan Haidilao since April 1994. Mr. Shi was the vice general
manager at Sichuan Haidilao between April 1994 and March 2001, before
assuming the role of supervisor at Sichuan Haidilao between April 2001
and June 2009. Since July 2009, Mr. Shi has been a director at Sichuan
Haidilao. Mr. Shi also serves as an executive director of associates of
the Company’s Controlling Shareholders. He is currently an executive
director of Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (stock code: 6862). Mr. Shi
completed his study in mechanics at Sichuan Kongfen Group Technical
School (M9)I|Z= 5 TE#) in June 1988.

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (E#%&%), aged 46, was appointed as the Vice
President of the Company on 9 December 2018. She has been a
Director since December 2015 and is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Company, implementation of the decisions of the
Board. Ms. Dang has been the general manager of Yihai Shanghai since
December 2015, and was appointed as an executive Director, the chief
executive officer and general manager of the Company on 7 March 2016.
Prior to this, Ms. Dang worked as a sales manager of Kebao Boloni
Home Furnishing Co. Ltd. (RIE & EREHBR 2 A) from August 1998
to April 2002. From May 2002 to September 2008, she joined Beijing
Yuanzhou Decoration Co., Ltd. (3t 22t i 4 & & BR 2 &) as a manager
of the kitchen cabinet department and was later promoted to director of
the home furnishing management department. Ms. Dang was the vice
general manager of Huawei Leren (Beijing) Trading Co., Ltd. (ZER&4{= (4t
R)ESEMR2ATF), a company engaging in construction materials trading
from January 2009 to November 2010. Ms. Dang then joined Sichuan
Haidilao and served as the head of the operations department from
January 2011 to December 2014. Ms. Dang served as the head of the
operations department and a standing deputy general manager of Yihai
Shanghai from December 2014 to January 2015 and from January 2015
to December 2015, respectively. Ms. Dang completed her graduate study
in business administration at Renmin University of China (Bl A R K £)
in May 2010, and completed EMBA professional programme at Guanghua
School of Management in July 2017.
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Mr. Sun Shengfeng (# B &), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief financial officer on 7 March 2016. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing matters relating to the financial, investment and
risk management of the Company, including budgeting, disclosure and
reporting. Mr. Sun has also served as the chief financial officer of Yihai
Shanghai since August 2015. Mr. Sun served as the head of finance in
Xi’an Yingiao Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (FA ZREE YR ER A7) from
September 2003 to August 2007. He joined Sichuan Haidilao in September
2007 and has held various positions successively: he worked as assistant
to the chief financial officer from September 2007 to November 2011, the
chief accountant from November 2011 to December 2012, deputy head
of the finance management department from December 2012 to August
2013, and deputy head of the asset management department from August
2013 to August 2015. Mr. Sun passed the self-taught higher education
examination for undergraduate study in business administration with
Xi'an University of Technology (A% ¥ T K2) and obtained a graduation
certificate in June 2009. He completed his graduate study in business
administration at Tsinghua University in September 2010. He was
accredited as an accountant by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China (*F 2 A R FIE 81 EE8) in May 2005.

Ms. Shu Ping (&F %), aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 21 March 2018. She has been the director of
Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.* (P9 )I[/E K # & &R 17 B R
A 7)) since November 2014. She has been the non-executive director
of Xinpai International Investment Limited* (¥7 JK B F% 1R & B IR 2 7))
(renamed as Haidilao International Holding Ltd.* (B BEIBEIER AR A
7)) since July 2015. She is currently a non-executive director of Haidilao
International Holding Ltd. (stock code: 6862). Ms. Shu has completed
the EMBA (China) programme and the FMBA programme run jointly by
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, London Business School,
Columbia Business School, Graduate School of International Corporate
Strategy of Hitotsubashi University, European School of Management
and Technology, International Institute for Management Development in
Switzerland in November 2015, and completed the EMBA programme
run jointly by Shanghai Jiao Tong University and Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore in July 2016. Ms. Shu is the spouse of Mr. Zhang
Yong, a non-executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Guo Qiang (B5#), aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 26 March 2019. He was appointed as the head
of marketing and sales of the Company on 10 December 2018 and
is responsible for the branding, sales and marketing business of the
Company while striving to optimise the construction of the marketing
system of the Company. Mr. Guo joined the Company since 20
January 2016 and served as the head of sales management division
of the Company from 1 March. Since 1 August 2017, he served as
the Company’s head of sales division in the southern region and is
responsible for the implementation of the construction, operation
management and strategic planning of the Company’s marketing
system in the southern region. Prior to the aforementioned, Mr. Guo
served as a mechanical engineer of a tractor factory in Shenyang from
September 1992 to April 1997; a national sales director of Lotte (China)
Investment Co., Ltd. from May 1997 to August 2010; a sales director of
Henan Kedi Frozen Food Co., Ltd.* (CAIE@RBEE R B MAER L F) from
August 2010 to July 2013; and a sales director of national hypermarket
division of Haixin Foods Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to December 2015.
Mr. Guo graduated from Shenyang Agricultural University in 1992 with
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design.

Mr. Zhang Yong (5k & ), aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 7 March 2016. Mr. Zhang is one of the founders of the Haidilao Group and
has over 20 years of food industry and management experience within the
Haidilao Group. He has been a Director since December 2015 and is primarily
responsible for participating in making major decisions for the Company. Mr.
Zhang served as the general manager of Sichuan Haidilao from April 1994 to
March 2001. Between April 2001 and June 2009, Mr. Zhang served as both
the executive director and the general manager of Sichuan Haidilao. Since July
2009, Mr. Zhang has served as the director and chairman of Sichuan Haidilao.
Mr. Zhang also serves as a director and member of senior management of
associates of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders. He is currently an
executive director of Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (stock code: 6862). Mr.
Zhang completed the executive master of business administration program
and completed the finance master of business administration program from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (& 5T & £ Fx) in October 2011
and August 2012, respectively. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Shu Ping, an
executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Yau Ka Chi (B} % B5%), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2016. Mr. Yau has
over 30 years of professional accounting experience including 20 years
in serving China enterprises. He had worked for Ernst & Young for over
20 years in its Hong Kong, Toronto and Beijing offices with primary
focus in providing professional services in accounting and audit, initial
public offering, and corporate restructuring before retiring in September
2015. During his professional career with Ernst & Young, Mr. Yau was
appointed as the Professional Practice Director of Greater China from
July 2007 to June 2009, the Assurance Leader for China North Region
from July 2010 to June 2014, the Oil & Gas Industry Leader of Greater
China from May 2012 to June 2015 and the Assurance Leader of the
Energy & Resources Markets Segment of Greater China from July
2013 to June 2015. Mr. Yau is an independent non-executive director
of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (T EI S 4 A 2B R 2 7))
(Stock code: 2319) since October 2016 and China Power International
Development Limited (P EIE H BB R B R 2 7)) (Stock code: 2380)
since December 2016, both companies listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yau holds a professional
diploma in company secretaryship and administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the lllinois Certified Public Accountants Society and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau also holds
a certified public accountant license issued by the lllinois Department
of Financial and Professional Regulation, the United States.

Mr. Qian Mingxing (£4FA£ ), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2016. He is primarily responsible for
participating in making major decisions for the Company and advising
on issues relating to corporate governance, nomination of Directors
and remuneration of Directors and senior management. Mr. Qian has
been a professor at Peking University Law School (1t 5 K 2 5% Z k)
since August 1999. He worked as a teaching assistant and a lecturer of
the law department at Peking University from August 1986 to August
1988 and August 1988 to August 1993, respectively. From August
1993 to August 1999, Mr. Qian was an associate professor at Peking
University Law School. Mr. Qian obtained a bachelor’s degree in law
and a master’s degree in law from Peking University in July 1983 and
July 1986, respectively. In June 2001, Mr. Qian obtained a doctoral
degree of laws from Peking University.
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Ms. Ye Shujun (% 5§ &), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2016. She is primarily responsible
for participating in making major decisions for the Company and
advising on issues relating to corporate governance, remuneration of
Directors and senior management, nomination of Directors and audit.
Ms. Ye has been an independent director of Beijing New Universal
Science and Technology Co., Ltd (t B B #FH TR FER BB R A7)
(stock code: 300472) since June 2011, and an independent director of
Anhui Guozhen Environment Protection Technology Joint Stock Co.,
Limited (& # Bl 1€ R R 87 gE B & IR 19 B IR 2 §]) (stock code: 300388)
since August 2016, both being companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (3% JIl & Z 3 % Ff). Ms. Ye has been serving as
independent director of Anhui Telit Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code:831918), a company listed on National Equities Exchange
and Quotation System, since July 2017, and as independent director
of Wuhu Fuchun Dye And Weave Co., Ltd. (stock code: 870898), a
company listed on the New Third Board, since November 2017. Ms. Ye
also served as lecturer, associate professor and professor successively
at the economic management college of Beijing Jiaotong University (it
W X B K E) since December 1994. Ms. Ye completed a program in
international accounting and international tax at Xiamen University in
January 1990. Ms. Ye then obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Tsinghua University in July 1994. She obtained a doctoral degree
in management from Beijing Jiaotong University in July 2007.

Mr. Shi Yonghong (#k %), an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. See “—Board of Directors —Executive
Directors” in this section for his biographical details.

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (¥% &), an executive Director and the Vice
President of the Company. See “—Board of Directors —Executive
Directors” in this section for her biographical details.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (#/51£), an executive Director, the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of the Company. See “—Board
of Directors — Executive Directors” in this section for his biographical
details.

Mr. Guo Qiang (2854 ), an executive Director of the Company. See “Information
of Newly Appointed Director” in this section for his biographical details.
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Mr. Du Zhuang (%t #t), aged 43, has served as the sales director of the
Company since 1 August 2017, primarily responsible for sales operation
and market development in Southeast Asia. Mr. Du has over 15 years
of sales and marketing experience in the fast-moving consumer goods
sector. He has been a marketing director of Yihai Shanghai since
January 2015. He worked as the head of the chain store department of
Tianjin Dingjin Food Co., Ltd. (K}ZTEEZRMEBMR A7) from June 2001
to October 2008. Mr. Du joined Sichuan Haidilao in October 2008 and
held various positions successively including marketing manager from
October 2008 to August 2009, sales manager from August 2009 to
August 2010 and senior sales manager from September 2010 to June
2011. From June 2011 to November 2014, Mr. Du served as a deputy
head of the operation department of Shuhai (Beijing) Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (FE(JtR)REHBR A F), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sichuan
Haidilao. Mr. Du completed his study for undergraduate program in
husbandry at Beijing College of Agriculture (1t TZEZER) in July 1996.

*

For identification purpose only
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The Board of the Company presents this corporate governance report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and also the corporate governance report as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Corporate Governance Code sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance
practices, as follows:

(@) code provisions, which listed issuers are expected to comply with
or to give considered reasons for deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed
issuers are encouraged to comply with.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code.

Except for the deviation from the Corporate Governance Code
provision A.2.1, the Company regularly reviews its compliance with
corporate governance codes and the Company was in compliance with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
for details.
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Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board also reviews the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees’ various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference which are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

All of the Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and have acted in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions
of the Company including: the approval and monitoring of
all major policies of the Group and overall strategies, risk
management and internal control systems, notifiable and
connected transactions, nomination of the Directors and
joint company secretaries, and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board before any significant
transaction is entered into.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprised the following
Directors throughout 2018:

Executive Directors

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)
(Note 1)

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (Note 1)

Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Ms. Shu Ping (Note 2)

Mr. Zhang Yong
Mr. Gou Yiqun (Note 3)

Mr. Pan Di (Note 4)

Independent Mr. Yau Ka Chi
non-executive Mr. Qian Mingxing (Note 5)
Directors
Ms. Ye Shujun
Note 1: Mr. Shi Yonghong has been re-designated as an executive

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The list

Director and has been appointed as the chief executive
officer and resigned from being a member of the audit
committee with effect from 9 December 2018. Ms. Dang
Chunxiang has been re-designated to vice president from
the post of chief executive officer.

Ms. Shu Ping was appointed as an executive Director and
a member of the remuneration committee with effect from
21 March 2018.

Mr. Gou Yiqun has resigned from his position as a non-
executive Director and member of the remuneration
committee with effect from 21 March 2018.

Mr. Pan Di has resigned from the post of non-executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2019. Mr. Guo Qiang
has been appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 26 March 2019.

Mr. Qian Mingxing was appointed as a member of the
audit committee with effect from 9 December 2018.

of the Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all

corporate communications issued by the Company from
time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual
report, to the best knowledge of the Company, there are
no financial, business, family, or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2018, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and at least one independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his or her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles
of Association. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company
pursuant to which each of them has agreed to act as an
executive Director or a non-executive Director (as the case
may be) for an initial term of three years from 7 March 2016
(or from 21 March 2018 for Ms. Shu Ping, 9 December
2018 for Mr. Shi Yonghong and from 26 March 2019 for Mr.
Guo Diang) (subject to re-election as and when required
under the Articles of Association) until it is terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the service
contract or by either party giving to the other not less than
one month’s prior notice in writing. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company and has been appointed for a term of
three years from 20 June 2016. The appointment may be
terminated by either party giving to the other not less than
one month’s prior notice in writing.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, all of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and the Board has power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any new Director to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he or she understands the business and
operations of the Company and that he or she is fully aware
of his or her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually provided with information
relating to the developments in the legal and regulatory
regime and the business and market environments to
facilitate the execution of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development for the Directors
were arranged by the Company and its professional
advisers.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, apart from
Mr. Gou Yiqun (who resigned as a non-executive Director
since 21 March 2018), each Director has attended training
sessions arranged by the Stock Exchange regarding the
“Independent Non-executive Directors’ Role in Corporate
Governance”. In addition, Mr. Sun Shengfeng has also
attended the training courses arranged by The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries on “Risk Management and
Governance”.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Director Training*

Mr. Shi Yonghong
Ms. Dang Chunxiang
Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Gou Yiqun

Mr. Pan Di

Mr. Yau Ka Chi

Mr. Qian Mingxing

Ms. Ye Shujun v

*

v
4
4
v
Mr. Zhang Yong v
0
v
4
4

Apart from Mr. Gou Yiqun (who resigned as a non-executive
Director since 21 March 2018), each Director has attended
training sessions arranged by the Stock Exchange regarding
the “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Role in Corporate
Governance”. In addition, Mr. Sun Shengfeng has also
attended the training courses arranged by The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries on “Risk Management and
Governance”. On top of the above-mentioned trainings, each
of the Directors has also read materials prepared by external
professional advisers on “Main Regulations in Hong Kong and
Regulatory Update”.
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6.

Attendance Record of Board Meetings

a.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code prescribes that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of majority
of directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Board met nine times during the year ended
31 December 2018 for reviewing and approving the
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017, unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2018, the amendment of terms of
continuing connected transactions, the renewal of
continuing connected transactions for 2019 and 2020
and the change of the members of the Board.

The chairman of the Company held meeting with
the non-executive Directors (including independent
non- executive Directors) once during the year ended
31 December 2018 without the executive Directors
present.

The Company held three general meetings on 27 April
2018 and 8 August 2018 respectively during the year
ended 31 December 2018. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put to the above general meetings were
resolved by poll vote and were duly passed. The
vote tally of each such resolution was set out in the
Company’s announcements released on the day of the
general meetings.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings and general meetings of the Company during

REBZE2018F 12831 H
LEFER BRESHRE

the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below: EETEERNEALAN
RERARE L ERE S
T
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board Meetings General Meetings
HE R e, HRERE
Name of Director EEna EEEERRY BREXERE
Mr. Shi Yonghong Mk % % 9/9 3/3
Ms. Dang Chunxiang EREEutL 9/9 3/3
Mr. Sun Shengfeng BisE K% 9/9 3/3
Ms. Shu Ping Lt 8/9 3/3
Mr. Zhang Yong REBEE 9/9 3/3
Mr. Gou Yiqun RIBE AL 1/9 0/3
Mr. Pan Di il 9/9 3/3
Mr. Yau Ka Chi ERREGSEE 9/9 3/3
Mr. Qian Mingxing AR %A 9/9 3/3
Ms. Ye Shujun E2HELL 9/9 3/3
b.  Practices and Conduct of Meetings b. EEEHEEIES

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
of the Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notices were generally given.

Mr. Gou Yiqun has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from
21 March 2018.

*
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information were sent to all of the Directors
at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.

Each Director also had separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company
whenever necessary.

The senior management of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other
Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The joint company secretaries are responsible for
taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
the Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

With effect from 9 December 2018, Ms. Dang Chunxiang resigned
as chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Shi Yonghong,
the existing chairman was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company. As such, the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company are performed by the same
individual and constitute a deviation from Code provision A.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code.

Mr. Shi Yonghong had assumed both the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company as he has
extensive experience and knowledge in the food and the catering
service industry and management experience within the Haidilao
Group and in order to improve the efficiency of the operations of
the Company.

In view of the ever-changing business environment in which the
Group operates, the chairman and the chief executive officer must
be proficient in the Chinese condiment market and be sensitive
to market changes in order to promote the businesses of the
Group. The Board thus considers a segregation of the role of the
chairman and chief executive officer may create unnecessary
costs for the daily operations of the Group.

The Board considers that vesting two roles in Mr. Shi Yonghong
enables the Company to promptly and efficiently make and
implement decisions and will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. The Company has established board committees,
namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Nomination Committee, with their members mainly
comprising of independent non-executive Directors and which
are responsible for the important corporate governance functions.
The three independent non-executive Directors who possess
balance of skills and experience appropriate to the business of
the Company also contribute valuable independent views to the
Board. All major decisions have been made in consultation with
members of the Board and appropriate committees, as well as the
senior management team. The Board is therefore of the view that
there are adequate balance of power and safeguards in place.
Nevertheless, the Board will continue to regularly monitor and
review the Company’s current structure and to make necessary
changes at an appropriate time.

1 ERF A7 IR SCA2. 1 1R ET
B EERTHASNBAETE
7 WAREHE— ARE °

H2018FE12B9R B EEE XL
TEEARQRTITERELITE  BE
IREKEAEREZEAERQTE
FBHITE Bt XRTEERE
FEHTENBMERE—ARE > I
BRREREERTASTRKX
A2.115 -

HREKETEEBRESENR
mAMERBHETEURERERT
HEEEENERANTE - RARE
BARBEENE  HERELD
AEFEREFEIITE

ENTEEEENERRETEE
£ EEREFEHITELERESD
BlFAKmATS  YHDTSEEH
B DR EARKEENER - EHit
EZERL IEKREFEHTEN
ABSBTHEEATEENAEE
BERAMERRA ©

EZERL BXRLEREME
Bz - AR A D B AR A ROt E
REIERE  BEFESBEEEEEH
RRREEE 2 EHE D RERT
e AATAEHLESEZES |
EITREE  FHNESERRERZ
Eg HBETEHRBIFANITE
AN WEEEENEEELH
BE - EABEARNRIEBIEEE
ERTEN=FFLFATESH
REFERHEENBYRR -
BERRRHAREHRESEREN
HERZEEURSREEBRGE
‘L - BHit EEERAEF
BENEIFENREER - R
- EEEREETHEERRT
ROTB) EATHRE - LREE R
EHBENEE -

53



54

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by
the Board in a timely manner, the chairman of the Company
coordinates with the senior management of the Company to
provide adequate, complete and reliable information to all of the
Directors for consideration and review.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All of these three committees are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available at the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

1.  Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee with terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules as well as paragraphs C.3 and D.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
Directors, namely, the independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Ms. Ye Shujun and Mr. Qian Mingxing (who
was appointed as member of the audit committee with effect
from 9 December 2018). The executive Director, Mr. Shi
Yonghong was re-designated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director and resigned from his position as
member of the audit committee with effect from 9 December
2018. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Yau Ka
Chi, who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, assisting the Board by (i) reviewing and monitoring
the relationship of the external auditor and the Group,
particularly the independence, objectivity and effectiveness
of the external auditor; (ii) providing an independent view of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control, compliance and risk management systems of the
Group; (iii) overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board;
(iv) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules; (v) reviewing the financial information of
the Company and ensuring compliance with accounting
standards and reviewing significant adjustments resulting
from audit; and (vi) developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and its main work involved the
following:

o reviewing the audited annual results and financial report
for the year ended 31 December 2017;

° reviewing the unaudited interim results and financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2018;

° reviewing the financial reporting and the compliance
procedures;

o reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance;

° reviewing the compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and the disclosure requirement in the corporate
governance report as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules;

ENZEEBFETELIMR
B2 BIrZEENIERE
BIEERRM)EUT S EE
BEEE : ()Rt REIEIE
BB EE 2 EMEER -
RERINEZBER B E -
EEMERERE ; (\RAER
W RS AR - AP
ERREREESENE R
REBUER; (i)BEREZ
BREUARBITESSRRNE
BB E ; (v) BT R AR
SAARATNEEERBRERERE
o URGEEMERERRE E
TRAEBRWEHRBER S (V)
ERARQTRKER  BRE
FETHEER R EZE M H
WHE KRR ; R(Vi)HIET -
R REZBEBANRKATES
REZMTAA -

M E Z2018%F 128318 1Lt
FER  BifZEE228TH
REE HEETESRUT
£I8 -

o EHME ZE2017F12A
STHLEFENRERE
EEER MRS |

o FERMEBZE2018%6H30
SRR R <%
PEIEEN BERE

s EMBEREREER
7

s EHREEEBRHERE
pSZ

o EMETLHRAIKME
TFrE e EERTA
REEETARBRENRE
BE S

55



° reviewing the code of conduct and the compliance
manuals for employees and the Directors, the financial,
operational and compliance monitoring;

° reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems;

° reviewing the internal audit work of the risk management
and internal audit department;

o reviewing the work of the external auditor; and

° revising the terms of reference to reflect the latest changes
to the Corporate Governance Code.

The Audit Committee met with the external auditor of the
Company in the absence of management of the Company
once in relation to the provision of audit service to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee Meetings
are set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of
Meeting(s)
HERE,
Name of Committee Member LZEEMENA BRI
Mr. Yau Ka Chi ERREG S 4/4
Mr. Shi Yonghong Mk % ek 4/4
Ms. Ye Shujun EHELL 4/4
Mr. Qian Mingxing SEHELE 0/4
The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 NN B B £22018F 12 A 31
December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee HEEENEEXEBECHE

on 24 March 2019. The Audit Committee considers that the
annual financial results for the year ended 31 December
2018 are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and appropriate disclosures
have been duly made.

Mr. Qian Mingxing was appointed as a member of the audit committee

with effect from 9 December 2018.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three Directors, namely, the independent non-
executive Directors Ms. Ye Shujun and Mr. Qian Mingxing
and the non-executive Director Mr. Gou Yiqun, the executive
Directors Ms. Shu Ping (who was appointed as member
of the remuneration committee with effect from 21 March
2018). The non-executive Director, Mr. Gou Yiqun resigned
from his position as member of the remuneration committee
with effect from 21 March 2018. Ms. Ye Shujun serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a
year. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
reviewing and approving senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board corporate goals and
objectives; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2018 to review the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and consider and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company.
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The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee
Meetings are set out below:

FHZEEESRNEELER
T

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

HERE,

Name of Committee Member ZEEMEMA BHRRH
Ms. Ye Shujun E2HELL 2/2
Mr. Gou Yiqun BEE L 1/2
Mr. Qian Mingxing SEHELAE 2/2
Ms. Shu Ping P cen 1/2

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 37
to the Financial Statements. In addition, the remuneration
payable to the senior management of the Company (who
are not the Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report — D. Remuneration of Senior Management”
of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the executive
Director Mr. Shi Yonghong (who was re-designated from
a non-executive Director to an executive Director with
effect from 9 December 2018), and the independent non-
executive Directors Ms. Ye Shujun and Mr. Qian Mingxing.
Mr. Shi Yonghong serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (ii) assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2018 to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience and length
of service) of the Board to ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company, to review
the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, and to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The terms of reference had also been revised to reflect the
latest changes to the Corporate Governance Code.

The attendance records of the Nomination Committee
Meetings are set out below:

REZE2018F 12318 Lt
FER REZEECEHN
MAEHE ' UBNESEN
R AR ARKKES
Tl (B AE - &
B MR Filk - XERHE
BES Bk BEXERK
RBAHLE) - M ER
EEEREEEXNH K
BENEREHEIE UK
BARAEBRE  FHE
ERSREEAENEIR
REEXRRE  LAREBEY
FHTESNBE LM - Bk
SEETEFEHERT URRE
EERTATHNRMEZE

REZESSENHETESE
T

Attendance/
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Meeting(s)

HERE,

Name of Committee Member LZEEMENA BRRH
Mr. Shi Yonghong i & e 2/2
Ms. Ye Shujun E2HELL 2/2
Mr. Qian Mingxing EREAE%AE 2/2

Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.
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Prior to the Listing Date, the composition and diversity of the Board
were considered by adopting the Board Diversity Policy including
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Company and for
effective leadership. All the executive and non-executive Directors
possess extensive and diversified experience in management and
broad industrial experience. The three independent non-executive
Directors possess professional knowledge in management, finance,
accountancy and legal, respectively with broad and extensive
experience in business advisory and management, respectively. A
summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose: The Board Diversity Policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board and enable
the Board to comply with the

Corporate Governance Code.

Board Diversity
Policy statement:

The Company considers increasing
diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives: Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

In reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
the Nomination Committee has taken into account the measurable
objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the diversity level of the Board is
appropriate in terms of knowledge, experience and skills of the
directors. However, the Nomination Committee will continue to observe
the Board Diversity Policy and consider potential candidates against
the objective criteria set out in the Board Diversity Policy in order to
achieve increasing diversity at the Board level.

The remuneration (including salary only) payable to the senior
management of the Company (who are not the Directors) is shown

AstEE1K - REANBELR
RZE75ERE

BARRRMER - F
B XEtRHEEBE
B - fhEe - AR
KRBER) - BE
REGENERN
REATAESS
TR EERF R
MiE °

RBNESENRE  AH ABRZ
TR REEZEECZREETENR
EZUBEMENTAEER - 2]
ZEERD EBEMEMZTILKF
RESHNE CREEENSHNES
e A REZESKEEBTES
EHESTUILBRRRREBERES T
TtBRRAENEREANZREEIRE
A USEBEHERFES T ©

BNALAEREEB(ERTE
B)NHFH(REEHS)REROT

in the following table by band: BZI7 :
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
(members (members
of senior of senior
management management
of the Company) of the Company)
(RMB) (ArEEH (RRAESHK
(AR¥E) EHEENE) EEENE)
1-1,000,000 — 2

2,000,000-3,000,000

2 J—




62

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries
have been made to all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company’s relevant employees, who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company, have also been
subject to the Model Code for securities transactions. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the Company’s relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management of the Company has provided such
explanation and information to the Board as necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Company in order to put forward
such information to the Board for approval.
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Pursuant to the resolution of the 2018 Shareholders’ annual
general meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed
by the Company as the auditor of financial statements prepared
under International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
under the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this
annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and
auditor’s independence.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company for the provision
of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to RMB2.1 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect of non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to RMBO0.3 million. The nature of such non-audit services is to
provide advisory services.
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems that are in line with the strategic objective
of the Group. The Group established risk management and
internal control systems to protect the interests of the Group and
shareholders, ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, effectively identify and manage significant
risks in achieving its strategic objectives, protect the safety
of the Group’s assets, and ensure the maintenance of proper
compliance accounting records and financial reports.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems as well as overseeing management of the
Group in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports from
the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions
of the Group. All significant risks are reported to the Board. The
Board will also evaluate the corresponding risks and the response
plan. The Group would review, among other things, adequacy of
resources, staff’s qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of our accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions.

The Group’s management is authorized by the Board to be
in charge of the organization and implementation of the risk
management and internal control of the Group and be responsible
for establishing the risk management and internal control systems,
standardizing the organization, authorization, responsibilities,
procedures and methods of the risk management and internal
control systems and also responsible for ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
and makes periodic reports to the Board regarding the status of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

NRESEEEEVNEFERE
EEKESECEY 2R
EREERABEZRRALS - AE5E
ZVEBEERABEZERS B
EREAEBENRRFGE - BEAAR
SEETHEERER - BYER
MEESENRAEKERERNE
RER  REFAEHEENRZ S -
RERESRNSECHEMIBR

%o

NEESEEETMAEEERE
B RS EANERMEER
BE  UERRASERIRERFS
BREVNEREERAMEEZER
B A EEEEAEEEERE
HEBEERABEZRRNR
af - EFEEEEEE -

RAEBEEH(ELBF-RHK
IREEHEEEBERNAKE
% BEEREHRER  URRKEE
BEREREERY - FHERTMGEN
BE - IEEANREBEEOES
SER - ESSTUAERBMAE
HIT B - AEESEKH
ST - REDERIE I B 75 0 SR
FENER BIERREHBRER
25 URIBIREREBERER
BRE°

FEEERERESSRE B8
AEERBREE TEMABELRY
MABNER  SEFERBEER
REEESE - REAKEEREA
fmEERANMEENASKE &
#BE RENSE BEFE
EEAEEREREERANBEZN
T XEHEETEZESLHA
MESEHREAEERBEENR
ZERBMR o



The risk management and internal audit department of the Group
assists the Board and the Audit Committee in their analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal audit department adopts an audit
approach based on risk and control. The annual work plan of the
risk management and internal audit department covers the major
activities and processes of the Group’s operations, businesses
and service units. Special reviews are also performed at the
management’s request. The results of these audit activities are
communicated to the Audit Committee. The risk management and
internal audit department provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the management of the Company
as to whether the Group’s internal controls are adequate and
effective.

With respect to risk management, the Group has chosen and
adopted the risk management framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in
the United States of America (“COSQ”), and established a risk
management system covering design, implementation, monitoring,
assessment and continuous improvement based on the ISO
31000:2009 “Risk Management — Principles and Guidelines”. The
Group’s management established the overall targets and policies
of the risk management system which are in line with the strategic
objectives, and identified, analysed and assessed the overall risk
of the Company, especially the risks in making major decisions,
important events and key business processes. The Group’s
management is also responsible for reviewing and approving
the response plans to major risks, as well as following-up and
periodically reviewing the implementation of such response
plans of risks identified, in order to make sure that sufficient
attention, monitor and responses will be paid to all key risks of
the Company. The risk management reports are submitted to the
Board periodically.
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With respect to internal control, the Group has chosen and
adopted the internal control framework issued by COSO,
established an internal control system and mechanism over
financial, operational and compliance controls and conducted
continuing review and evaluation of the internal control system of
the Group to ensure the timeliness, accuracy and completeness
of all information reported.

The management has evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of its internal control regarding the financial
report as of 31 December 2018, did not identify any material
weakness as a result of the evaluation, was not aware of
any areas of concern that would have a material impact on
the Company’s financial position or results of operations,
and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be generally adequate and effective,
including with respect to the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the accounting, and internal audit and financial reporting
functions. On the basis of such evaluation, the Board
considers that as of 31 December 2018, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group in relation to
financial reporting were effective and adequate.

At the same time, the Group has established a mechanism
for remediating internal control deficiency under which
the person in charge of each unit is assigned clear
responsibilities relating to remediating internal control
deficiency of the unit.

The Group has formulated an inside information policy and
regularly reminds its Directors and employees to comply
with all inside information policies.

The Group established an open channel to handle and
discuss internal and external whistle-blowing regarding
financial irregularities, internal control deficiencies and fraud,
and to ensure that every accusation receives sufficient
attention. Significant internal control deficiencies or
accusations will be reported directly to the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For details of the nature and extent of the principal risks faced by
the Group, please refer to the section headed “e. Principal Risk
and Uncertainties” in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide
a forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees and, where applicable, the chairman
of the independent Board committee, will be available to answer
questions at the general meetings. The chairman of a meeting will
provide the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer
any questions from the Shareholders on voting by poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.yihchina.com, where information and updates on
the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no change had been
made to the articles of association of the Company.
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To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the re-election of individual Directors. Meanwhile,
procedures are in place for the Shareholders to (i) convene an
extraordinary general meeting; (ii) direct their enquiries to the
Board; and (iii) put forward proposals at general meetings.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Association,
all resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by
poll save that the chairman may, in good faith, allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter as
prescribed under the Listing Rules to be voted on by a show of
hands.

In addition, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the relevant general
meeting.

1. Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, any
two or more Shareholders or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition (deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists) not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
and carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, on written
requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the Requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.

According to Article 12.4 of the Articles of Association, any
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by not less
than 14 days’ notice in writing. Subject to the requirement
under the Listing Rules, the notice shall be exclusive of the
day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the
day for which it is given, and shall specify the time, place,
and agenda of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions
and the general nature of the business to be considered
at the meeting. The notice convening a meeting to pass a
special resolution shall specify the intention to propose the
resolution as a special resolution. Notice of every general
meeting shall be given to the auditors of the Company
and to all the Shareholders other than those who, under
the provisions hereof or the terms of issue of the shares
they hold, are not entitled to receive such notice from the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no single provision in the Articles of Association or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. The
Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding section.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, the Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries, concerns or requests
to the Company at 40th Floor, Sunlight Tower, No. 248
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. The information
of the Shareholders may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company’s net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted
to approximately HK$720.2 million.

The net proceeds have been used in a manner consistent with
those disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As of 31 December 2018, the
unused net proceeds were RMB402.2 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had used the
net proceeds from the Global Offering for the following purposes:
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Use of
proceeds in  The cumulative The cumulative
the same amount of amount of
manner and proceeds proceeds
proportionsas utilizedasof utilized as of
statedinthe 31 December 31 December
Prospectus 2017 2018
(in RMB million) (in RMB million) (in RMB million)
PR
ERMSIE  HE017E  BE2018%
1HEH 12A31H 12A31H
EY LA RiHER RiHER
ERMANE HAENEEE  WEIEEH
(AREEER) (AR®EER) (AREEER)
30% used to construct Phase | of 30% ARERARTLESMNEMNEEE L~
our Bazhou Production Base located
in Bazhou, Hebei Province 216.1 53.1 152.8
25% used for potential strategic 25% RNBERMRBIENEKE
acquisition opportunities in the future 180.0 0.0 12.0
25% used to promote our products 25% RRERRANERTTE
and brand 180.1 9.2 53.2
10% used to enhance our research 10% ARESEMNHEE D
and development capabilities 720 9.0 28.0
10% used for working capital 10% AREEESR-REERR
and general corporate purposes 72.0 4.1 72.0
Total ait 7202 76.0 318.0

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had unused
net proceeds from the Global Offering of approximately RMB402.2
million. Regarding the net proceeds that had not been utilized as
of 31 December 2018, the Company intends to use them in the
same manner and proportions as stated in the Prospectus. The
completion time of using the net proceeds will be determined
based on the future business development of the Company.
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Mr. Wong Yat Tung (“Mr. Wong”) of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as SW Corporate
Services Group Limited), external service provider, and Mr. Sun
Shengfeng (“Mr. Sun”), the executive Director and chief financial
officer of the Company, have been engaged by the Company
as joint company secretaries effective on 12 March 2016. Mr.
Wong resigned as joint company secretary of the Company
and ceased to act as authorized representative of the Company
effective on 31 May 2018. Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, has been
engaged by the Company as joint company secretary effective on
31 May 2018. Ms. Chan has been engaged by the Company as
one of the authorized representatives effective on 31 May 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Sun and Ms. Chan
have undertaken over 15 hours of professional training to update
their skill and knowledge.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng, the executive Director and chief financial
officer, is the primary corporate contact person of the joint
company secretary, Ms. Chan.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to the Shareholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s liability to
continue as a going concern.
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The Board of the Company presents this directors’ report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

We are a leading and fast-growing compound condiment manufacturer
in China primarily focused on the hot pot condiment market. We are
the sole supplier of hot pot soup flavoring products for Haidilao Group
in China. We employ a distributor model to sell our products, and our
physical distribution network is supplemented by e-commerce channels
and third-party catering companies, which have recently experienced
significant development. The Group is also expanding its sales network
in overseas markets.

The principal activities of the Group are researching and developing,
manufacturing, distributing and selling high-quality hot pot condiments,
Chinese-style compound condiments and convenient ready-to-eat
food products. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income of this
annual report.

The Board resolved to propose to the Shareholders in the forthcoming
AGM on Tuesday, 21 May 2019 for the distribution of a final dividend
of RMB14.83789 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018. The final dividend is expected to be paid on or about Friday, 14
June 2019 to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the register
of members of the Company on Wednesday, 29 May 2019, in an
aggregate amount of RMB155.3 million. Subject to the consideration
and approval of the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be
paid in Hong Kong dollars based on the average benchmark exchange
rate of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars as announced by the
People’s Bank of China in the five working days prior to but excluding
the date of the Board Meeting, that is HK$17.378 cents per Share.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the issued shares of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 18 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes In Equity of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has distributable reserves of
RMB1,014.9 million in total available for distribution.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group made charitable
donations of RMBO0.2 million.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group’s financial summary for the last five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-Year Performance Review” of this annual
report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has recorded no bank loans and
other borrowings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 8
to the Financial Statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the
Latest Practicable Date.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately
HK$720.2 million. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report - Use of Proceeds from the Global
Offering” of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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Overview and performance of the Year

Business review and financial review are provided in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this annual
report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is our corporate and social responsibility to promote a
sustainable and environmental-friendly environment. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our corporation in a sustainable way.

The Group has undergone a series of effective energy-saving
and pollutant-reducing measures such as conserving water and
electricity, reducing the creation and emission of pollutants during
the production process and optimizing production lines.

Additionally, we have adopted a set of emergency planning,
response and control procedures as countermeasures for
unexpected environmental pollution accidents to minimize
our impact on the environment and the adverse effect on our
business. We incurred RMB2.92 million (2017: RMB1.34 million)
in environmental compliance costs for the year ended 31
December 2018. Such environmental compliance costs relate to
expenditures in implementing environmental protection policies,
and for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not
incurred any fines as a result of environmental pollution.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Corporate Governance Code for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
has also complied with other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group. Please
refer to the section headed “Regulations” in the Prospectus for
details.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

Relationship with Haidlilao Group and its Affiliates

One group of the primary customers of the Company is Haidilao
Group and its affiliates. We are the sole supplier of hot pot soup
flavoring products to Haidilao Group in China. The hot pot soup
flavoring products that we sell to Haidilao Group for use in its
hot pot restaurants are customized products meeting Haidilao
Group’s specific requirements. In addition, our retail products
are displayed and sold directly to consumers in Haidilao hot pot
restaurants. In general, Haidilao Group makes purchase orders
based on customer demands. We have the right to arrange
production ahead of time and stock the finished products in
anticipation of peak seasons. We also sell retail and customized
condiment products to Shuhai Supply Chain and Youdingyou, our
affiliated companies.

EEEHE

BFHEBERER

REEBR(APEE)ERKERE
XEBR-—BHETLRAMRG - EmR
Bl - B RPEMRIIREEELT
ARE - "EBT-—HEBFTHHEE
BREARZENBBEERAN -
BEABRESHBRERNESR -
B o

BENEHEATHEIERRE

BB 5 B R R 8 2 Al B R

RRABAHEF-ATBEEFRBEY
SEREBBEAR RMRBER
SEETENXBENEmRBRM
fEm - R BEEEEHEEHRR
KBEEEANABENERER
EREBEBEEARRRNER
Eme Wt RMNBEERNE
RENABEBER SEEEAHER
EHE EEMS  BEEEER
BEFERRHBEIE - RAHA
BIEEMZHRRELEERMER
B ERMBETERERFS -
BT ERMOEELQEDFHEHE
ENESBHETERERARS o

77



78

ESERE

Relationship with our distributors

The other group of the Company’s primary customers is the
distributors, who in turn resell our products to sub-distributors
and retailers, including hypermarkets, supermarkets, grocery
stores, neighborhood stores and butcher shops across China.
As at 31 December 2018, we had an extensive distribution
network covering 31 provincial regions of China and the Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions and 42 overseas countries and
markets.

1. Management of Our Distributors

Our distributors are typically regional distributors primarily
involved in the distribution of food and condiment products
with well-established local distribution networks. We select
our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications and distribution capabilities.
The distribution capabilities we consider include breadth
and quality of sales network, reputation, creditworthiness
and financial conditions, and capabilities in personnel,
warehousing, logistics, facilities and transportation.

We have a seller-buyer relationship with our distributors. The
ownership of the products, as well as all risks and rewards
associated therewith are transferred to them upon delivery
and acceptance. In general, our sales to our distributors
are made on a payment-before-delivery basis according
to our distribution agreements with our distributors with
certain exceptions during our peak seasons. We formulate
a monthly production plan based on historical sales and
market demand. Upon receipt of purchase orders, we will
first deliver the products previously prepared based on the
relatively conservative monthly plan and further produce and
deliver the shortfall, if any. Due to our effective production
and inventory management, our warehouse time of finished
products is approximately 7 days for retail products and 30
days for customized products sold to related parties. Once
the products are delivered to the distributors, they cannot be
returned except for defective products.
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Distributors Performance and Inventory Management

We closely monitor the performance of our distributors. For
example, our sales personnel conduct inspections of our
distributors from time to time to monitor their sales, sales
prices, marketing activities, storage conditions, logistics
facilities, staff quality, quality control and inventory levels.
Generally, we require our distributors to report to us their
inventory records every two weeks to cross-check with our
internal data base. Our staff also conduct monthly inventory
checks at randomly selected distributors. When we notice
that our distributors have excessive inventories or their
sales volumes drop significantly, we may make inquiries and
adopt necessary measures such as suspending the supply
of relevant products. We prohibit our distributors from selling
any expired products. Through visiting the retailers and sub-
distributors and verifying the two-dimensional code that we
implanted on our products, we also monitor whether our
distributors distribute our products within their designated
geographic regions and whether they sell any counterfeit
products. Through these activities, we ensure that our sales
to distributors reflect genuine market demand and our
distributors are complying with the terms and conditions of
their distribution agreements. If we discover non-compliance
issues, we inform the relevant distributor and request the
distributor to cease the non-compliant activities within a
specified period of time. Our distributors are also liable for
breaches of their distribution agreements, and we can claim
compensation from them for relevant breaches. We can
terminate the distribution agreements if they breach material
provisions stipulated therein.
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We provide sales rebate as an incentive to our third-party
distributors when they achieve or exceed the sales targets
set out in their distribution agreements, which are negotiated
and determined based on various factors such as past
performance and market conditions. If a distributor achieves
or exceeds its sales target, we will grant the rebate by
providing certain discount for such distributor’s purchases
in the next year. Such sales rebates are deducted from our
revenue for each of the relevant periods. We do not impose
minimum annual purchase requirement in the distribution
agreements. If a distributor fails to achieve its sales target,
then it will not be entitled to the sales rebate as described
above.

Relationship with Third-party Catering Service Providers

Leveraging our experience in providing customized services to
Haidilao Group, we provide customized compound condiment
products to third-party catering service providers, primarily hot
pot restaurants, spicy stir-fry pot restaurants and barbecue
restaurants.

We use a standardized agreement for these services. Our
customers will discuss their requirements with us before placing
orders. Following our agreement on the detailed requirements
of the customized condiment products, packaging requirements
and purchase prices, our customers will pay an advance payment
equal to 50% of the total purchase price for our manufacturing
and pay the remainder before delivery. Almost all of our
customers are not allowed to return any products after completion
of inspection and acceptance. Our customers are required to
use the customized condiment products only for their provision
of catering services and may not resell the condiment products
to other parties. Typically if the third-party catering service
providers consume the Company’s retail products, then they
are the Company’s own product formula. But if it is customized
condiment, then it will be the same arrangements as the sales
to Haidilao Group, i.e., the Company will not own the intellectual
property right of the product formula.

As an increasing number of service providers intend to take
advantage of the high quality and consistent products offered by
large and reputable manufacturers, we believe there is significant
growth potential for us in providing customized services to third-
party catering service providers.
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Relationship with Our Suppliers

Our raw materials are generally available from various suppliers.
To maintain high standards of product quality and food safety,
we place strong emphasis on sourcing high-quality raw materials
from large suppliers with good reputations. We minimize our
reliance on any single source of supply by maintaining at least
two suppliers for each type of raw material. We also implement
various measures to monitor the performance of our suppliers,
including sample examination and on-site inspections.

We usually enter into supply agreements with our suppliers on an
annual basis. Our suppliers are required to provide raw materials
adhering to the quality requirement under the supply agreements
and are responsible for any liabilities caused by product defects.
Our supply agreements do not have an automatic renewal clause.

Relationship with Our Employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of the
Group. The objective of the Group’s human resources management
is to reward and recognize outstanding employees by providing
competitive remuneration packages and implementing a sound
performance appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to
promote career development and progression within the Group by
providing adequate training and opportunities.

Relationship with Shareholders

We recognize the importance of protecting the interests of the
Shareholders and of having effective communication with them.
We believe communication with the Shareholders is a two-way
process and have thrived to ensure the quality and effectiveness
of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue with the
Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and feedback from
the Shareholders. This has been done through general meetings,
corporate communications, interim and annual reports and results
announcements.
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Principal Risk and Uncertainties

Risk of Quality and Safety

Food safety and quality control are the top priority in the
production and operation for food processing enterprises. If our
quality control system is not sufficiently implemented, quality or
food safety issues may arise, which will bring a material adverse
impact on the company’s brand, reputation and financial position.

Response measures: The Group has passed the Hazard Analysis
Critical Control Point (HACCP) System Certification and the 1ISO9001
Quality Assurance System Certification. From the process of raw
materials import to products delivery, strict implementation has
been made in accordance with the requirements of such systems
to ensure food safety and product quality. At the same time,
according to our “Food Safety Risk Assessment Criteria”, the Group
will conduct comprehensive risk assessments for food safety and
quality under three major aspects: regulatory risk, product risk and
operational risk. The Group will identify risk points through such
risk assessments and track the effectiveness of risk rectification to
ensure that risk control of the Group’s operation is in place.

Risk of New Products

Due to the large number of new products launched by the Group,
such new products may face the risk of withdrawing from the market
if there are no comprehensive and appropriate marketing strategies
and channel support. As certain new products belong to emerging
markets, if the standards for such new products are not properly
regulated within the industry and the manufacturers are of vastly
different qualities, the market environment for such new products may
be damaged. Due to the rapid changes in the condiment market, if the
Group fails to conduct in-depth analysis and timely response to new
competing products and related environment, it may lead to a decline
in the market share of the Group’s new products, which will in turn
affect the results of operations of the Group.

Response measures: The Company will further improve the research
mechanism before launching the products, and regularly follow up and
analyze the performance of newly launched products, react promptly
to market changes, optimize product mix timely, and formulate long-
term and effective marketing plans and promotion strategies.
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Risk of Connected Transactions

As connected transactions account for a relatively high proportion
of the Group’s revenue, on one hand, the sales revenue of the
Group may be negatively affected if the profitability of related
parties is substantially declined or the brand is damaged; on the
other hand, the Group shall comply with the pricing principles and
approved annual caps of the transactions with related parties,
otherwise the Group will be exposed to non-compliance risks in
corporate governance.

Response measures: At present, the Group has established a
comprehensive internal control system to ensure that the terms
of connected transactions are fair and reasonable, and the actual
amount incurred from connected transactions is controlled
within the relevant annual caps. Meanwhile, the Group will also
upgrade and develop diversified product portfolio by continuously
expanding and deepening its sales channels, and further
improving third-party sales revenue in order to reduce the Group’s
reliance on related parties.
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The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure
that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report.

The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Dang Chunxiang

Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Ms. Shu Ping

Mr. Guo Qiang

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

Mr. Pan Di has resigned from his positions as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 26 March 2019 for for business affairs
which do not compete with the business of the Company.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting
(provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years) and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Mr. Shi Yonghong, Mr. Sun Shengfeng and Mr. Qian
Mingxing will retire from the Board by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Guo
Qiang, who was appointed to fill up causal vacancy on the Board shall
retire from office as Director, and being eligible, offer himself for re-
election at the AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Ms. Shu Ping was appointed as an executive director and became a
member of the remuneration committee in place of Mr. Gou Yiqun with
effect from 21 March 2018 as Mr. Gou would like to devote more time
for business affairs which do not compete with the business of the
Company.

Mr. Shi Yonghong was re-designated as an executive director and was
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company in place of
Ms. Dang Chunxiang who was in turn appointed as the vice president
of the Company with effect from 9 December 2018 as due to internal
adjustment of personnel responsibilities of the Group.

Mr. Qian Mingxing became a member of the audit committee in place
of Mr. Shi Yonghong with effect from 9 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management”, during the year ended 31
December 2018, there has been no change in the information of the
Directors as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report
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The executive Directors and non-executive Directors have each entered
into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which each of
them agrees to act as an executive Director or a non-executive Director
(as the case may be) for an initial term of three years from 7 March
2016, or from 21 March 2018 for Ms. Shu Ping, 9 December 2018 for
Mr. Shi Yonghong and 26 March 2019 for Mr. Guo Qiang (subject to re-
election as and when required under the Articles of Association) until
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the service
contract or by either party giving to the other not less than one month’s
prior notice in writing.

The independent non-executive Directors have each signed a letter of
appointment with the Company and have been appointed for a term of
three years from 20 June 2016. The appointment may be terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.

None of the Directors have an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

We have received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye
Shujun, the confirmation of their respective independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has duly reviewed the
confirmation of independence of each of these Directors. We consider
that the independent non-executive Directors have been independent
from the date of their appointments to 31 December 2018 and remain
so as of the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:

Directors’ Report
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Mr. Shi Yonghong Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of controlled 177,443,492 (L) 16.95% (L)

HKREED

Ms. Shu Ping?

Fiute

Mr. Zhang Yong®

RELLQ

Ms. Dang Chunxiang®

BHEBLLO
Mr. Sun Shengfeng®
BEslETE©

(L) denotes a long position

corporation, interest of spouse, beneficial owner
and Beneficiary of a trust

SRGANALA - SREEEER  REOES -
ERBAARGASHEA

Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of
controlled corporation, beneficial owner
and Beneficiary of a trust

PREANEILA - ZEFEERS - BREEA
REEFAZHEA

Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of
controlled corporation, beneficial owner
and Beneficiary of a trust

2REEANEILA - ZEFEERS - BREEA
REEFAZHEA

Beneficiary of a trust, beneficial owner

EAENZaA BREEA

Beneficiary of a trust, beneficial owner

EENZRA  BRBEEA

372,847,021 (L)

372,847,021 (L)

1,160,000 (1)

620,000 (L)
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Notes:

(1)

@

3

“)

Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the SL Trust, which indirectly holds the
entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd, which in turn

holds a total of 177,243,492 Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Shi

Yonghong and Ms. Li Hajyan are deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd are interested.

Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li Haiyan and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Li Haiyan is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li Haiyan is the spouse of Mr.
Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested for the purpose of the
SFO.

200,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Shi Yonghong pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 9 December 2018, all of which had been vested.

Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the ZYSP Trust, which holds the entire
share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, which in turn holds 372,547,021
Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping
are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is
interested.

Mr. Zhang Yong is the spouse of Ms. Shu Ping and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Shu Ping is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Shu Ping is the spouse of Mr.
Zhang Yong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Zhang Yong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

100,000 and 200,000 RSUs were granted to Ms. Shu Ping and Mr. Zhang
Yong pursuant to the RSU Scheme on 9 December 2018, respectively, all

of which had been vested.

1,010,000 and 150,000 RSUs were granted to Ms. Dang Chunxiang
pursuant to the RSU Scheme on 28 December 2016 and 9 December
2018, respectively. 352,000 shares had been vested.

500,000 and 120,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Sun Shengfeng pursuant
to the RSU Scheme on 28 December 2016 and 9 December 2018,
respectively. 220,000 shares had been vested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company has or is deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or which will be required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which will be
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2018, the followings are the persons, other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

EEEHE

BREXFIREES - BE2018F 128
31 B ARRAEEIRSTHAERAE
RAFEEAEBEEE(EERES R
ERPIEXVER) B G - HERAD NE
BRETHEZRSAHRARERRERS
REIERGIZEXVERSE 7R 87 &R A5 A A
BARARBRANEMERZILR (2
REEREFSZRAERIINEEHERX
WEFRWRBEENEERXR) » =
RI5E 25 I B 6 R ) 56 352 1R #% A R 8%
RARBMEFENECTHANEAER
FARR  IRBREFAKAANEERLD
AR B PRV E AR TOXR

H E£2018F12A318 BRA R AE
EHBRSTHRAEN  THALTEEE
REZBFRBERMAEXVEE2RES
DR EENERQNTREERFTHAR
AARDBEERDOERILEHA
T RIREEF R E 55 5 336 F A
AR BAFENECMATC SRR SR
BEMAL:

89



90

ESERE

Name of Shareholder

REEE

Capacity/Nature of Interest
St/ BHHEE

Approximate

Percentage of

Total number of Shareholding
shares (%)

REE HORRED (%)

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited

ZYSP YIHAI Ltd™

Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited®
Li Haiyan®

FEEzLe

Twice Happiness Limited®

LHY YIHAI Ltd®

SYH YIHAI Ltd®

JLJH YIHAI Ltd®

Vistra Trust (HK) Limited®

UBS Group AG“

(L) denotes along position

Notes:

Trustee (other than a bare trustee)
CEINE 20 EIN)
Beneficial owner

BERlRA

Trustee (other than a bare trustee)
CEINE E:E LS H N

Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of

controlled corporation and interest of spouse

2RETAVA  ZREZERENEENESD

Interest of controlled corporation

REFEEER

Beneficial owner

BERBEA

Beneficial owner

BERlRA

Beneficial owner and nominee for
another person

BERBAEARS—BALHREA

Trustee (other than a bare trustee)

CEINE =0 SE AN

Person having a security interest in share

RBROFARREZNAL

Interest of controlled corporation

REFEERER

Unlisted derivatives

FEMITETR

(1) ZYSP Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping as the settlors and protectors on 1 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is wholly owned
by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the ZYSP Trust. Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (as founders of the ZYSP Trust) and UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are taken to be interested in the Shares held by
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd for the purpose of the SFO.

372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
177,443,492 (L) 16.95% (L)
177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
76,148,000 (L) 7.27% ()
76,148,000 (L) 7.27% (L)
2,461,000 (L) 0.24% (L)
63,050,895 (L) 6.02% (L)
7,000 (L) 0.00% (L)
LHRKRFR
it -
(1)  ZYSPIEit BB LLEREFL L LA

ERFARREANE HEEEEF 7z
R2016 F6 A1 HK B2 ST -
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd#9 = &8 8 X B UBS
Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited . ZYSP 15 &%
WETANEBHGEEREE - RELER
EFEL T+ (EBZYSP 157LHIEIZA) R
UBS Trustees (B.V.1,) Limited 5t &3 57
BEFRPIM 5 #HETERZYSP YIHAI Ltd 73
BRI R -
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SL Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms.
Li Haiyan as the settlors and protectors on 2 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
is wholly owned by Twice Happiness Limited and ultimately owned by
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of the SL Trust.
Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan (as founders of the SL Trust), Twice
Happiness Limited and Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited are taken
to be interested in the Shares held by SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li
Haiyan and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the Shares
in which Ms. Li Haiyan is interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li
Haiyan is the spouse of Mr. Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested
in the same number of the Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested
for the purpose of the SFO.

Vistra Trust (HK) Limited is the trustee and JLJH YIHAI Ltd is the nominee
to administer the RSU Scheme. JLJH YIHAI Ltd holds the Shares
underlying the RSU granted by us for the benefit of eligible participants
pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

During the reporting period, 3,214,000 Shares were vested pursuant
the RSU Scheme. Among which, 1,072,000 Shares were vested and
transferred to the respective grantees, and 2,142,000 Shares were vested
but the transfer to the respective grantees was not completed as at 31
December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, 76,148,000 Shares were at
held by JLJH YIHAI Ltd.

UBS Group AG is interested in 2,461,000 shares as person having
a security in share and 63,050,895 shares as interest of corporation
controlled by it via secured wholly owned subsidiaries. UBS Group AG is
also interested in 7,000 Shares as unlisted derivatives.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company are not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EEEHE

2) SLIGTEBHKELLERZFHL LU
HERTARREANWEHABELS
Flaz R2016 F6 H2A RV B2 # 15
i ° SYH YIHAI Ltd K LHY YIHAI Ltd
Y2 EBFRA /1 Twice Happiness Limited
2 & # B R H Cititrust Private Trust
(Cayman) Limited X SL 15 7T #9 Z 7T A
BRAIER o KL SLEREGH
ZL(FERBSLIFFERBIZA) - Twice
Happiness Limited K Cititrust Private
Trust (Cayman) Limited 5 3& % R i &
1% 6 i = # & 1E RSYH YIHAI Ltd &
LHY YIHAI Ltd #5 & RIIR (7 HE B 25 o
WK 2258 4 25 2GR L 1+ BB B I B 7%
FRERGIN S HBEBREGHL L
HEERmIIERR G E FHEEER -
ZEFRE L T B MK RS E BB 80 5 7
FREEKGIT ZH BB K ELE
HEREZIEER D EE PR EZ -

(3)  Vistra Trust (HK) Limited 5 F 5T A K
JLJH YIHAI Ltd 2% EFEZ RHIMR (7 E
FEIBILEA o JLUH YIHAI Ltd 1R1EZ
RHER D E 1B BE RS HERF
IR E PR L SR Z R EN
HIFEEEIR 17

R IR & B 321400008 R 7 1R
BEERARGENEEE  EF
1,072,000 RIRG EFRBREZTFEH
HIRIEA » 12,142,000 R IR 15 C 5518
BEEFEEHABAR-E—NE
FtoA=+—HERTZHE - R=F—/
FFZH=4+—H » JLJH YIHAI Ltd#¥
F 76,148,000 IRIZ 15 °

(4)  UBS Group AG LIEBRIRT HHEBE1E
RIEZHIA R 2,461,000 R IR HEH
o B ZEBEEREENE L R
HZEH) B P HE 63,050,895 1%
BB 17125 - UBS Group AG IV FEL T
PTE T AR 7,000 R IR (0 B 1R ©

BREXFTIREE S BIE2018F 128
31 B XRARESERBESTHAELT
%u,uﬁcﬂﬂmxi(B%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%?—%‘
THABIMEERERSRPE KRGS
XV*B FOREIDEHREBANERD

KRR RAEBRDOERS
mﬁ* RIRBEEF R ERGIEXVIDE
336 R B BFEMNE MR
HHARE -
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this annual report was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of the shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such
right.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Our History, Reorganization
and Corporate Structure — Reorganization” in the Prospectus and
save for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors
and the Controlling Shareholders was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

We have received annual written confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, consisting of Mr. Zhang Yong, Ms. Shu Ping and
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, of the compliance with the provisions of the Non-
competition Undertaking by such Controlling Shareholders and their
close associates.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the year
ended 31 December 2018 based on the information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Controlling Shareholders, and were
satisfied that our Controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the
Non-competition Undertaking.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not issued any
convertible bonds.

BREXESRESTHRAESRKRYG - 18
RGO REEEHIERNER XA ]
—EFIEEN REBZE20185F127
31 HEFERERNFHRAHBE A0
Al A E AR ERNZHHE
- A URESEBREAQANEM
HtE AR R0 R EEE T
WA THESEEFEARENES
18 AT 89 F W RAE R AR EE
RABREMEMEABENRASE
BESHCITEEMZSER -

BRERERGTIES - EARARRE -
EA | -HAREEREEEERAEE
RN BE2018F12A31HLILF
B ZEERERERBELEMERE
BXBELERFAARELERFZER
hEARERS o

RPEEEERRR(BERELE - &
L+ K ZYSP YIHAI Ltd) RUIZRR R R &%
HERBMBABTRBRAREI 2GR
BERMBHNFEERERS -

B ITESCIRBERBRRTIRM
FEATHERRERES  BEREZE
2018 F 12 A31HIEFETHRBABN
EHREBER  WERERRREZAEST
THRFAETE

BEAFHRAY  ARRLERITEM
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not entered
into any loan agreement which contain covenants requiring specific
performance of the Controlling Shareholders.

Among the related party transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
Financial Statements, the following transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the
Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that for the related party transactions falling under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
it had complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please see below the information
required to be disclosed in compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

1. Chengdu Lease Agreement

On 1 December 2015 and 5 January 2016, Sichuan Haidilao
and Chengdu Yueyihai, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered
into the Chengdu Lease Agreement, including the supplemental
agreement, pursuant to which Chengdu Yueyihai agreed to lease
from Sichuan Haidilao a parcel of land together with properties
and fixtures thereon to be used for production and warehousing.
Sichuan Haidilao is our connected person and therefore the
transactions under the Chengdu Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Chengdu Lease Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for a further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

EEEHE

BEAFHAN  AADLETLEA
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REBHRERMES FIRENBEEL RS
B THRZRE LR R 14A31 1%
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1. HEEER
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EERZEM)EHEEMA —EL
MERHE FNMEREEUELEE
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As the Chengdu Lease Agreement has expired on 31 December
2018, Sichuan Haidilao and Chengdu Yueyihai entered into the
new Chengdu Lease Agreement on 6 July 2018 for a term of two
years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. The nature of
the new Chengdu Lease Agreement is similar to the Chengdu
Lease Agreement, including the supplemental agreement. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 July 2018 for
details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Chengdu Lease
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB4,000,000, RMB4,300,000 and RMB4,500,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 35 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount incurred
in accordance with the Chengdu Lease Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB2,869,000.

Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Sichuan Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement, pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed
to provide warehousing facilities and related services, including
warehouse storage, sorting process management, stock-taking,
and other logistics services, to the Group in connection with
storage of our products. Sichuan Haidilao is our connected person
and therefore the transactions under the Haidilao Warehouse
Storage Service Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has
an initial term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016
and is renewable for further term of three years from time to time,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations. Please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Prospectus for details.

As the Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement
has expired on 31 December 2018, Yihai Shanghai and Sichuan
Haidilao entered into the new Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse
Storage Service Agreement on 6 July 2018 for a term of two years
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. The nature of the new
Sichuan Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement is similar
to the Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 July 2018 for
details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB2,200,000,
RMB2,800,000 and RMB3,600,000, respectively. Please also refer
to note 35 to the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB163,000.
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Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement, pursuant to which Shuhai Supply Chain Group agreed
to provide warehousing facilities and related services, including
warehouse storage, sorting process management, stock-taking,
and other logistics services, to the Group in connection with
storage of our products. Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected
person and therefore the transactions under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
is renewable for further term of three years from time to time,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations. Please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Prospectus for details.

As the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has
expired on 31 December 2018, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai
Shanghai entered into the new Shuhai Warehouse Storage
Service Agreement on 6 July 2018 for a term of two years from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. The nature of the new
Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement is similar to the
Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 6 July 2018 for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have been revised to
RMB3,000,000, RMB6,000,000 and RMB9,000,000, respectively.
Please also refer to note 35 to the Financial Statements and the
Company’s announcement dated 18 September 2017 for details.
The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with
the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB5,390,000.
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Master Sales Agreement and Supplemental Master Sales
Agreements

On 24 June 2016, Sichuan Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and
Yihai Shanghai, our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries, entered into the Master Sales
Agreement, pursuant to which we agreed to supply to Haidilao
Group both Haidilao Customized Products and Haidilao Retail
Products. Sichuan Haidilao and Singapore Haidilao are our
connected persons and therefore the transactions under the
Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Master Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
and the circular of the Company dated 18 October 2017 for
details.

On 18 September 2017, Sichuan Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and
Yihai Shanghai, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Supplemental Master Sales Agreement, pursuant
to which we agreed to sell Small Hot Pot Products to the Haidilao
Group. The transactions under the Supplemental Master Sales
Agreement therefore constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 22 March 2018, (i) Sichuan Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai
entered into a termination agreement, pursuant to which the
rights and obligations between Yihai Shanghai and Sichuan
Haidiao under the Master Sales Agreement were discharged and
terminated, and (ii) Yihai Shanghai and Singapore Haidilao entered
into the Second Supplemental Master Sales Agreement pursuant
to which, among others, the Group remains to be the sole supplier
of Haidilao Customized Products to the Haidilao Group for use
in its hot pot restaurants in the PRC. Upon fulfillment of certain
requirements relating to mass production and standardization
and upon confirmation of the types of products required, the
Group shall be recognized as the sole supplier of the Haidilao
Customized Products to the Haidilao Group for use in its overseas
hot pot restaurants (including those in Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan). However, if the Group is unable to satisfy the quantity of
the products demanded, or the quality of the Haidilao Customized
Products supplied by the Group does not fulfil the specifications
of the Haidilao Group, and the matter cannot be resolved within a
reasonable period (not longer than 30 days) after consultation with
the Group, the Haidilao Group may engage other suppliers.
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The Supplemental Master Sales Agreement commenced from 6
November 2017 and would expire on 31 December 2018. Please
refer to the circulars of the Company dated 18 October 2017 and
12 April 2018 for details.

As the Master Sales Agreement, Supplemental Master Sales
Agreement and Second Supplemental Master Sales Agreement
have expired on 31 December 2018, Singapore Haidilao and Yihai
Shanghai entered into the new Haidilao Master Sales Agreement
on 6 July 2018 for a term of two years from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2020. The nature of the new Master Sales Agreement
is similar to the Master Sales Agreement, the Supplemental
Master Sales Agreement and Second Supplemental Master Sales
Agreement, the Served Supplemental Master Sales Agreement.
Please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 6 July 2018 and 19 July 2018, respectively, for details.

The annual caps receivable under the Master Sales Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Master Sales Agreement)
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have
been revised to RMB598,000,000, RMB994,800,000 and
RMB1,569,700,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 35
to the Financial Statements and the Company’s circular dated
18 October 2017 for details. The aggregate transaction amount
incurred in accordance with the Master Sales Agreement and
Supplemental Master Sales Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB1,163,828,000.

Shuhai Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Sales Agreement,
pursuant to which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring
products, hot pot dipping sauce products and other compound
condiment products to Shuhai Supply Chain Group for sales and
distribution to its customers who are catering service providers.
Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected person and therefore
the transactions under the Shuhai Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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The Shuhai Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

As the Shuhai Sales Agreement has expired on 31 December 2018,
Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai entered into the new
Shuhai Sales Agreement on 6 July 2018 for a term of two years
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. The nature of the new
Shuhai Sales Agreement is similar to the Shuhai Sales Agreement.
Please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 6 July 2018 and 19 July 2018, respectively, for details.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Shuhai Sales
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB7,210,000, RMB9,630,000 and RMB12,680,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 35 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount
incurred in accordance with the Shuhai Sales Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB12,232,000.

Youdingyou Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Youdingyou and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Youdingyou Sales Agreement, pursuant to
which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring products, hot
pot dipping sauce products and other compound condiment
products to Youdingyou for use at spicy mixed stew restaurants it
operates. Youdingyou is our connected person and therefore the
transactions under the Youdingyou Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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The Youdingyou Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

The parties renewed the Youdingyou Sale Agreement for a
further term of three years after the expiry of the initial term on
31 December 2018. However, it is anticipated that the sales
of products to Youdingyou pursuant to the Youdingyou Sales
Agreement after 31 December 2018 would not exceed the de
minimis threshold under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Youdingyou Sales
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB8,900,000, RMB16,300,000 and RMB26,400,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 35 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount incurred
in accordance with the Youdingyou Sales Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB35,000.
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Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements

On 18 September 2017, the Joint Venture and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary and for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreements, pursuant to which (i) we agreed to sell hot pot soup
flavouring products to the Joint Venture as raw materials for the
manufacture of Small Hot Pot Products; and (ii) the Joint Venture
agreed to sell Small Hot Pot Products to us. The Joint Venture is
our connected subsidiary and therefore transactions under the
Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements have an initial
term of three years from 6 November 2017 to 31 August 2020
and is renewable for further term of three years from time to
time, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable
laws and regulations. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 18 September 2017 and 6 November 2017 for
details.

As the Framework Sales and Purchase Agreement will expire on
31 August 2020, the Joint Venture and Yihai Shanghai entered into
a new Framework Sales and Purchase Agreement on 6 July 2018
for a term of four months from 1 September 2020 to 31 December
2020. The nature of the new Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreement is similar to the Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreement. Please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 6 July 2018 and 19 July 2018, respectively, for
details.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Framework Sales
and Purchase Agreements for the years ended 31 December
2017, 2018 and 2019 and the eight months ended 31 August
2020 are RMB50,700,000, RMB141,300,000, RMB205,500,000
and RMB178,333,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 35
to the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred in accordance with the Framework Sales and
Purchase Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB104,668,000.
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The Group has followed policies and guidelines when determining the
price and terms of the continuing connected transactions conducted
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The auditor of the Group has reviewed the continuing connected
transactions referred to above and confirmed to the Board that the
continuing connected transactions: (i) have received the approval of the
Board; (ii) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (i)
were entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
the transaction; and (iv) have not exceeded the caps.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions were entered into by the
Group: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement (including the pricing principle and guidelines set out
therein) governing them and on terms that were fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has designated a team of senior management from
business operation, legal, risk control and finance departments
and Board office to monitor the continuing connected transactions
and ensure that the continuing connected transactions with the
abovementioned connected persons are on arm’s length basis and that
the annual caps are not exceeded. Such team of senior management
continuously traces and regularly monitors the progress of the
continuing connected transactions and reports to management of the
Company. They review the continuing connected transactions with the
finance department to ensure that annual caps are not exceeded. They
will also communicate with the Audit Committee, management and
the Board of Directors, monthly or as needed, to report the progress
of the continuing connected transactions, and request for approval
of new changes of existing transaction terms. The heads of different
departments of the Company will be informed on a periodic basis in
relation to the terms and pricing policies of the continuing connected
transactions as well. The Audit Committee has also assigned the
independent internal audit team the task to ensure that the Company’s
internal control measures in respect of the continuing connected
transactions remain effective and complete. With these measures, the
independent non-executive Directors could therefore assess and give
the confirmations in the preceding paragraph.
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Save for disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2018,
we have not entered into any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, there were no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or its connected
entity (within the meaning of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and subsisting
during the year ended 31 December 2018 or as of 31 December 2018.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies,
and any of its Controlling Shareholders or subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 33 of the Articles of Association and subject to
Cayman Islands Companies Law, each Director shall be indemnified,
out of the assets of the Company, against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/
her favor, or in which he/she is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Directors’ Report
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As at 31 December 2018, we had 1,976 employees. The remuneration
of our employees includes salaries and allowances. We provide
training to our staff to enhance technical and product knowledge.
The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed regularly.
The Group follows closely the demand of business development and
continuously improves its incentive system and implements competitive
remuneration policy.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to the Directors.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 37 to the Financial Statements.

In accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group
has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined contribution
plans, including pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
The Group also provides social insurance, including pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and medical
insurance for the employees of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not have
any share option scheme which was required to be disclosed.
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The Company has approved and adopted a RSU Scheme by a
resolution of the Shareholders on 24 February 2016 and a resolution of
the Board on 24 February 2016. The RSU Scheme is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the RSU Scheme does
not involve the grant of options by the Company to subscribe for new
Shares.

The RSUs do not carry any right to vote at general meetings of
the Company. No RSU grantee shall enjoy any of the rights of a
Shareholder by virtue of the grant of an award of RSUs (the “Award”)
pursuant to the RSU Scheme, unless and until such Shares underlying
the Award are actually transferred to the RSU grantee upon vesting
of the RSU. Unless otherwise specified by the Board in its entire
discretion, the RSU grantees do not have any rights to any cash or
non-cash income, dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds
of non-cash and non-scrip distributions from any Shares underlying an
Award. Please refer to the section headed “Appendix IV — Statutory
and General Information” of the Prospectus for details.

The Company approved and granted 9,140,000 RSUs among which
1,510,000 were granted to two Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme
on 28 December 2016. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2016 for details. As at 31 December
2018, 620,000 RSUs out of the 9,140,000 RSUs that were granted
on 28 December 2016 have been cancelled due to resignation of our
employees and 20% of the remaining RSUs (i.e. 1,704,000 RSUs) have
been vested in accordance with the vesting period as set out in the
announcement.

The Company approved and granted 1,510,000 RSUs among which
770,000 were granted to five Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme on
9 December 2018. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 December 2018 for details. As at 31 December 2018, all of
the 1,510,000 RSUs have been vested in accordance with the vesting
period as set out in the announcement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no RSU had been
granted or agreed to be granted by the Company pursuant to the RSU
Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the respective percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers in aggregate was 5.2% and 24.0%; and the respective
percentage of the total sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers in aggregate was 28.4% and
45.4%.

Our largest customer was Xinpai Shanghai and second largest
customer was Sichuan Xinpai Catering Management Co., Ltd.* (E9JI| %t
IREEEEABR D A), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haidilao
International Holding Ltd (stock code: 6862). Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping are the controlling shareholders, and Mr. Shi Yonghong and
his spouse are the substantial shareholders of Haidilao International
Holding Ltd.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had a material interest in our five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up
to the date of this annual report.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company’s employees was noted by the Company since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had applied the principles and code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and has complied with
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code for the year
ended 31 December 2018, except for the deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code provision A.2.1. Please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report for details.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
certified public accountants.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND RECORD DATE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
16 May 2019 to Tuesday, 21 May 2019, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
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members of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 15
May 2019 will be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15 May 2019.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Monday, 27 May 2019 to Wednesday, 29 May 2019, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders
to the final dividend. The Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Wednesday, 29 May 2019 will be entitled to the final dividend.
In order to be eligible to entitle to the final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 May 2019.

By order of the Board
Shi Yonghong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 16 April 2019
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Yihai International Holding Limited (hereinafter “Yihai”, “the Group” or
“we”) is pleased to present our report on Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) for the year 2018 (“the Report”). This is the third
consecutive ESG report we have disclosed to the public regarding
our ESG management philosophy and performance of our practices.
We hope that the Report will disclose the concepts and practices on
sustainable development of the Group in a transparent manner and
enhance the mutual understanding and communication of the various
stakeholders of the Group.

The Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEx”). We follow the principles of importance,
quantification, balance and consistency, and strive to fully represent
our current management status and performance results in terms
of environmental, social and governance for the year. This report
should be read together with the “Corporate Governance Report”
in the Group’s Annual Report 2018 to get a more comprehensive
understanding of the Group’s ESG performance results. This report has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide.
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The Report covers the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018, which is the same as the period covered by the annual report of
the Company, and some contents are dated back to previous years.
All data involved in the Report are derived from internal documents or
statistical reports of the Group.

Environmental, Social and Governance Concept

We believe that sustainable and robust ESG performance is essential
to the sustainable development of the Group’s business and the
community where the Group operates. The dynamic combination of
commercial and social needs is bound to embrace more influential
social effects. We are not only committed to achieving sound financial
performance, but also realising greater overall benefits through actively
identifying stakeholders’ expectations, discovering areas where
our business development coheres with environmental and social
demands, exercising prudent management over our ESG risks, and
fully integrating our existing and potential resources to provide more
value-added products and services for the society.

Environmental, Social and Governance Management System

In order to effectively incorporate ESG management concept into the
Group’s strategic decision-making and guide the implementation of
relevant tasks, the Group has set up a management system under
which the Board of Directors is in charge of the development of ESG
strategy and objective, the senior management is in charge of the
implementation of such strategy and objective, and the ESG working
team consisting of a number of departments in the headquarters of the
Group carries out various ESG tasks under the guidance of the senior
management. This management system secures the performance of
ESG responsibilities for the Group.
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Communication with Stakeholders and Substantial Analysis

The Group has maintained effective communication with the
stakeholders through various channels, in an attempt to fully
understand and actively respond to their comments and demands, thus
enabling our business and operations better satisfy their needs and
expectations through continuous enhancement of internal optimisation

and management.

Major Stakeholders
FIEERRA

Top Concerns
TERTHE

R HERERME

TEMEBR

Communication
Channels

BERE

NEEETBEREEE DN

FEERBZERERESFSEELE
» R BT R 30 7E 48 ] FE & A
A AR RERR - FEIINEAEE
fLEREE  REARERBRELELH
o e AR REME -

Our Responses

AEEEE

Governmental regulatory
authorities

HATEBFT

Investors

Implementation of
energy conservation and
emission reduction

R BRI

Improvement of
corporate governance
TERERE

Lawful operations

BIEEHREE

The Group's business
strategies
SEKE B

Return on investment

REEH

Securing the interests of
investors

REREERD

Accuracy and
transparency of
information disclosure

ERRBEEREN

Policy orientation

BRE[

Legislative and
non-legislative documents

MERFEM AN A

On-site and off-site
inspections

Bt B ER

Disclosure of relevant
reports

HERAR & R

Shareholders' Meeting

Disclosure of the Group's
performance results

SEEMREE QTR

Implementing regulatory
policies

EEEBHRESIBR

Accepting relevant
examinations

BEXHEETR

Executing green
operations
BITgeRkE

Optimising corporate
governance system

BIEEREER

Publishing the Group's
performance results on a
regular basis
EHAREBER

Strengthening
management of risk and
internal control

AR IEER

Maintaining and
enhancing our brand
value

HEERIRTTmRMEE
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Communication

Major Stakeholders Top Concerns Channels Our Responses
T EHAE7 TERTHE BERE 7 EE B [ fE
Employees Remuneration and Stafff activities Providing diversified
welfare benefits employees’ activities
== HENER ETEE ZRlLETEY
Occupational health and  Internal communication Developing platforms
safety for learning and
development
BERREZZ AEIS HREBZERRTE
Career development and Fully protecting
trainings employees’ rights
BT E&REI THREE TR
Consumers Product quality and The Group's official Optimising product
safety media platform quality assurance system
HEE EmEEHEZR SEERERTE BILEMEERA
Precautionary measures ~ Customer complaint Improving service quality
for information leakage hotline
FhEiERIRE EFRFER RARBES
Sound customer service  Product marketing Protecting consumers'
channels rights and interests
REEFR® EmHERE REHEE SRR
Suppliers Fair cooperation Regular communication Developing a fair and
impartial procurement
system
fHrEs DNFEE EHEBE DNEAERNERBHE

Honesty and promise
keeping

BIEEL

Coordinated
development

R R

Routine return visits

HEEG
Business meetings

%%é—)\

Cooperation agreements

BIEHE

Attaching importance to
environmental and social
risks

ERBRRET SRR

Realising sustainable
partnership
BERAHESFRF
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Communication

Our Responses

AEEEE

Major Stakeholders Top Concerns Channels

T EAE 7 TEMTHE BERE

Community and the public Charity and public Charitable activities
welfare

HEEAR NEREAZE NBBETH
Community sustainable Voluntary activities
development
HEAEFEER EREERE

Community relations
HEEHR HERE
We conducted substantial analysis on ESG topics in 11 aspects
presented in the ESG Reporting Guide and identified the most material
topics for the current year by referring to the results of stakeholder
surveys in the past two years and considering the Group’s strategy
and business development direction for the year. The analysis
results indicated that topics in relation to “Product Responsibility”,
“Emissions”, “Use of Resources”, “Environmental and Natural
Resources”, and “Health and Safety” had a higher level of materiality;
while those in relation to “Employment”, “Development and Training”,
“Labour Standards”, “Supply Chain Management”, “Anti-corruption”
and “Community Investment” had a lower level of materiality. We have
provided more targeted responses to these topics of higher materiality,
without prejudice to the strict compliance with disclosure requirements
in the ESG Reporting Guide.

Environmental Management

The Group practices sustainable development concepts of low-carbon,
environmental protection, energy saving and emission reduction. While
updating the base of applicable laws and regulations in real time by
identifying latest environmental protection compliance requirements
via official websites and WeChat Official Account of national and local
authorities, the Group also makes continuous improvements to our
safety and environmental protection systems to ensure the Group’s
operational activities are legitimate and in line with regulations.

Carry outing charitable
and voluntary activities

MR NS ERE SR

Caring for returns on
community investment

AEHEREMDE

Community Investment

EMSEBEMFENNBREETL ATE
R BELAFENEBMNEBRER
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In 2018, we identified environment-concerned laws and regulations
newly issued at national and local levels, including the Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, and Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from
Environments Noise. While enhancing our environmental compliance
management system, we have been exploring feasible energy-saving
and emission reduction technologies and procedures during the course
of business. Besides, the Group has also attempted to enhance the
staff’'s awareness of environmental protection to minimise the impact of
our production and operation activities on the surrounding environment.
No violation of laws and regulations or legal actions concerning
environmental protection was reported in 2018.

Improving Safety and Environmental Protection Management System

Based on the applicable laws and regulations identified, we developed
or revised 19 A-class management policies for safe production and
environmental protection, including the Management Policy for
Inspection on Safe Production and Environmental Protection, the
Management Policy on Reward and Penalty for Safe Production
and Environmental Protection and the Environmental Protection
Management Policy to clarify the environmental protection
management duties of departments at different levels and improve the
safe production and environmental protection management system of
the Group. To ensure the implementation of the new system in each
factory, the Group arranged trainings and assessments for employees
at group leader level or above from factories on a regular basis. The
Supply Management Department also conducted compliance audits
for the operation of safety and environmental protection systems in
factories every month, to ensure their production processes are in full
compliance with laws and regulations.

Furthermore, we intensified the localised management in factories
to escalate the management and control of exhaust, waste water,
solid waste and hazardous waste and noise produced by factories
and effectively enforced the energy-saving and emission reduction as
well as environment protecting management measures made by the
Group to further standardise and regulate our practices of environment
management.
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Controlling Emissions

The Group strictly abided by national and local laws, regulations and
standards for emissions, such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Law on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused
by Solid Wastes of the People’s Republic of China, and continuously
enhanced management and control measures for exhaust control,
sewage treatment and solid waste management.

Emission Reduction

Regarding the aspect of exhaust emission control, the Group cleaned
out old and obsolete equipment and introduced new energy-saving
steam boilers that use natural gas as fuel. All factories have been
required to install extraction hoods and oil smoke purifiers for better
purification of smoke. This year, we successfully upgraded low-
NOx emission boilers as planned in factories in Zhengzhou to reduce
NOx emission. In addition, we learnt about leading-edge waste gas
treatment technologies both at home and abroad by technical visits,
attending technology workshops and consulting industry experts and
worked with equipment providers to plan and implement upgrade
project for gas emission control. The Group applied advanced alkaline
solution spray and photolysis equipment to the waste gas treatment
facility in Yihai’s Maanshan factory that started its operation in 2018
to effectively eliminate the smoke generated during the process of
ingredient frying. The upgraded purifier in Zhengzhou factory would be
put into use in March 2019.

Wastewater Treatment

Due to our business nature, sewage mainly represent the wok washing
water discharged by stir-frying workshops. In this regard, all factories
have been equipped with a set of centralised suction and discharge
vacuum system and oil-water separation system to treat wok washing
water before direct discharge of sewage containing waste oil. In
addition, all the factories of the Group have sewage treatment stations.
Waste water produced from factory canteen is firstly pre-treated by
an oil filter and purification tank, and is then, together with domestic
sewage from the factory area, sent to the sewage treatment station in
the factory area for further treatment. Finally, the treated waste water is
discharged into the municipal sewage treatment plant in the industrial
park if it meets the national emission standard.
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Solid Waste Management

The Group expressly stipulates measures for managing solid waste
in the Environmental Protection Management Policy: all factories
must set up storage warehouses and garbage bins and garbage
must be classified into general solid waste and hazardous waste by
designated staff after being collected from the bins. General waste,
such as domestic trash from the factories, is collected for centralised
treatment every day; solid waste residues waste oil collected by oil
smoke purifiers and waste package materials are sent to qualified
professional waste treatment companies for processing. All hazardous
wastes are kept in specialised warehouses, reported to environmental
protection authorities and then treated by qualified third parties as
required, including waste chemical reagents, waste toner cartridges
and ink cartridges and hazardous waste batteries with special symbols.
The Group’s monthly compliance audit for the environment protecting
management system of safe production includes the audit for solid
waste and hazardous waste to ensure compliance. All hazardous
wastes produced by factories of the Group have been treated in line
with laws and regulations this year.

Promoting Energy Efficiency

We have continued to explore practical energy-saving measures in our
production and operation. To integrate energy management and control
into the production and operation, we employed lean staff in the Group
headquarters and lean engineers in factories to analyse energy usage
in each production line as well as guide and support the energy-saving
management and control in each production stage to save energy.
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We also explore and invent energy-saving technology with higher
efficiency. For example, for the stir-frying process of hotpot condiment
in the newly-built Bazhou factory, we heat oil up in a centralised manner
using tube heat exchanger, of which the heat exchange medium is
changed to condensed water from the vapour system for the initial
heating and vapour for second heating. New technology shortens the
heating time for salad oil, lowers energy consumption per unit by about
10%, and increases the efficiency of vapour by about 3% through using
condensed water for heating in the exchanger, effectively enhancing
energy utilisation. To save energy in production lines, the Bazhou
factory adopts SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition)
system to impose centralised control over the production line, enhance
automation level, and optimise production process, successfully
decreasing the energy consumption per unit by about 10%. The widely
used variable voltage and variable frequency technology in this factory
also reduces the consumption of electricity.

In terms of the use of water resources, factories of the Group
introduce evaporative condensers to improve the recycling rate of
indirect cooling water. We also strengthen the routine inspection of
major water pipelines and meters, and appoint personnel responsible
for the daily maintenance of the equipment. In addition, the Group
strengthens efforts on enhancing water-saving, energy-saving and
gas-saving awareness through posting slogans and posters. Through
the promotion of various energy-saving measures, comprehensive
energy consumption per unit product of each factory has declined, and
employees’ awareness on energy-saving and environmental protection
has been enhanced.

Minimising our Impact on Environmental and Natural Resources

Because of the business characteristics of the Group, we have a
limited impact on the environmental and natural resources, but we
are still committed to taking effective management measures in day-
to-day operations to further reduce such impact. When selecting
and procuring raw materials for production, in factories of the Group,
particularly the newly-built Bazhou factory and Maanshan factory
recently put in operation, the Group purchases raw materials from
locations that are as close as possible to the factory or in its vicinity; the
Group deliberates on the logistic distance in the transportation network
to minimise vehicle fuel consumption and exhaust gas emissions, thus
reducing the carbon footprint; the Group also reduces negative impact
on the environment by making innovations in production process to
lower the comprehensive energy consumption per unit, replacing small
packages with big ones, recycling chilli pepper peels for feed, etc.
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Environmental Performance RIZBEIE BN
Emissions and Energy Consumption BEr ) R BEFEADR
Index Unit ¢ 2017 2018°
bt Efy®
Annual revenue Million RMB 1,646.221 2,681.373
2ERA BETARE
Emissions Tonnes 28.12 4.94
BRUNLE i
Stationary sources emission ' Tonnes 28.12 4.94
Bl E R R A 1
NO, emission Tonnes 0.67 0.89
“EasHE ]
S0, emission Tonnes 0.27 0.37
1 7%:.3; ]
Fume emission Tonnes 26.52 2.79
BEHHE W
Smoke and dust Tonnes 0.66 0.89
EE ]
Annual emissions per revenue? Tonnes/million RMB 0.0171 0.0018
BUSEWABRINAE? W/ BETARY
Total waste water discharged® Tonnes 9.07 16.66
Bk @E® W
COD emission Tonnes 3.75 6.88
ZEE(CoD) 1
BOD5 emission Tonnes 0.93 2.36
5A%{tERE (BODS) i i
Suspended solids Tonnes 3.29 5.96
Ammonia and nitrogen Tonnes 0.73 1.06
E=E i
Animal and vegetable oils Tonnes 0.37 0.40
BEMS W
Annual waste water discharged per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 0.0055 0.0062
BUSERABKENES W/ BERARY
Total hazardous waste* Tonnes 0 0
BERENGE" ]
Waste chemical reagent Tonnes 0 0
B2 W
Waste engine oil Tonnes 0 0
Bt ]
Waste mineral oil Tonnes 0 0
R ]
Waste lead-acid accumulators Tonnes 0 0
BHESH W



R HERERERE
Emissions and Energy Consumption (Cont’d) e 2 BEEERL R (48)
Index Unit 8 2017 2018°
b=l B
Waste fluorescent lamps Tonnes 0 0
Others Tonnes 0 0
Hith i
Annual hazardous waste per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 0 0
BUSEWARERENEE W/ BETARY
Total non-hazardous waste’ Tonnes 5,831.35 6,485.69
REMEYLE® ]
Household waste Tonnes 198.25 544.60
£EIR 1
Sludge at sewage treatment stations Tonnes 1,200.00 1,381.00
SIS 1
Production waste Tonnes 4,433.10 4,560.09
LERY ]
Annual non-hazardous waste per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 3.54 242
BUSEWABZERITHE W/ BETARY
Total energy consumption® MWh 38,167.97 52,655.19
RERHAMES ke
Direct energy consumption MWh 30,130.63 40,143.80
ERRRRE KER
Natural gas consumption MWh 29,957.82 40,019.73
AARAFE KR
Petrol consumption MWh 30.52 4261
R KEk
Diesel consumption MWh 142.29 81.46
KmEHRE KRk
Indirect energy consumption MWh 8,037.34 12,511.39
Rl aEiRH KR
Electricity consumption MWh 8,037.34 12,511.39
EHHE KEA
Annual energy consumption per revenue MWh/million RMB 23.19 19.64
SERENWARRERE KRE/BETARY
Municipal water consumption Tonnes 165,529.00 236,680.57
mRERKERE 1
Annual municipal water consumption per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 100.55 88.27
BUSERATRBRKERE W/ BETARY
Total packaging materials consumption’ Tonnes 4,569.19 6,253.80
BRMHERGE’ ]
Annual packing materials consumption per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 2.78 2.33
BUSEWARRITHERE W/ BETARY
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Note:

Waste gases emitted from stationary sources consisting of nitrogen
oxides, sulphur dioxide, fumes and particulates contained in exhausted
gases emitted by factories, which mainly come from the burning of
natural gas. Among others, the nitrogen dioxide emission is calculated
based on the Coefficients on Pollutants Generated from the Combustion
of Coal and Natural Gas, sulphur dioxide emission is calculated based
on the Practical Data Handbook for Environmental Protection, fume
emission is calculated based on the data in monitoring reports prepared
by third parties, and smoke and dust emission is calculated based on the
Coefficients on Pollutants Generated from the Combustion of Coal and
Natural Gas.

Our self-owned vehicles did not consume much petrol and diesel, and
according to the principle of materiality, the data of mobile source
emissions is not disclosed.

The data of COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand) emission, BOD5 (5th
Biochemical Oxygen Demand) emission, suspended solids, ammonia
nitrogen indicator in waste water discharged from stationary sources is
calculated based on total waste water discharged at the outlet of sewage
treatment stations multiplied respectively by the average concentration of
BOD?5, total phosphorus, ammonia and nitrogen at the outlet.

Hazardous waste is handed over to qualified third parties for treatment,
and is calculated based on the data recorded on the hazardous waste
transfer manifests or receipts of waste recyclers during the reporting
period.

Non-hazardous waste includes household waste, sludge at sewage
treatment stations and production waste, and is calculated based on
the data provided by factories, waste pick-up units, or third-party waste
recyclers.

Energy consumption data, including electricity consumption, natural
gas consumption and fuel consumption of group-financed vehicles, is
calculated based on the consumption of electricity and fuel, and the
conversion factors provided in the General Principles for Calculation of
Total Production Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008).

Packaging materials include tabs, inner packaging bags, condiment
product packaging boxes, white boxes, sauce product (including box
body, transparent cover and cover film), sauce product packaging boxes,
trays, small white barrels (including cover, barrel body and handle) and
condiment product rolling films.

The 2018 environmental density data are disclosed using environmental
performance data and the Group’s annual revenue. We recalculated the
environmental density data for 2017 based on the annual revenue data for
2017.

The disclosure scope of environmental performance data in 2018 includes
Chengdu Yueyihai factory, Zhengzhou Shuhai factory and Maanshan Yihai
factory, among which Maanshan Yihai factory is new disclosure scope as
it was officially put into production and operation in 2018.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

BER PR

Index Unit 2017 2018
bt B
Total greenhouse emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2)™ Tonnes 11,133.02 16,798.93
RERRIHES (HE—  HE=)" g
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes 5,902.72 1,879.68
B (8B -) ]
Natural gas Tonnes 5,857.84 7,825.30
Petrol and diesel Tonnes 44.88 54.38
SRR IWE
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes 5,230.30 8,919.25
R (68 2) ]
Outsourced power Tonnes 5,230.30 8,919.25
HMEED W
Annual greenhouse gas emissions per revenue Tonnes/million RMB 6.76 6.27
EEEWNREREHN W/ BERARE
Note: i
10. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide, 10. RERBBFEEE_SE - FRNE
mainly resulted from outsourcing electricity, natural gas consumption, ﬂ:EE—L FERENMNBEESL - RAR
diesel consumption of diesel-powered generators and group-financed HFE - LhBRERRBEXRBIAER
vehicles. Greenhouse gas emissions are measured in carbon dioxide e BRERBRENR_SEREES

equivalents and calculated based on the Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China (2015) issued by National Development
and Reform Commission and the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National
Greenhouse Gas Inventories of Intergovernmental Panel on Climate

Chang.
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Being People-oriented

Employment

Employees are not only our most valuable asset, but also the key for the
planning and long-term development of the Group. When establishing
and developing the Group’s human resources management system,
we have been tracking and referring to national laws and regulations
governing employment and employee rights and interests, such as the
Labour Law of People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection on Minors, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women and Children,
as well as administrative rules at operating sites. Any discrimination
against nationality, age, race, geographical origin or family status in
the recruitment process are forbidden pursuant to the Yihai Employee
Recruitment Management Policy. In addition, employment of child
labour is strictly prohibited, and fool-proof modules have been newly
integrated into our human resource information system to ensure that
the information of candidates under 16 years old cannot be entered.
Further, we have specified the working hours required for the position
in the employee labour contract, and the system of flexible working
hours was introduced in the Yihai Employee Attendance, Leave and
Welfare Policy, to prohibit any forced labour. The Group confirms that it
did not engage in any illegal employment in 2018.

The Group currently recruits middle and high-level talents via internal
recommendation, website recruitment, head-hunting recommendation,
etc. We strictly abide by the legal procedures in the process of signing,
renewing, terminating and cancelling labour contracts with employees,
in order to guarantee all relevant procedures are implemented in terms
of fair, open and justice.
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Remuneration and Welfare Benefits

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group abides by the national
laws and regulations regarding minimum wage and the basic welfare.
Employees are entitled to various social benefits and public holidays
according to relevant laws. In order to strengthen the capacity of our
talent team, the Group improves the fair and transparent remuneration
review and promotion mechanism, providing competitive remuneration
based on different businesses and job requirements, as well as
employees’ personal ability and performances. At the same time, the
Group provides rounded welfare benefits, including family visiting
vacation, housing subsidies, child care allowance, parental care
allowance, child education allowance, congratulatory gifts for birthday/
marriage/child-birth, injury allowance, and welfare for grandparents
etc., to enhance employee satisfaction and their sense of belonging.

For the sales personnel, we offered vehicle subsidies based on job
title, for employees who drive to work with a driver’s license, in an
attempt to keep them motivated and to increase the frequency of
visiting distributors, dealers and points of sales at the same time, thus
improving customer satisfaction accordingly.

We regard the staff dispatched by third-party labour service companies
as an important part of our human resources framework of the Group.
In order to ensure their rights and interests, we record their fingerprints
for attendance checking by the Human Resources Department, while
the Production Department is responsible for attendance recording in
paper sheet. At the end of each month, remuneration specialists review
the total working hours reported by all departments.

Due to different demands at different seasons for working force, we
have started recruiting contract staff for non-critical positions since
around 2014 to meet increasing demand for production personnel in
the second half of each year. For qualified contract staff, we provides
the same piece rate pay and commercial accident medical insurance
as we do for our employees. For those at high-risk positions, they are
additionally covered by the employer’s liability insurance.
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Employment and Employee Turnover B TR T AHR
Year 2017 2018
FE
Total headcount HES 1,919 1,976
By nature EHENE
Full-time employee 28 1,314 68% 1,632 83%
Part-time employee TR 605 32% 344 17%
By gender RS E
Male B 1,116 58% 1,107 56%
Female i 803 42% 869 44%
By age group RERNE
<30 years old <3075 889 46% 780 40%
30-40 (exclusive) years old 3075% —408% 652 34% 715 36%
40-50 (exclusive) years old 405% —50 5% 343 18% 419 21%
>=50 years old > =505% 35 2% 62 3%
By region RitESE
East China ERiE 368 19% 660 33%
Central and South China gl E 983 51% 696 35%
North China FEiE 292 15% 414 21%
Northwest China md it E 28 1% 25 1%
Southwest China ARt E 226 12% 172 9%
Northeast China RiviE 22 1% 9 1%
Total employee turnover kg 349 469
By gender EERSE
Male B 238 68% 301 64%
Female i 111 32% 168 36%
By age group RERNE
<30 years old <305 175 50% 195 42%
30-40 (exclusive) years old 3075% —408% 124 36% 181 39%
40-50 (exclusive) years old 40 5% —50 5% 46 13% 77 16%
>=50 years old > =505% 4 1% 16 3%
By region™ BMENE
East China ERiE 62 18% 248 53%
Central and South China gt E 195 56% 102 22%
North China #i & 54 15% 91 19%
Southwest China AR E 29 8% 21 4%
Northeast and Northwest China BRIt K FititE 9 3% 7 2%



Note:

11.  East China covers Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui, Fujian, Jiangxi and
Shandong.

Central and South China covers Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangdong,
Guangxi and Hainan.

North China covers Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia.

Northwest China covers Ningxia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Shaanxi and Gansu.

Southwest China covers Chongqing, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan and
Tibet.

Northeast China covers Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang.

Health and Safety of Employees

The Group has been tracking and strictly complying with national
laws and regulations related to health and safety that has a significant
impact on production management and day-to-day operations,
including the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Interim Provisions on Supervision and
Administration of Work Safety at Food Production Enterprises, etc. On
this basis, and combined with features of its operations, the Group has
established a series of safety management policies, including the Safety
Inspection Management Policy, the Hidden Safety Risks Identification
and Elimination Policy, the Yihai Work-related Injury Management
Policy in order to firmly implement production safety management,
effectively implement the identification of sources of dangers and
risk management, standardise production safety procedures, reduce
occupational hazardous risks to our employees, standardise the work-
related accident reporting process, hold the management accountable,
and thereby gradually perfect the safety management system of the
Group. As of the end of 2018, there was no fatality of the Group’s
employee arising from production safety accidents.
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In 2018, the Group improved the occupational health and safety
management system continuously through revision of 19 A-class
management policies for safe production such as the Safety Training
Management Policy, the Environmental Protection, Fire Protection,
Occupational Health, Safety Production Responsibility Policy, the
Safety Incident Management Policy, and the Warning and Informing
Policy for Occupational Hazards. In addition, more than 30 training
materials for safety production and occupational health were developed
and integrated into the Group’s training system, resulted in the average
training time reached 100 hours/person in 2018. In order to strengthen
the cultural of safety production internally, the Group organised 12
safety cultural events such as “Safety Promotion Month”, “Safety
Knowledge Contest”, and “Safety High-voltage Line” to promote
the importance of safety production. Meanwhile, in order to raise
employees’ awareness of safety production, a total of more than 20 fire
and emergency drills were conducted in the past year, with a total of
over 1,500 participants.

Every year, the Group regularly organises medical examinations for
all employees and new recruits. Relying on the city-level Centres for
Disease Control and Prevention, the new recruits and employees
with expired health certificate are subject to medical examinations.
The Group also cooperates with third-party physical examination
companies to arrange for an additional physical examination every year
for female employees, employees with a high frequency business trip
record, employees at the management level or above and employees
over 50 years old, so as to help them recognise their health status
comprehensively and reduce occupational health risks. In 2018, the
Group organised 326 medical examinations. In addition, the Group
organises annual physical examination for health certificate for every
employee.

In 2018, the Group suffered a 160-working-day loss arising from six
work-related injury accidents. There was neither work-related fatality
nor penalty by relevant authorities due to violation of national laws on
working safety and hygiene.
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Employee Health and Safety'?
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ETREZEHN 2

Index/Year 2017 2018
B/ FE
Work-related deaths (persons) FATIZ%T A 0 0
Percentage of work-related deaths (%) ETTHZE(%) 0 0
Work-related injuries (persons) EIZEAH 2 6
Loss of work time due to work-related E T BHE K TR
injuries (person/day) (AXK) 171 160

Note

12. Data of health and safety is based on the information on attendance
sheets and statistics of manual recording.

Training and Development of Employees

We are committed to forging an ideal career development platform
for our employees and cultivating talents in line with our goals and
development strategies through establishing branded and professional
talent development system. At the same time, we constantly update
our internal strategies on talent cultivation based on the characteristics
of condiment industry, in combination with increasing requirements on
the comprehensive quality of employees and the tendency of younger,
better educated and more professional business teams. In 2018, the
Group organised various training programs, including orientation for
new recruits, production safety training, training for safety management
of chemicals, training for electricity safety, training for warehousing
management, management system for warehouses under lease,
training for communication skills, training for enhancement of ability
to act, and excellent team management. We also held a contest
of knowledge and skill to advance employees’ business skill and
occupational quality.
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Employee Training
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B TR

Year 2017 2018
FE
Number of trainees N 235 1,131
By gender BRI
Male Bm 136 58% 676 60%
Female peg i3 99 42% 455 40%
By role REkEEDE
Senior management SREEEBAS 2 1% 4 1%
Middle management PREEEAS 11 5% 56 5%
Employees other than senior Ik EEE 222 94% 1,071 94%
or middle management
Total hours of training IR 4,360 20,697
By gender BRI E
Male B 2,688 62% 12,280 59%
Female peg i3 1,672 38% 8,417 41%
By role REEEDE
Senior management BREBEAE 576 13% 1,280 6%
Middle management FREEEAS 264 6% 769 4%
Employees other than senior FEEE 3,520 81% 18,648 90%
or middle management
Average hours of training IR
By gender REMDE
Male B4 20 18
Female z 17 18
By role REEEDE
Senior management SREEEAE 288 320
Middle management HREEEAS 24 14
Employees other than senior  FEEIE[E 16 17

or middle management



Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product quality management
and devotes itself to ensuring product safety and quality and the
legitimate rights and interests of consumers through the continuous
improvement of quality management procedures. In 2018, we are
not aware of any violation of laws and regulations governing product
responsibility regarding product quality, advertising, labelling,
consumer privacy and protection of their rights and interests, as well as
any lawsuit with significant impact on the Group.

Focus on Food Quality and Safety

As a responsible food production enterprise, the Group strictly
observes food-related laws and regulations and regulatory standards,
such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China and
follows and identifies their updates. Through strictly managing and
controlling each and every part of the production procedure, we are
committed to providing consumers with qualified, safe and assured
products and comprehensively enhancing consumer confidence and
satisfaction in our products. We further optimise the appearance of
raw materials, the production process and quality standards of finished
products through risk analysis of the whole supply chain. At the same
time, the Group sets up a sensory testing system, under which a
product is tasted for feedback on its flavour in simulated consumption
scenarios during product release process, in an attempt to provide
a direction for improvement on consumers’ sensory experience
and reduce poor consumer experience due to unstable taste of our
products.

To ensure product quality, we enforced product visualisation and
requested employees to work with certification, to enhance operators’
skill in 2018. We implemented all-round quality verification process
from raw materials to finished products in a more rigorous way. For
example, we continued to strengthen the examination on supplier
access qualification and introduce only the qualified suppliers by
sample testing. Each batch of raw materials were verified upon their
delivery in accordance with relevant standards. In production process,
parameters were determined and controlled based on the work flow.
Each batch of finished products were verified before delivery from the
factory to ensure every single product was in good quality.
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In terms of product recall, we revised our Food Recall Management
Policy in line with the Measures for the Administration of Food Recall
of People’s Republic of China. Through such revision, we elaborated
and improved relevant categories and emergency measures for
product recall, making product recall process more compliant, clear
and convenient. If a problem of quality or safety was detected in the
products in-stock, the defective products would be isolated in a timely
manner to stop delivery. If the delivered products were defective, the
Group would look up shipping destinations and communicate with
relevant distributors, logistics stations or stores in a timely manner
to stop selling, and isolate such products for inspection. Follow-
up measures would be taken later in accordance with the Process
for Handling Nonconforming Products to prevent defective products
flowing into the market. If the sold products were reported to have
safety problems, the Group would make internal records according to
consumers’ feedback in a timely manner, and relevant departments
would analyse the causes and put forward schemes for improvement;
at the same time, the Quality Assurance Department and Customer
Service Centre would coordinate and cooperate to solve the problems
of consumers in an effective way. In 2018, we continue to carry out
product recall simulation drills in Chengdu factory, Zhengzhou factory
and Maanshan factory in accordance with the Administrative Measures
for Food Recalls, and implemented the two-way simulation with both
forward and reverse simulation, providing a reference for the timely and
proper handling of quality accidents emergency. In 2018, there was no
product recall due to product safety and health problems.

Consumer Supervision and Feedback

With an attempt to actively respond to consumers’ feedback,
complaints, opinions and suggestions and provide them reassurance in
a timely manner, the Group has established a sophisticated customer
service system and customer complaint response mechanism in
strict compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and other laws and
regulations to protect consumers’ legal rights and interests.
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Customer complaint staff are designated to record the details of all
types of complaints. In accordance with Yihai Customer Complaint
Management Measures, such information will then be relayed to
relevant departments of the Group to allocate responsibilities and
to handle the case directly with the complainant. Meanwhile, we
will initiate processes for product verification and recall, in order
to solve the problem from its root. In 2018, we made the following
targeted adjustments based on the analysis of customer complaints:
painting date collection information onto the package to dissolve
complaints about missing date information; equipping the packaging
device with air blowing tool to dissolve complaints about empty
packages; introducing automatic ingredient proportioning system to
keep consistent taste; updating production technology and adjusting
recipes to dissolve complaints about thin condiment. We added
new type of complaints into Yihai Customer Complaint Management
Measures and corresponding management and control measures to
handle new complaints arising from new self-heating hotpot products;
the complaints about foreign matters decreased as a result of our
strengthened selection and quality control over agricultural and side-
line materials.

At the same time, we continued to enrich the Standard Terms for
Product Feature Description and extensively carried out activities to
popularise the knowledge of our raw materials among consumers to
enhance their cognitive ability and discernment in an effective way.
To ensure consistent quality of raw materials, the Group designated
special personnel to suppliers of the main materials and product
assembly plants to perform on-site monitoring and management to
build up confidence to our new products among customers. Customer
complaints related to product oil leakage and foreign matters still
accounted for the highest proportion this year. In response to oil
leakage resulting from the worn filling heads and transportation,
we established new standards for filling head replacement and
maintenance, and integrated the carrier’s responsibility for product
protection into the contract of carriage.
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Performance Indicator Related to Customer Complaints EERFERENEEHIE
Index/Year 2016 2017 2018
ERFE
Customer Complaints (times) BERPRFSHOR) 2.36 1.86 1.51
Note: Customer complaints (times) for the year = Total complaints that year/ I EERERFEAOR)=ERREY
annual production (in millions of packages) SrELEE(UEEeE)
Customer Privacy Protection IREE F 5 PIEIET,

As we do not sell goods to consumers directly in the case of
distribution, no customer privacy protection is required in such
production and sales process. In relation to on-line sales, we have
developed the Customer Information Confidentiality Policy for Internet
Marketing Department based on the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s
Republic of China, which specifies data security measures and
supervision methods, as well as corresponding punitive measures in
case of any violation, to protect the information of relevant departments
and customers, standardise on-line store accounts and guard the
Group’s rights and interests.

Standardising Advertising and Labelling

In the current year, we continued to adhere to the applicable laws and
regulations governing advertising and labelling, such as the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and has developed the Yihai
Marketing Management Procedures to ensure the compliance of all
promotion materials of major marketing activities in an effective way. In
order to minimise possible risks of our Internet Marketing Department
from committing intriguing publishing pictures, texts, videos and other
information in new internet channels, and safeguarding the rights and
interests of the Group, we also formulated the Management Procedures
for Infringement Avoidance of Internet Marketing Department, which
specifies measures and supervision methods to prevent infringement,
as well as corresponding punitive measures in case of any violation.
The well-established advertising and labelling management mechanism
has strongly safeguarded the integrity of our marketing and avoided
sending false information to consumers.
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Protection of Patents and Intellectual Property

The Group strictly abides by the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other applicable laws and regulations to
create and safeguard intellectual properties. To this end, we have
systematically sorted and summarised our existing application
procedures regarding the different intellectual property the Group
owns, and formulated a new version of Administrative Measures
for Intellectual Property, which covers detailed and highly operable
provisions for establishment and updating of the intellectual property
database as well as its supplement, striving to achieve standardised
management of all intellectual property related matters within the
Group. When applying for a trademark and patent, departments within
the Group would complete and submit the Application for Trademark
and the Technical Disclosure Statement, etc., in which such information
as the background and necessity of the application would be specified.
Prior to proceeding with the application flow as planned, the above
documents would be approved and signed, and specific personnel
responsible for taking over the issue would be assigned by heads of
the relevant departments.

Supply Chain Management

An important component of the development strategy of the Group is
to “emphasise safe and quality food and prevent risks in the supply
of raw materials”. The Group has established a series of supply chain
management systems to develop a responsible supply chain and to
promote the improvement and development of the entire supply chain
system.
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Selection Criteria for Suppliers

In strict compliance with requirements of laws and regulations such
as the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China,
we require suppliers to submit qualification certificates and licenses
when we select suppliers for food or food contact materials. Those
who fail to provide satisfactory certificates will not be selected. During
the review and assessment process, suppliers will fill in the Supplier
Assessment Form as required by the Group, which takes environmental
performance and employee health status of the suppliers into account.
Only those approved by the Group will win potential cooperation. After
establishing partnership, suppliers must sign valid contracts and the
Letter of Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity and agree to abide
by Supplier Award Policy, the Supplier Punishment Policy, the Supplier
Delivery Rules and the Letter Relating to Spot Check on Supplier
Factories prior to setting off on formal business, so as to ensure
that the suppliers accept supervision and review from the Group.
Requirements for supplier assessment from the ESG perspective
was incorporated into the Supplier Assessment Form by the Group in
response to relevant national policies this year, which emphasised on
assessing environment compliance of suppliers’ factories to lower risks
arising from environmental issues of suppliers that may affect regular

supply.

Daily Management for Suppliers

In the supplier management system, relevant departments of the Group
have strictly implemented the Suppliers Management Rules. There are
more than one supplier of raw materials for all categories of products
in prevention of short supply arising from risky events such as bad
weather, unfavourable road conditions, internal management oversight
of the suppliers and other unpredictable factors.
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Meanwhile, the departments also proactively carried out onsite visits
and revisits to suppliers to pay close attention to market information
regarding raw materials and auxiliary materials, processing and
manufacturing conditions, risk resistance capabilities and state of
operation of the suppliers, so as to make better decisions as to whether
the suppliers can meet subsequent procurement strategies of the
Group. Purchasing staff responsible for contacting major production
material suppliers are required to revisit these suppliers every half
year to ensure material safety and stabilised product prices. After the
revisits, the purchasing staff is required to fill in the Suppliers Revisit
and Assessment Form and submit to the supplier administrator for
documentation. The Group has established a performance evaluation
system to regularly assess suppliers according to the Suppliers
Performance Assessment and Evaluation Form, where ranking is
divided into four grades of A, B, C, and D. For suppliers with excellent
evaluation results, the Group would provide them with preferential
policies, such as financial support, technical coaching, and guidance
to its management personnel and on-site directions from the Group’s
quality control team. Suppliers rated as D twice in a row will be
added to the list of eliminated suppliers. If there is a need to engage
such a supplier again, the supplier shall go through the application
procedures in the Contract Management System in accordance with
the procedures for engaging a new supplier. Suppliers who violate
relevant regulations of the Group will be added into the Group’s
supplier blacklist, and in principle, such suppliers will never be engaged
again. If they are needed under special conditions, they must undergo
strict assessment, and there must be at least a year in between after
the supplier is blacklisted. In addition, such suppliers shall provide a
warranty statement, and if similar problems occur again, there will be
no chance for future cooperation.

During the field visits, the Group also focused on market information
regarding product-related raw materials and future development in
the industry. For the industries which lacks standardised management
but offers products with characteristics, we provide guidance on
operating management and food processing for suppliers. In doing
so, characteristics of the products are retained, risks of food safety
are lowered, and consequently, enhancing the overall level of the
industry. In order to further guarantee the safety of the materials used,
the Group issued the Notice to Suppliers on Compulsory Non-GMO
Testing of Soybean Oil and Suggestions for Suppliers of Chicken Qil
and Beef Tallow to Include Animal Quarantine Certification in the Scope
of Review, which clearly set out measures to ensure the raw material
safety in the current year. At the same time, in order to strengthen
environmental protection, the Group recycled iron packaging materials
to have raw materials packed and dispatched at the plant side by side
in the current year.
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Communication with Suppliers

The Group has established various communication channels such as
e-mail, hotline and WeChat platform to deal with the complaints. Once
a complaint is received, the Group will handle the case in accordance
with the Suppliers Complaint Response Procedures and reply with a
Response Letter to Supplier’s Opinion. For true and verified supplier
complaints, the Group will reward the supplier in accordance with the
Suppliers Award Regulations. The Group conducts opinion surveys for
suppliers every half year, gives timely feedback to relevant departments
and personnel and replies to the suppliers regarding solutions and their
outcomes.
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Information About Suppliers HERER
Index/Year 2017 2018
g FE
Total suppliers™ HEHEHE 383 359
Overseas suppliers BIMEEREE 0 10
Regional suppliers MELEESE 383 349
Suppliers in East China ERLEHEREE 115 108
Suppliers in Central and South China PRt BHEREE 100 88
Suppliers in North China EibihEHEREHE 89 47
Suppliers in Northwest China Al EHERHE 5 16
Suppliers in Southwest China Mt EHEREE 73 85
Suppliers in Northeast China RitthEEEEEH S 1 5
Suppliers that have completed risk EERERE - g Rk
assessments on environment and R EEEE
society' 137 170
Note: R

13. The location of a supplier is determined by its place of registration.

14. Suppliers that have completed risk assessments on environment and
society refer to those which went through the risk assessment initiated by
relevant departments of the Group on environment and safety (including
environmental protection, human resource management, occupational
health and safety, etc.).
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Compliance Operations

In strict compliance with applicable national laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including
the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery and the Anti-money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, we have formulated
the Yihai International Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Management
Policy to regulate the occupational behaviours of the directors, senior
and middle management and the general staff, so that they would
strictly comply with the relevant laws, industry standards and norms,
occupational ethics, and the Group’s regulations. The policy also aims
to establish a culture of integrity, diligence and dedication to one’s
job, and to prevent infringement of the interests of the Group and its
shareholders. The following are specified in the Policy:

° Promoting and creating a corporate culture of honesty, integrity,
anti-fraud and anti-corruption;

° Estimating the risk of fraud and corruption, and establishing the
procedures and mechanisms of control, to lower the possibility of
fraud and corruption;

° Risk control audit department is a standing body for anti-fraud
and anti-corruption, which is responsible for organizing and
implementing the anti-fraud and anti-corruption work within the
company, and reports to the audit committee on a regularly basis.
Its main responsibilities include assessing and evaluating the
establishment and implementation of the company’s anti-fraud
and anti-corruption control mechanism; carrying out publicity
activities in terms of anti-fraud and anti-corruption; accepting
reports of corruption and malpractice cases and organizing
investigations of reported cases, eventually issuing opinions and
report to management.
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Meanwhile, we have also set up a dedicated hotline through which all
staff and partners can report on misconduct, fraud and non-compliance
matters related to the issues of the Group at any time, such that we
could detect and rectify them in a timely manner, and maintain our
corporate value.

The Group has systematically established an internal system for anti-
corruption. The Code of Discipline for Directors and Employees, for
instance, is applicable to all our staff including full-time, part-time
and temporary employees. According to the Code, employees are
required to strictly observe the applicable rules and regulations on anti-
corruption and anti-fraud while performing business on behalf of the
Group. Direct/indirect requests, receipts and offers of any benefits are
equally prohibited. Besides, prior to accepting other work outside the
Group, employees shall apply for a written approval from appropriate
approvers, who shall make the decision by considering whether the
work is in conflict with the applicant’s position in the Group and the
Group’s interests. In addition, we have been continually implementing
the Yihai Misconduct Management Measures which specified six
types of non-compliance and misconduct by employees, including
corruption, fraud and deception. In terms of high-risk positions, such
as procurement, marketing and promotion, we require employees to
sign the Letter of Commitment relating to Integrity in Procurement, or
the Letter of Commitment Relating to Sales and Promotion, to enable
them to get a better understanding of misconduct which is explicitly
prohibited in performance of their business, efficiently restraining and
regulating their behaviours, and enhancing the awareness of ethical
conduct and integrity. At the same time, the Group has established
a collective responsibility system for key positions, which expressly
states that the management assumes the responsibility for supervising
and guiding subordinates to perform their duties with integrity.

The Group has also attached great importance to integrity and
honesty in the external business cooperation. The key partners,
including suppliers and distributors, are required to sign the Letters
of Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity or the Letters of
Commitment Relating to Distributor Integrity, prior to officially signing
contracts with us. These letters of commitment explicitly express our
integrity requirement for suppliers and distributors and informs them
of complaint and reporting channels that aim to prevent possible
corruption and fraud to the greatest extent during cooperation. The
Group is entitled to terminated partnership with suppliers, distributors
or other partners under the contracts, if they violate any clause under
their commitment to cooperate with integrity, and to hold them liable to
any breach of contract pursuant to the liability clause in the contract.
If any partner discloses that an employee of the Group was found
breaching any regulation or committing fraud, once the claim is verified,
such partner would be rewarded.
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The Group’s Risk Control and Audit Department, the major responsible
department for anti-corruption and anti-fraud, works out annual plans
for special audit and audit on internal control, and conducts anti-fraud
audits on procedures of main business and critical focus areas of the
Group based on such plans and relevant reporting. In addition, the Risk
Control and Audit Department also conducts audits on assignment or
resignation of personnel in key positions. In 2018, we carried out ten
special audits and internal control inspections to find out and improve
the management problems in business process actively and timely,
protecting the benefits of the company; further, we not only carried out
more than two sunshine publicity activities and integrity examinations,
but also sent integrity reminders to our partners on public holidays.
In this way, we trained and taught all the employees and important
partners to follow the Group’s integrity policies and further
strengthened their understanding of the Group’s integrity policies and
anti-fraud requirements.

The Group was not involved in any litigation caused either by itself
or its employee’s misconduct relating to corruption, fraud, extortion
and money-laundering with material impact on the Group in the
current year. Combating corruption and building a clean governance
is increasingly vital to the sustainable development of the Group as
our business improves. We will always adhere to and perfect our
system for integrity and honesty to further enhance internal control and
governance.

Community Welfare

The Group has constantly carried forward the idea for undertaking
social responsibility that provides safety and quality food for the
market and customers. Efforts are made in giving back to the society
by fulfilling its social responsibility and getting more involved in public
welfare undertakings. We take the initiative to understand the needs
and expectation of local and neighbouring communities where we
operate and encourages the staff to participate in community public
welfare activities. The Group also takes concrete actions to ensure that
it has taken the interests of local communities into consideration when
conducting its business activities and to pass on its positive social
value to the public.

In 2018, more emphasis was given to community investment. The
office of the Board of Directors took the lead in organising various
departments to participate in diversified social welfare activities with an
investment of RMB 200,000, including RMB 180,000 for education and
RMB 20,000 for charity.

BIR -8Rk

i
b

£

o

EATEBERESEENEEZETH
Fl - BEEASESFHESEFTNR
ZRETHOENE > UREZEEIRAE
FAEKEEETRERES  @EBES
REBXTEXRENEREETRE - F
B REEASTIEHEEERECA
SRDABMBATRREEF - £2018
F o BMFART10RBIRETRAER
B ITHRRBRIDEXBRERE
EWEEBE  ®RETARAFNE 550
HMEERART MANELEESE B2
FEZHAUREBRBEYSERHNERR
RE BRAUELAAHEZEETNEER
BEBMHET T AEBENRRBKAE
ANMEE » BUE-SRCEH L TARZR
BRA R SRR E SRRV o

REER > ARERBLERNEEDES
RHEMNES HKF - - HRERKBEER
ZEY - UHAREEREAZENDN
AR TARBBREANIZRE - BB
EXREEMEBKFHNTERA - RIBE
BREHCXUHERRNEZETMA
B RMBREABESEETEREHEN
SEHERR  BEEAZEEHEER
RITE — AR AKF -

HEQE

FEBEEEAERNGHEETES
ERATSNENRBEERHEZE2ERER
mWERF - TEBITEXEEME BELD
mEX ZBHOEBELE - RPEH THE
BEMAHBERABEBNRNETRER
L HEETIZHEREHEQIRTE
LEBRTERHENSERNEBERHL
B TEEXBEENLEEENLE
EEHERR -

EREN2018FE  AEBEMERM
BRE  BART -RIEAZENES
NEED FANEREEREEESS
MAEER D BRI EEK AP W
B2 HRABEL20BETARYE  H
THEEXEPETARB1BET  F
DIREEBHEERAARE2ET -

139



140

BIR -8k

0
B

£

o

Funding Under-privileged College Students

As the backbone in the future development of the society, college
students are one of the groups that we are most concerned about. We
provided financial aid to impoverished students from varied colleges to
help them successfully complete school. In 2018, we offered subsidy
totalling RMB 60,000 to 36 under-privileged students from Langfang
Normal University, Maanshan Teacher’s College and the College of
Food Science and Technology of Hebei Agricultural University. In
terms of the donation for education purposes, the Group made clear its
positive attitude and planned to continue to broaden the channels for
social funds to support education, improve the student subsidy system
and light the path for poor college students to finish the education.
At the same time, we exchanged our opinions with the College of
Food Science and Technology of Hebei Agricultural University on the
university-enterprise cooperation in scientific research, talent training
and student internship, and reached preliminary cooperation intentions.

Funding Special Service Centres

This year, we donated RMB 10,000 to HYQZ Centrality. Founded
in 2007, HYQZ Centrality launched rehabilitation programmes for
disabled children in single-parent families, criminal parent families,
under-privileged families or from remote areas in 2012. Its founding
philosophy is consistent with the Group’s idea of development for
public welfare. In June 2018, the Group donated necessary supplies
such as benches, rice, flour, meat and fruits to HYQZ Centrality,
contributing our share to the public welfare services undertaken by the
Service Centre.

In October 2018, we initiated the “Yihai’s love to special education”
activity in Maanshan Special Education School. The Group paid our
respect to the teachers of Maanshan Special Education School,
organised a group birthday celebration for students, and offered
food, school supplies and other supplies of about RMB 10,000 to the
teachers and students to meet their daily living and teaching needs.
This activity did not only brought abundant supplies to the teachers and
students of Maanshan Special Education School, but also comforted
them mentally.
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Creating Employment Opportunities

Our business development is conductive to creating more jobs,
which could effectively relieve the pressure of unemployment issue
in the society, specifically in local communities where the Group’s
production bases are located. In order to actively create employment
opportunities for local fresh graduates, the campus recruitment and
employment originally managed by the Human Resources Department
were transferred to each individual department so they can participate
in screening and interviewing fresh graduates according to their own
needs. In addition, we offered jobs on customer service to seven
disabled people to support the employment of the disabled.
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To the Shareholders of YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of YIHAI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDING LTD. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 150 to 154, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

U the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

FREER

FRERETSEERERMNERE -
ARETYPEEMBHRRNEARSD
EENSR - ELEEHEARMENE
BRAMBHRRRHASRRBETRE
e BHMTrESHELEEREERENE
B o

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment  RFAEZBTHHRFINERETSEREH

provision for inventory.

Key Audit Matter
FAREEER

REEREES -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ES MM RIERREEE

Impairment provision for inventory
HEREEE

Refer to Note 2 (Summary of significant accounting
policies) and Note 11 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, being selling price less estimated selling costs,
where applicable, impairment provision is made to write
down the inventory to its net realisable value.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s balance of gross
inventory was RMB275,815,000.

The estimation of impairment provision for each type of
inventories involves significant management judgment
based on consideration of key factors such as aging
profile, prior experiences and estimated future selling
price and production costs subsequent to year end.

AR BHRRME2 (BRS A BRI SRR R
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Our audit procedures relating to impairment provision for
inventory included:

e Obtained and understood the Group’s inventory
provisioning policy.

® Understood and evaluated the relevant controls over
the generation of inventory aging schedule and the
process of the estimation of inventory impairment
provision.

* In respect of finished goods, on sample basis, we
evaluated the assumptions in estimating future sales
prices and selling expenses by reference to historical
records and sales transactions after year end.
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Key Audit Matter
FHEEFEER

B2 BEN R E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ES MM RIERREEE

The impairment assessment is an area of focus for
us given the inherent uncertainties and the significant
amount of the gross inventory balance.

ENRERENTEEYE  BRESHEER  RMAAE
ERERTAE

® |n respect of raw materials and work in progress,
on sample basis, we evaluated the assumptions in
estimating future production costs by reference to
historical records and production records after year
end.

®* On sample basis, we tested the aging profile of the
year end raw materials and finished goods.

* Observed physical condition of inventories during
stocktake to identify if any inventory was slow-
moving, damaged, or obsolete.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgment
applied by management were supported by the evidence
we gathered and consistent with our understanding.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Five-Year Performance Review and Management Discussion and
Analysis, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
and the Chairman’s Statement, Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Report and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which are expected to
be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statement, Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Directors’ Report
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take appropriate
action considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

U Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Brian Ming Yan Choi.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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As at 31 December

n12H31H
Notes 2018 2017
M=t 2018 £ 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AR¥FT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 8 308,616 180,088
Land use rights I b A AE 6 75,034 35,152
Intangible assets B EE 7 5,309 5,182
Deferred tax assets EIEFIEEE 10 23,889 10,554
Prepayments for property, Y - BERZE
plant and equipment FEARIE 156,027 57,095
Financial assets at fair value through RATETTABRN
profit or loss TRERE 17 12,000 —
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 580,875 288,071
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 11 275,815 147,617
Other current assets HiRE&EE 13 213,178 —
Trade receivables B S EWIE 14, 35 206,893 131,457
Other financial assets at amortised cost RS R AN B BR Y
HihemERE 15 5,368 —
Prepayments and other receivables FESFRIE R H At R UL TR IE 12 — 76,670
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEAEBEN
profit or loss SREE 17 — 32,671
Cash and cash equivalents BERRESEEY 16 1,179,910 1,130,205
Total current assets REEESE 1,881,164 1,518,620
Total assets EEHE 2,462,039 1,806,691
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables g S EARIE 22,35 188,659 136,582
Contract liabilities eHEaE 24 45,350 —
Other payables and accruals HitEERIERESER 23,35 103,616 115,033
Current income tax liabilities ENERARIEE B 84,693 49,267
Total current liabilities REaEEE 422,318 300,882
Total liabilities =Rk 422,318 300,882




mEBEERER

As at 31 December

n12H31H
Notes 2018 2017
MiEE 2018 £ 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR®TT
Equity B
Share capital [N 18 68 68
Shares held for employee share scheme FIEERMDETE
BENRG 19 (5) ()
Reserves it 20 2,005,127 1,501,326
Capital and reserves attributable to FERARATEREAN
owners of the Company EAREf#E 2,005,190 1,501,389
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 9 34,531 4,420
Total equity HERBER 2,039,721 1,505,809
Total equity and liabilities EERaEEHn 2,462,039 1,806,691

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 150 to 154 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf.
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

Notes 2018 2017
Py aE 2018 4F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T

Revenue A 5 2,681,373 1,646,221
Cost of sales SHERA 25 (1,642,476) (1,034,415)
Gross profit EF 1,038,897 611,806
Distribution expenses KEHF 25 (241,474) (164,615)
Administrative expenses TR 25 (163,196) (76,415)
Other incomes and gains — net HW AR WS F58 27 56,475 43,748
Operating profit R F 690,702 414,524
Finance income mMEUA 28 39,799 6,651
Finance expenses AL E R 28 — (52,095)
Finance income/(expenses) — net BMEWA,(FAX) — F4 28 39,799 (45,444)
Profit before income tax R4 BT 45 %t A iga 1 730,501 369,080
Income tax expense PSR x 29 (182,597) (107,990)
Profit for the year FWiEH 547,904 261,090
Profit is attributable to: AT ATHEMER :

Owners of the Company RATHEBA 517,793 260,670

Non-controlling interests IR 30,111 420
Other comprehensive income for the year, £ H {th & @EIZN

net of tax (INFRR#EIR) — —
Total comprehensive income EEWNGEEE 547,904 261,090
Total comprehensive income UTALTEGEZE

attributable to: N

- Owners of the Company  WNCIE 2 DN 517,793 260,670

- Non-controlling interests —JEEpR e 30,111 420
Earnings per share attributable to equity ZXAFRELEEZHEA

holders of the Company LSRR ER

(expressed in RMB cents per share) (ULBBRARYS5ITR)

- Basic —&HK 30 53.4 26.9

— Diluted —#58 30 53.1 26.7

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARENER
Shares
held for
employee
Share share Non-
capital scheme Reserves controlling Total
(Note 18) (Note 19) (Note 20) Total interests equity
HEs
Rty st &l
BA  HENER 1
(MHzt18) (H&E19) (M&t20) @i kERER ERas
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AR¥Fr ARE®Tn AR%FR ARETT AR®ETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 20174151 B&& 68 G 1,266,142 1,266,205 — 1,266,205
Comprehensive income EXTTON
Profit for the year FERRF . — 260,670 260,670 420 261,090
Other comprehensive income St 2EYA - = = = = =
Total comprehensive income  £ERA\ 45 . — 260,670 260,670 420 261,090
Transactions with owners ~ HEFA(NEEZHEA
in their capacity as owners: )% 5
Capital injections from FERERTE
non-controlling interests — — 4,000 4,000

Share-based payment expense  MRGAEBRMATHES 21 — — 8,510 8,510 — 8,510

Dividends provided for or paid 2T RAEIKITKE 31 — — (33,996) (33,996 - (33,996)
Total transactions with owners S5 A\ %2 5 &% — - (25,486) (25,486) 4,000 (21,486)
Balance at 31 December 2017 72017 £12 A 31 B4& 68 (5) 1,501,326 1,501,389 4,420 1,505,809
Balance at 1 January 2018 72018451 F1 B&#% 68 (5) 1,501,326 1,501,389 4420 1,505,809
Comprehensive income EXTLON
Profit for the year EREF = = 517,793 517,793 30,111 547,904
Other comprehensive income £ 2ERA — — — — —
Total comprehensive income  £EH N\ — — 517,793 517,793 30,111 547,904
Transactions with owners ~ EHEBA(LHEEZ

in their capacity as owners: HEASH)L 5
Share-based payment expense  ARBAERNAFHEY 21 = = 34,202 34,202 — 34,202
Shares vested under employee  RiEEER {33

share scheme FERO 21 = = 97 97 = 97
Dividends provided for or paid 23t RHTRAKRE 31 = = (48,291) (48,291) = (48,291)
Total transactions with owners 2HHF A K% 545 = = (13,992) (13,992) = (13,992)
Balance at 31 December 2018 720184 12 A 31 B4 & 68 (5) 2005127 2,005,190 34531 2,039,721

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read — _ i i & 125 % B 75 FE B B By 7 % — 13F
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. BiE o
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

Note 2018 2017
Bt EE 2018 4 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities REFBAERERE
Cash generated from operations IS FrEIE S 33(a) 479,006 438,681
Interest received 2 UWFIE 10,071 6,651
Income tax paid 2SS (160,506) (92,130)
Net cash inflow from operating activities K& FERSEEFHAE 328,571 353,202
Cash flows from investing activities BREREMERERE
Purchase of land use right BB b (F R (41,017) (4,187)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BE¥% - MEKRRE (252,706) (127,989)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEEEE (1,304) (3,260)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - MENRE
plant and equipment and intangible assets U REFEEMBERE  33(b) 3,468 460
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEUQFEFABRS (12,000) (32,934)
through profit or loss HemEE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at H&EUAFEF AEH
fair value through profit or loss NEMEENEBRIE 34,396 —
Interest income from financial assets at fair ~ RE U AP EFT AERE
value through profit or loss HEREENTEWRA 8,753 5,241
Net cash outflow from investing activities 2&FEM AR &FHE (260,410) (162,669)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEEBRERERE
Capital injections from FERERETE
non-controlling interests — 4,000
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholdersg] 2~ A & IR ER AR & 31 (48,291) (33,996)
Net cash outflow from financing activities RZFEIFTRAEEFE (48,291) (29,996)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R RREEEEY
ey PR 19,870 160,537
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning MBENRER
of the financial year ReZEY 16 1,130,205 1,021,999
Effects of exchange rate changes ReRASZEEY
on cash and cash equivalents ERSFHWSE 29,835 (52,331)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F£XREERELZEY 16 1,179,910 1,130,205

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in FIARE R % 7B A E L RE T R — F
conjunction with the accompanying notes. FiE -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the production and sale of hot pot condiment, Chinese-style
compound condiment, and convenient ready-to-eat food products
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18
October 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s global offering of its shares (“the Global Offering”)
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “HKSE”) was completed on 13 July 2016.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 26 March 2019.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(0

(i)

(i)

Compliance with IFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
has been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCQ”) Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, as modified by revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
are carried at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing from 1 January 2018, which are
relevant to its operations:

e  |FRS 9 Financial Instruments, and

e |[FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
and

e  (Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions — Amendments to IFRS 2,
and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

°  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-
2016 Cycle, and

e  Transfers of Investment Property — Amendments
to IAS 40.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are
disclosed in Note 2.2 below. The other amendments
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior period and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2018 reporting periods and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
assessment of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet by lessees, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

Impact

The Group has set up a project team which has
reviewed all of the Group’s leasing arrangements
over the last year in light of the new lease accounting
rules in IFRS 16. The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating leases.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB 23,834,000,
see Note 34. Of these commitments, approximately
RMB 10,972,000 relate to short-term leases will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in
profit or loss. For the remaining lease commitments
the Group expects to recognise right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB 16,665,000 and lease liabilities of
RMB 16,665,000 on 1 January 2019.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:HEBEE)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)

(iv) [ RERA AT ER R 22

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The Group expects that net profit after tax will have no
significant impact for 2019 as a result of adopting the
new rules.

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material
and hence the Group does not expect any significant
impact on the financial statements. However, some
additional disclosures will be required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory
adoption date of 1 January 2019. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right of use assets for property leases will be
measured on transition as if the new rules had always
been applied.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the entity in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers on the Group’s financial statements.

@)

Impact on the financial statements

As a result of the changes in the entity’s accounting
policies, with modified retrospective approach used by
the Group, prior year financial statements had not be
restated.

The reclassification and adjustments arising from
the changing in accounting policies are therefore not
reflected in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2018.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included. As
a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot
be recalculated from the numbers provided. The
adjustments are explained in more detail by standard
below.
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(Continued)

e MBRRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXASHERBEE)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 EBItBURMEE(E
Impact on the financial statements (Continued) (a) HHBEHRENZE(E)
31 December
2017 1 January
As originally 2018
Balance sheet (extract) presented IFRS 9 IFRS 15 Restated
20174 B PR B 75 BIPR BA 75 20184
12A31H wEER BEER 1818
EEEER(ARE) W35k $Eo5% 155 RET|
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®FR AR%TR
Current assets RHEE
Other current assets Hitne&E — — 72,402 72,402
Prepayments and BAMK
other receivables Hi WA 76,670 (4,268) (72,402) —
Other financial assets B ANETE
at amortised cost HitemEE — 4,268 - 4,268
Total assets HmEE 1,806,691 — — 1,806,691
Current liabilities nBat
Other payables Hitn A FIER
and accruals FEFER 115,033 - (30,823) 84,210
Contract liabilities BREE — — 30,823 30,823
Total liabilities Hmeas 300,882 — — 300,882
Net assets FEE 1,505,809 — — 1,505,809
Total equity RS 1,505,809 — — 1,505,809
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

®)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition
of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting. The new accounting policies
are set out in Note 2.12 below.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1
January 2018 had no impact on the Group’s retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018.

()  Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application
of IFRS 9), the Group’s management has
assessed which business models apply to
the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate IFRS 9 categories. There was no
significant impact on the classification and
measurement of the financial assets held by the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to IFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
model.

e trade receivables, and

° other financial assets at amortised cost.

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under IFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets. The impact of the change in
impairment methodology on the Group’s retained
earnings and equity was immaterial.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAE:HEBMEE)
(Continueq)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

22 BHEENEEHE)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (c) EIFBEHREERFE1S
BREEHNEFHI Mz
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from AEBEB2018F 181
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018. H B BR 40 B PR B B R 5
The Group has adopted the modified retrospective ZBEI5H KB BN
approach, and the comparatives were not restated. In BEFMKE - REBEK
summary, the following adjustments were made to the MESIERTBWE W E
amounts recognised in the balance sheet at the date of BHLEBEHT - 46T
initial application (1 January 2018). S CRREBEXERAB
H=ZE-NE—-—F—
HINWEEEBERERN
SEEETHIRZE -

IAS 18 IFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount Reclassi- amount

31 Dec 2017 fication 1 Jan 2018
BB &t EIpREATSER &
R E 185 #RHE 155
REE BREE
2017 4 2018 £
12A31H EX 08 181H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Mz AR®FTrx AR®BTRT AR®Tx
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and SEENEIYS2
other receivables Hith U IE 0) 76,670 (72,402) 4,268
Other current assets HiReEE (i) — 72,402 72,402
Current liabilities B IN=Ni
Contract liabilities BHEE 0] — 30,823 30,823
Other payables HAunERIER
and accruals EstER 0) 115,033 (30,823) 84,210
There was no impact of the change in accounting e HE NS ANER
policy in the Group’s retained earnings as at 1 January FA2018FE1 A1 HHVIRE
2018. BRI S



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

(i)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

The Group has voluntarily changed the presentation
of certain amounts in the balance sheet to reflect
the terminology of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9:

° Contract liabilities in relation to contracts
were previously included in other payables
and accruals, and

e  Other receivables and prepayments were
previously presented together with prepayments
and other receivables but are now presented
as other financial assets at amortised cost
(other receivables) and other current assets
(prepayments) in the balance sheet, to reflect
their different nature.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(0

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

2.

EXEFBRBEGE)

23 AHREDEFIREA

()

K& 2 &l

MEBLREASEER
EHENEER (B
FRMER) - EAKHE
ERSHERXEME
BREERGZEREN
AEOHBERELER
HEEEZBRERNE
HEEZSEHE - B
REEZHZER - M
BARABEFEERE
KEBzBBR2HEH
ARk WEEHLLEZ
REBUESHF -

AEBRAKRBEEE
BERSHARGEZH
MizE2.4) -

EEARBNARBR
7 BBRERAEERS
Wik T UAEEE - KRB
BETET KSR
FEERZETER
EENRERE - WEB
NAMNETHHRERT
ERE . UERELXE
EERAMEIBERER — 2 -

REEANNFERERR
MEBL RS D BB
EIRGEEEZENE
* EDZEDHRREE
afEx-



e MBRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEBRBMEGE
(Continued)

2.4 EBEHt

2.4 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

* Jiabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

®  equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e  consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

® acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

24

25

Business combinations (Continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6

2.7

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers (“CODM?”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive officer, vice presidents and directors of the
Company.

Foreign currency translation

() Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is the Company’s functional currency and the
Company’s and Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreignh exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘finance cost - net’. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within ‘Other incomes and gains - net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(i) Group companies (Continued)

® income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter of lease term and estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Equipment and others 3-5 years
Vehicles and furniture 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or pending for installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition.
No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are available for
use, the costs are transferred to the respective categories
of property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent upfront prepayments made for
the land use rights and are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of on a straight-
line basis over the periods of the leases or when there is
impairment, the impairment is expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Intangible assets

() Trademarks

Acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

(i) Software

Acquired computer software are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

() Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”), or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

()

(i)

(i)

Classification (Continueq)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies financial assets when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other income and gains-
net together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
other income and gains-net in the period in which it
arises.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other income and gains-net in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 14 for further
details.

2.

e MBRRME

EXEFBRBEE)

212 RERHMESREE(HF)

(i)

()

A2 ()
BRATER
REBEB R AERA

REBAVETE- B
REBENEERECEE
REMEERAZ5IR
RRENDFERRERK
B 2 FERERE
BRARILEIARERT
SENOHEERE - Z
ZERENBRENREEEH
W BRI B9 AR R L B
BERBSBEIDHA
WA - BAFEFTAH
2 E WA S BRET BB
BRAREWRERE (K
HESERR)TEEA
AP ELBTR2R -

BAFEFABRENE
MEENQAIFEEIR
FEEHBBERERS
H b U A R W a8 5 88 (20
#BA) -

B

E20185E 1810 i -
R E B IR AUIE B ET(L
EERBHEAARIRD
FEFFAHEMEmEUBA
STENERIEREN
JEHEERE - FTEA
BEFEEFEERR
BEEFEEEM -

MEZEURIEMS
7N 5 [ % P B R B S R
EEAFIRAFFNG
tFm% REBNDE
0 JE W AR S HE SR B M
FERHANEHRER
HIER SR 14 -

177



178

e M RR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied IFRS 9 with modified retrospective
approach. As a result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classified its
financial assets in the following categories:

° financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

° trade and other receivables

The classification determined on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at initial
recognition.

(@) Reclassification

Reclassifications were made at fair value as of
the reclassification date. Fair value became the
new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no
reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date were subsequently
made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to trade and other receivables were
determined at the reclassification date. Further
increases in estimates of cash flows adjusted
effective interest rates prospectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not
change an adoption of IFRS 9, see description
above. Subsequent to the initial recognition, trade
and other receivables were subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets at FVPL were subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value are recognised in profit
or loss within other income and gains-net.

Details on how the fair value of financial
instruments is determined are disclosed in Note
3.3(a).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting
period whether there was objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets was
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets was impaired and impairment losses were
incurred only if there was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) had
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that
could be reliably estimated.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For trade and other receivables, the amount of
the loss was measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that had not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset was reduced and the amount of the loss
was recognised in profit or loss. As a practical
expedient, the Group could measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

(c) Impairment (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of trade receivables is described in
Note 3.1(b).

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of
any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating
to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on
the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

2.15 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement
within 30-90 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 14 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

2.17 Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the RSU Trustee are disclosed as treasury
shares and deducted from contributed equity.

2.18 Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:HEBEE)
(Continued)

2.19 BNV RIESEFR1SHL(E)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

2.21

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined
contribution plans, including pension, medical, housing and
other welfare benefits, recognised by the PRC government.
According to the relevant regulations, the monthly
contributions that should be borne by the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company are calculated based on percentages of
the total salary of employees, subject to a certain ceiling.
The assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independent funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the above contributions have been paid. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group adopted a restricted share unit scheme in 2016
to reward directors and employees. The fair value of the
services received in exchange for the grant of the restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
restricted shares granted as at date of grant, including any
market performance conditions, excluding the impacts of
any service and non-market performance vesting conditions
as well as including any non-vesting conditions, when
applicable. The total amount expensed is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

For the Company’s separate financial statements, fair value
of restricted shares granted to its subsidiaries’ employees
is recognised as increase in investment in subsidiaries and
equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Share-based payments (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of restricted shares that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the shares are exercised.

e MBRRME

EXEFBRBEE)

2.21 RGO BERNNTRE)

REREHR » FEESRE
SR BIRMHEREMETE
HETEBNZRERDH
B YRGREEEBERATE
RIERRRMET BT (WE)H
T8 URHRERFHAEE

e

i iR FETTE - FRURERRY PR TS
RIBMBREMEEELERS K
REFT AR (HE) KRS
B -

187



188

e M RR MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.22 Revenue recognition

()

Sale of goods - wholesales

For wholesale business, Sales of goods are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the wholesaler,
the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance
of the products. Revenue is adjusted for the value
of sales discount and rebates. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler
have accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contracts, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The products of the Group are often sold with sales
discounts. Revenue from these sales are recognised
based on the price specified in the sales contracts,
net of the estimated sales discounts at the time of
sale. The sales discounts are estimated based on
the terms of agreements. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 30-90 days, which is consistent with the market
practice. Under IFRS 15, a liability for the sales rebate
to customers is recognised as adjustment to revenue in
other payables and accruals.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(0

(i)

Sale of goods - wholesales (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Sale of goods - on-line

Revenue from the sale of goods on the internet is
recognised at the point that the control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Transactions are settled by credit or payment
card or through on-line payment platforms. Provisions
are made for internet credit sales based on the
expected level of returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Accounting policy applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied IFRS 15 with modified
retrospective approach. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous accounting
policy. Until 31 December 2017, Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables, and represents amounts receivables for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts and value
added taxes. The Group recognise revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities.

2.23 Earnings per share

U

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Earnings per share (Continued)

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases (Note 34). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Dividends distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

2.26

2.27

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the other incomes and gains-net, see Note 27 below.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of other income and other gains-net.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 28 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income and other gains-
net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.
Current year profit and loss information has been included where
relevant to add further context.

Risk Exposure arising from

=0 b E & R E

Market risk — Financial assets and liabilities

foreign exchange denominated in foreign currency different

from its functional currency.

iz EbE — SMNE UARIREYREE B INETERN
TRHEERARE -

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables.

ERER RERRSEEY - EFRWFIER
HAh W RIR -

Liquidity risk Financial liabilities

REBEL R TRIBE

3.1 Financial risk factors
(@) Market risk

()  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted
in RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency
risk with respect to transactions denominated in
currencies other than RMB. Foreign exchange risk
arises from recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations. The Group
did not enter into any forward contract to hedge
its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HMHEREERGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BXEBREEE)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WHHEkEE)
()  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) () SNEREGE)
Exposure [ B
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk REBRIREHR
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in A RESIREI N
RMB, was as follows: EREIT :
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
201812 A31H 2017512 A 31 H
us$ HK$ us$ HK$
e T ETT BT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR ARBETRT ARETT

Bank deposits IRITIER 440,861 295,464 43,364 665,383
Financial assets at &2 FERTA
fair value through  EBHEHNEREE

profit or loss — — 32,671 —
Trade receivables &3 WA 522 161 — 154
Trade payables g S ERRIE (544) (32) (457) (306)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity

As shown in the table above, the Group is
primarily exposed to changes in US$/RMB and
HK$/RMB exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit
or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises
mainly from the deposits denominated in US$
and HK$ in the PRC subsidiaries, the functional
currency of which is RMB, and the deposits of the
Company which are denominated in RMB.

e MBRRME

FA %5 BB E 3R ()

3.1 BBEBEEE)

@ HEEE(E)

(i)

SNE BB ()
R

MERMR A&
BEEATETR
ARBUREBTR
RARBERNE
BRERE - BmE
REHNHPBRMEE
EXRETENER
A(ZEHE R F
HHEEBRAR
WIEAR BRI
RRAERBARE
5K
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HEEEP T E

2018 2017

2018 4 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®ET T ARET T
HK$/RMB exchange BLTHLARBER

rate — increase 10% —EFH10% 22,160 41,715
HK$/RMB exchange BT AREER

rate — decrease 10% —TF10% (22,160) (41,715)
US$/RMB exchange ETRARKER

rate — increase 10% —EFH10% 33,065 3,252
US$/RMB exchange ERNHARKER

rate — decrease 10% —TF10% (33,065) (8,252)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and
deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade
receivable and other financial assets at amortised cost
as well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail
customers, including outstanding receivables.

Risk management

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its bank balance, trade and other receivables.

The carrying amounts of each class of the
above financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. To manage this risk arising from
bank balance, the Group only transacts with
state-owned financial institutions and reputable
commercial banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions in the PRC and Hong
Kong. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

Trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly due from HAI DI LAO
HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. and its subsidiaries,
Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (“Sichuan Haidilao Group”) and
the distributors in cooperation with the Group.
Both HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD., and
Sichuan Haidilao Group are related parties of
the Group (Note 35). As at 31 December 2018,
the amounts due from HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS
PTE.LTD. and its subsidiaries represented 99%,
while the amounts due from Sichuan Haidilao
Group represented 1% of total trade receivables
of the Group, respectively. The management of
the Group believes the credit risk on amounts
due from related parties is limited because
they continuously monitor the credit quality
and financial conditions of the related parties.
Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables
is disclosed in Note 14. The directors of the
Company believe that the credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding trade receivables
balances due from the distributors is low.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
()  Risk management (Continued)

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The directors of the
Company believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance
of other receivables.

(i)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to IFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
model.

®* trade receivables, and

e  other financial assets at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and aging analysis. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 12 months before
31 December 2018 or 1 January 2018 respectively
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
December 2018 and 1 January 2018 (on adoption
of IFRS 9) was immaterial for trade receivables.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost mainly
include deposits, advance to employees.
Impairment on other financial assets at amortised
cost is measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Applying the expected credit risk model, no
significant increase in the loss allowance as at 1
January 2018.

Receivables for which an impairment provision
was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of
recovering additional cash.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the incurred
loss model. Individual receivables which were
known to be uncollectible were written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective evidence
that an impairment had been incurred but not
yet been identified. For these receivables, the
estimated impairment losses were recognised in
a separate provision for impairment. The Group
considered that there was evidence of impairment
if any of the following indicators were present:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor

*  probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and

e  default or late payments (more than 90 days
overdue).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses on financial and
contract assets recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following losses were

3.

FA %5 B B B3R ()

3.1 HBEBEEE)

(b) 1EHEE(E)

(ii)

TREEREGE)

TEIE SR H &
REHEENHE
1S FEE

FA- THEER

recognised in profit or loss in relation to impaired ERESHEER
financial assets: BEPER
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARET T
Impairment losses WEEE
Impairment losses on B S RWRIERERE
trade receivables (30) (2]
Impairment losses RESH AT ERN
on financial assets at SREENREBE
amortised cost (608) (346)
Reversal of previous BEREEEREED
impairment losses 2 10
Net impairment losses on &Rk SHNEE
financial and contract REEEFRE
assets (636) (338)




3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying business, the Group’s finance department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance
department of the Group. The Group’s finance
department monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs as well as the liabilities to other
parties.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

e MBRRME

3. MBERKREEE)

3.1 BBEBEEE)

(c)

REET/EE

REBHORERAH
BeRkREEEY - H
REBAXBBEEBEM
g REEH R ER P
KEZENBREREAS
ZENMEMERESH
E N EEN

RERBEANIEEAE
B L - AKH
M BMEEHAREER
BESERNRIEAR
DEREERRESM

REEFRREBHMS
MEE -

TREJAEEN R
AERRAEEEER
BHZEEN2H AN
T HARE 5 R AE B8 AV 2 HA
HBETHDAN - RA
FEBESEAEHNRE
Iﬁ:£ﬁa$})lb£°

Less than 1 year

LN E
RMB’000
AR¥FT
As at 31 December 2018 #2018 12H31H
Trade payables (Note 22) B 5 I F0E (fiEE22) 188,659
Other payables and accruals Hitt A FaRETER 37,423
Total et 226,082
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H
Trade payables (Note 22) g 5 ERE (fieE 22) 136,582
Other payables and accruals HittfE B R ETE F 56,720
Total Fals 193,302

203



204

e M RR MR

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

(@) Risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, or return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

As the Group has no external borrowing in 2018 and
2017, the directors consider that the capital risk is low.

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a) Financial assets and liabilities

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are recognised and
measured at fair value in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of
the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Group has classified its financial instruments into
the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

3.

A5 R e 1R (AF)
32 EXERER

(@ [EREE

3.3

AEENEREERR
B

REFAEENSEE
£ EBERRREMR
EHRSEMRESE
NERRNE » K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMERERMETE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HMHERKREERGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREME(E)
(@)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ =THEEREEE)
()  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) iy ADFEERGE)
Recurring fair value
measurements BEMATENE Note  Level1 Level2  Level3 Total
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31B MaE ¥-EB $-E £ZE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFTRT AR¥TR ARBTR

Financial assets EHEE
Financial assets at fair value BATESABS
through profit or loss (FVPL) (BAVEFAER)
HemEE 17
- Listed equity securities () - FHRAES () = — 12,000 12,000
Total financial assets CHEEME = = 12,000 12,000
Recurring fair value
measurements REMLTETE Note  Level1 Level2  Level3 Total
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 128311 s £ E£-E ¥=FE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TT ARETR ARETR
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at fair value BATESABS
through profit or loss (FVPL) (BRATEFAER)
HemEE 17
- Designated (i) — 187 (i) — — 32671 32,671
Total financial assets SREELE — — 32671 32,671
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continueq)

(i)

The financial instruments traded in inactive
markets.

Balance represented treasury products
issued by an unlisted company with
guaranteed principal and expected rate of
return. Such assets are denominated in US$,
with maturity date in September 2018, and
was designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

3.

FA %5 B B B3R ()

3.3

DREME(E)

@ =THEEREEE)

(i)

DNHERBR(E)

ZE®MIA
EHRERD
5EXS -

ZEERIE I
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THRAR
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B3 EQE
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continueq)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2
for recurring fair value measurements during the
year.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

3.

e MBRRME

FA %5 BB E 3R ()

3.3

DREME(E)

@ =ZHEEREEE)

(i)

DNHERBR(E)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continueq)

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

3.

FA %5 B B B3R ()

3.3

DREME(E)

@ =THEEREEE)

(i)

DNHERBR(E)
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continueq)

Level 3:

If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

3.

e MBRRME

FA %5 BB E 3R ()
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)  Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

® The use of quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

® The fair value of the remaining financial
instruments is determined using discounted
cash flow analysis.

3.

FA %5 B B B3R ()

3.3

DREME(E)

@ =THEEREEE)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level
3 items for the periods ended 31 December 2018

and 31 December 2017:

e MBRRME

FA %5 BB E 3R ()
DREME(E)

@ =ZHEEREEE)

(i) FHAEXRTAEHE
BMABB(E=ZRE)
HAFERF=

TREYEZE2018
F12H31B R
2017%12H31H
HHEE=ETA

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

BATEEA

BHRNEMEE

RMB’ 000

AR®TT

Opening balance 1 January 2017 R2017E1 A1 BHERAIAE G —
Addition hE 32,934

Change in fair value NFEEE (263)
Closing balance 31 December 2017  }2017%12 B 31 AWEAR LS 32,671
Addition NE 12,000

Disposal HE (34,396)
Change in fair value NEEEE 1,725
Closing balance 31 December 2018 #2018 £ 12 A 31 BMH R & & 12,000
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4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet

date.
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4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

®)

()

Income taxes and deferred tax

There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will be reflected in
the income tax expense and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made. In
addition, the realisation of future income tax assets is
dependent on the Group’s ability to generate sufficient
taxable income in future years to utilise income tax
benefits and tax loss carry-forwards. Deviations of
future profitability from estimates or in the income tax
rate would result in adjustments to the value of future
income tax assets and liabilities that could have a
significant effect on the income tax expenses.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions.

Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

4,
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management determines the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision makers
(“CODM?”) that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and capital expenditure are
primarily attributable to the manufacture and sales of hot pot soup
flavoring products, Chinese-style compound condiment products,
convenient ready-to-eat food products and others to external
customers, which are considered as one segment. The Group’s
principal market is the PRC and its sales to overseas customers
contributed to less than 10% of the total revenues. Accordingly,
no geographical information is presented.

WA RS EE R
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ERORF)EELEDE - NEEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WARDEBER ()

BERRIEDHWABHANT

Breakdown of revenue by product category is as follows:

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T
Revenue N
Hot pot condiment AR
- Related parties —EB A 1,143,243 871,563
— Third parties —$£=%5 812,277 523,845
Subtotal et 1,955,520 1,395,408
Chinese-style compound PRES TR
condiment
- Related parties — B 26,784 43,413
— Third parties —%H= 228,731 142,860
Subtotal PNEE 255,515 186,273
Convenient ready-to-eat food products FEEBRMR
- Related parties L 4,704 104
— Third parties —FH= 444,569 61,341
Subtotal PNEE 449,273 61,445
Others Hith
- Related parties — B8 A 1,364 831
— Third parties —FH= 19,701 2,264
Subtotal PNEE 21,065 3,095
Total HEt 2,681,373 1,646,221

REEE T LS E WA EZ 2018 F
K20175 1231 BIEFEELARA
DAl 43.9% 1 55.6% °

Revenue from sales attributable to related parties accounted for
43.9% and 55.6% of the total revenue for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE SRR
LAND USE RIGHTS 6. LTibfERE
Land use rights
1 ihisE A
RMB’ 000
AR®ETT
At 1 January 2017 ®2017F1A1H
Cost FX AN 33,242
Accumulated amortisation g 5 (1,504)
Net book amount BRmEFE 31,738
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ2017F 12831 ALEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 31,738
Additions wNE 4,187
Amortisation charge BIHER (773)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 35,152
At 31 December 2017 MH2017$12H831H
Cost F& AR 37,429
Accumulated amortisation g 5 (2,277)
Net book amount BRmEFE 35,152
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F 12831 HLLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 35,152
Additions NE 41,017
Amortisation charge BEER (1,135)
Closing net book amount FERIREFEE 75,034
At 31 December 2018 R 2018 12A31H
Cost 2% 78,446
Accumulated amortisation G 5 (3,412)
Net book amount BRmEEE 75,034

FES B M= B B BR 22 A Yihai International Holding Ltd.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

Land use rights represent the net book amount of prepaid
operating lease payment. All the land use rights of the Group are
located in the PRC and are held on leases from 46-50 years.

Amortisation expenses has been charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

e MBRRME

I i AHE ()

T EAEERASERENRG
REVHE - ARENEZHLBER
BRAPE JIR46E50F 1
HERH -

BHERCERNGRE2EWEAERTH
BR - FIRAOT

2018 2017

2018 5 2017 &

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARTT ARBT T

Cost of sales SHERK A 917 773
Distribution expenses KEHmAX 218 —
Total st 1,135 773

2018 Annual Report £ [E %} &

217



e M RR MR

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. EBEEE
Trademark Software Total
HEIERE B st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR¥F T AR¥FT
At 1 January 2017 ®2017%1A1H
Cost AN — 3,237 3,237
Accumulated amortisation Z:HEN — (434) (434)
Net book amount BREEE — 2,803 2,803
BZE2017%
Year ended 31 December 2017 12A31HIEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE — 2,803 2,803
Additions NE — 3,260 3,260
Disposals HE — (30) (30)
Amortisation charge #iEEH — (851) (851)
Closing net book amount FRREEE — 5,182 5,182
At 31 December 2017 Mn2017%£12A831H
Cost RS — 6,467 6,467
Accumulated amortisation 25 — (1,285) (1,285)
Net book amount BREFE — 5,182 5,182
HZE 20184

Year ended 31 December 2018 12A31HILFE
Opening net book amount FREFE — 5,182 5,182
Additions NE 160 1,144 1,304
Amortisation charge #iEEH (11) (1,166) (1,177)
Closing net book amount FRIRMEE 149 5,160 5,309
At 31 December 2018 MW2018%£ 12831 H
Cost AR 160 7,611 7,771
Accumulated amortisation 25 (11) (2,451) (2,462)
Net book amount EREEE 149 5,160 5,309




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 7. BREEEGE)
Amortisation expenses has been charged to the consolidated BEBRONGEZEKERFTH
statement of comprehensive income as follows: B SIRMT
2018 2017
20184 2017 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Cost of sales HERA 123 302
Administrative expenses THFAX o1 72
Distribution expenses KEER 963 A77
Total wat 1,177 851
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

8.

I3 - BB R

Equipment Vehicles and Construction

Buildings ~ Machinery and other furniture  in process Total
BF BE  RBEREt EHRRE IR @t
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFT  AR®Tn ARETR AREFTRT ARETRT AR#FR
As at 1 January 2017 R2017%1B1H
Cost AR 70,681 80,723 21,429 2,044 1,172 176,649
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (18,450) (26,440) (14,365) (1,253) — (60,508)
Net book amount FEFE 52,231 54,283 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
Year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017£12A31R
LLERE
Opening net book amount ENRAFE 52,231 54,283 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
Additions RE 5,153 12,251 11,576 1,345 48,807 79,132
Disposals e o= (628) (65) (21) - (714)
Depreciation charge HEER (2,967) (7,625) (3,466) (413) — (14,471)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 54417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%£12A31H
Cost B 75,834 92,346 32,940 3,368 50,579 255,067
Accumulated depreciation ZHHE (21,417) (34,065) (17,831) (1,666) — (74,979)
Net book amount REFE 54,417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
Year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184% 12831 H
li:3:5
Opening net book amount ENRETE 54,417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
Additions hE 2,685 50,587 14,351 2,282 83,869 153,774
Disposals e — (3,078) (329) (664) ) (4,080)
Depreciation charge HEER (3,654) (11,337) (5,481) (694) = (21,166)
Closing net book amount EXRREFE 53,448 94,453 23,650 2,626 134,439 308,616
As at 31 December 2018 2018512311
Cost B 78,519 139,855 46,962 4,986 134,439 404,761
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (25,071) (45,402) (23,312) (2,360) = (96,145)
Net book amount REFE 53,448 94,453 23,650 2,626 134,439 308,616
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M KHRRMET
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 8. W% WMERREGE)
Depreciation expenses has been charged to the consolidated FERXERGRE2ERERP
statement of comprehensive income as follows: B SIRMT
2018 2017
20184 2017 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Cost of sales SHER A 18,938 13,284
Administrative expenses THFAX 201 199
Distribution expenses LR 2,027 988
Total Bt 21,166 14,471
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9. SUBSIDIARIES 9. KMEBAR
(a) The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are set (@) #~ % B H2018F 12831 H
out below: HHEARESIWT ¢
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Ownership interest
establishment and issued share held by non-controlling
Name of company kind of legal entity Principal activities and capital Ownership interest interests
WAL/ B s place of operation held by the Group FRHREHEN
NAER RiieERER IERHREEHE BRIRAHE FERBFOREEED gy 3 5
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018%  2017F 20188  2017F
% % % %
Directly held:
BRRE
Yihai Ltd. British Virgin Islands Investment holding and US$t1 100% 100% - -
Limited liability consulting in British Virgin
company Islands
Yihai Ltd. EBRLHEAREIAT REBREDH 1%7 100% 100% = -
TEREREEMNS
Indlirectly held:
BEEE
Yihai (China) Food Hong Kong Limited Investment holding and HK$10,000,000 100% 100% — -
Co., Ltd. liability company consulting in Hong Kong
BS(HE)RRERAR  BEERERLH ERBRERERREZH 10,000,000587% 100% 100% = -
Yihai (Shanghai) Food The PRC Limited Sales of hot pot US$50,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. liability company condiment in China
BE(LERRERAT  PEERERLT EREHE KRR 50,000,000 %7 100% 100% = -
Zhengzhou Shuhai The PRC Limited Manufacture and sales of hot RMB1,000,000 100% 100% — -
Enterprise Co., Ltd. liability company pot condiment in China
BNEEEEERAR HERREEAR ERELEREEABAGE AR 1,000,000 100% 100% - -

FES B M= B B BR 22 A Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAREREMD
9. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 9. MEBAR(E)
The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are set (@) #~ % B H2018F 12831 H
out below: (Continued) WHE ARSI @ (&)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Ownership interest
establishment and Principal activities and issued share Ownership interest held by non-controlling
Name of company kind of legal entity place of operation capital held by the Group interests
ML B e FEHEERAN
NAER RiteERER IERHREEHE BRIRAHE FERBFHMEEED gt 4 ¥
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018%  2017F 20188  2017F
% % % %
Indirectly held:
BERE -
Chengdu Yueyihai The PRC Limited Manufacture and sales of hot RMB 1,000,000 100% 100% — —
Co., Ltd. liability company pot condiment in China
REGESHEERAT  TEEREELR EREEERHEENBERS AR 1,000,000 100% 100% = =
Yihai Beijing Trading The PRC Limited Sales of hot pot condiment RMB 1,000,000 100% 100% — —
Co., Ltd. liability company in China
EE(REE PEERERLT EPEIHE K RERA AR1,000,0007 100% 100% = =
BREEAR
Yihai (Bazhou) Food The PRC Limited Yet to commence operation RMB 10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. liability company in China
ESBNeRERAT  TEEREELR HAEREZE ARH 100% 100% = =
10,000,000 7¢
Yihai (Maanshan) Food The PRC Limited Manufacture and sales ofhot ~ RMB 30,000,000 100% 100% — —
Co., Ltd liability company pot condiment in China
BS(FHLER PEERERLT ERELERHENBRERR ARE 100% 100% = -
BRAE 30,000,000
Fuhai (Maanshan) Food The PRC Limited Manufacture and sales ofhot ~ RMB 10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd liability company pot condiment in China
BEa(ERLRR HEBAREEAR ERELERHEENBRRA ARH 100% 100% = -
BRAR 10,000,000 7¢
Fuhai (Shanghai) Food The PRC Limited Manufacture and sales ofhot ~ RMB 10,000,000 60% 60% 40% 40%
Technology Co., Ltd liability company pot condiment in China
BE(LE) R HEERERLT ERELERHENBRERR ARE 60% 60% 40% 40%
BRARE 10,000,000 7%
Yihai (Chengdu) Food The PRC Yet to commence operation - 100% — — —
Co., Ltd Limited liability company in China
Yihai (Chengdu) Food HEEREALR HREREEE - 100% - = =

Co., Ltd

2018 Annual Report £ [E %} &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMKEmRMETE
9. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 9. MBAAE)
(b) Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (b) 3EIZEHIREZS (“NCI”)

Set out below is summarised financial information for UTFREAES(L8)RRE
Fuhai (Shanghai) Food Technology Co.,Ltd. that has non- RERAR(EEHAEEM
controlling interests that are material to the Group, which EEEARNIEZEGIER &k
were immaterial in 2017. The amounts disclosed for the #=R2017 EBTER) WK
subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations: ERRE - BB ARIEE

MERERRETATRESH

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

Balance sheet 2018 £ 2017

EEAER 12H831H 128 31H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥FT AR®ET T

Current assets REEE 177,138 21,977

Current liabilities RBERE 102,431 11,803

Current net assets RBEEZE 74,707 10,174

Non-current assets FRBEE 11,621 877

Non-current liabilities FREEE — —

Non-current net assets ERBEEFE 11,621 877

Net assets BEFE 86,328 11,051

Accumulated NCI Z:NCI 34,531 4,420

224 EsEKERAERAT Yiha International Holding Ltd.



9. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued)

e MBRRME

W 8 2> 7l (48)

(b) FEEEHIRERS (“NCI”) (&)

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
Statement of comprehensive

income 2018 5 2017 &
EHEWER 12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AREET T ARET T

Revenue PN 425,340 9,665
Profit for the period B A 75,276 1,050
Other comprehensive income Hi 2w A — ==
Total comprehensive income EHERNGER 75,276 1,050
Profit allocated to NCI 2B 2 NCI =R 30,111 420
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017

Cash flows 2018 5 2017 &
RBe&nhe 12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®ET T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities & & E B TSR SR E 50,594 9,752
Cash flows used in investing activitiesi® &EE T AR SR E (10,341) 812)
Cash flows from financing activities B&EE ISR ERE — 10,000

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents REeRReEEYEMFH 40,253 18,940
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10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

10. BB

Deferred tax assets (i) EEHREEE
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
The balance comprises HEROEBRBRTIEERN
temporary differences HRFEER
attributable to:
Unrealised profit on EEAIBHERE
intragroup sales 12,559 2,682
Sales rebates SHERR 5,432 4,046
Tax losses WIEE 1B 4,385 2,065
Provision of trade and other g 5k HE R IEEE
receivables 160 87
Depreciation differences EER 715 867
Payroll and welfare payables EEHERER 638 807
Total deferred tax assets EERIEEERE 23,889 10,554
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities R B
pursuant to set-off provisions EERIBEE — —
Net deferred tax assets EERIBEEFE 23,889 10,554




10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(i)

e MBRRME

10. IEEFRSHL(E)

Deferred tax assets (Continued) () EEREEEGE)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the ERZRHERBKEAEEER
year ended 2018, without taking into consideration of the TIREHEREEMIER T » REZE
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as 2018 F It FEMIELMEHR
follows: EEEHUT :
Unrealised Provision
profit on of trade
intragroup  Payrolland  and other
sales welfare receivables
Sales Depreciation £EAH  payables Bk Tax
rebates  differences BHE  ERHE  HHEW losses Total
Movements L) HERF TEEE FEREH REN  REEE  HESR @
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT  AREIR ARETRT ARETR AREFR AR%ETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2017 R2017%1B1H 2,189 1,019 2,501 807 68 — 6,584
Credited/(Charged) tothe ~ REFA2ENER
consolidated statement 5t A/ (H1%)
of comprehensive income 1,857 (152) 181 - 19 2,065 3,970
Asat31December 2017  R2017£12A31H 4,046 867 2,682 807 87 2,065 10,554
Credited/(Charged tothe ~ RGARERER
consolidated statement & A/ (HBk)
of comprehensive income 1,386 (152) 9,877 (169) 73 2,320 13,335
As at 31 December 2018 720181231 H 5,432 715 12,559 638 160 4,385 23,889
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11.

12.

INVENTORIES 11. FE&
As at 31 December
W12H31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT ARET T
Raw materials EVER 61,501 41,519
Work in progress EEM 3,641 6,889
Finished goods E R 210,673 99,209
Total inventories FE#E 275,815 147,617
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BAABE XTI AIEERAR 1B
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB1,461,547,000 (2017: FERKAE A RYA461,547,000
RMB909,564,000), which included inventory write-down of RMB (20175 : A K #909,564,000
165,000 (2017: RMB279,000). T) HEEGFEMEBE AR
165,000 T(2017%F : A R ¥
279,0007T) °
12, Bt REMEWVRFKIE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December
W12A31H

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARETT
Prepayments B RIE
Prepayments for purchase of BERERMEN
raw materials FEFFIE — 46,202
Value added tax recoverable AR EHEER — 11,499
Prepayments for technology and FEARRER
other services expenses HA AR IE = 8,676
Prepayments for rental and warehouse &R & FB(TFIE = 5,667
Others Hith = 358
Subtotal Nt — 72,402
Other receivables Hith e FIE
Deposit for utilities NAREES — 3,672
Advance to employees RHEENER — 522
Others Hih = 420
Subtotal INEF 4,614
Less: provision for impairment B OREEE = (346)
Subtotal Nt — 4,268
Total a% — 76,670

The carrying amounts of prepayments and other receivables

above approximate their fair value.

TR A R EL At BB R IE AV RRTEI (B
BEHEQNVERES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMERERMETE
13. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 13. HitiBEE
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Prepayments for purchase of raw BERMBNBENTIE
materials 153,989 —
Value added tax recoverable EEE =R 33,866 —
Prepayments for technology and other R K H RIS E /Y
services expenses FBFE 17,530 =
Prepayments for rental and warehouse &N EF#ENFIE 6,666 —
Others Hib 1,127 —
Total st 213,178 —

2018 Annual Report £ [E %} &
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

14. B S EWRIA

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT ARET T
Third parties F£= 42,122 21,352
Related parties (Note 35(d)) BAE 75 (FIEE 35(d)) 164,801 110,107
Subtotal INEF 206,923 131,459
Less: provision for impairment (a) B ORERE @ (30) @)
Trade receivables — net BB EWETE - 5 206,893 131,457

(@

The majority of the Group’s third party sales are conducted
through receiving advances from customers before
delivering the goods to customers, with only few customers
are granted with credit periods ranged from 30 to 90 days.
The related party customers of the Group are granted with
30 days credit period. Ageing analysis based on recognition
date of the gross trade receivables at the respective balance
sheet dates is as follows:

@ AEENE=FHEERHI U
B&FRNERTWEEF 2
MW G HET  ERERLH
BEFERHETFI0E0KRE
FEH - ARENBEBLEF
ERHIIOANEEDR - RE
RE 5 R B R
EREANRRIMOT ¢

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 &
RMB?’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETT ARET T
Within 3 months 3EAR 202,929 131,457
3 to 6 months 3ZE6{EA 3,964 —
Total st 206,893 131,457

The carrying amounts of trade receivables above
approximate their fair values.

HiE S RYGRENREEREL A

FEMEE -



14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

14.

e MBRRME

B S RWIEGE)

(o) B 55 W 3 98 43¢ 5 22 B

=

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®ET T ARET T
As at 1 January Mm1A1H 2 10
Provision for/(Reversal of) WERE, (BE)
impairment allowance 28 (8)
As at 31 December M12831H 30 2

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group, and a failure to make contractual payments.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1
provides details about the calculation of the allowance.

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘Administrative expenses’
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

i BSERHPAIWEE S EWK
H o BT o EESEREBKRER
EReR(HPER)EHARES
FAREBNERFT IR REELE
AR -

REBERABRKRMBEHRELEAE
RELCT R EEBGEESE &
FEEZRWFERBREFEN
MEHER - WESIRREERR
BHETELEFSE -

RARBRERERBARED
FPAGREZHWERIMTEGX] -
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15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

BB AR EhEMEE

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 5
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
Deposit for utilities NRARERE 4,063 —
Advance to employees RUFEENBR 1,109 —
Others Hth 804 —
Subtotal INEF 5,976 —

Less: loss allowance for debt W RS AN EHES

investments at amortised cost REWEIBRE (608) —
Total et 5,368 —

See Note 2.2 for the impact of the change in accounting policy
following the adoption of IFRS 9 on the classification of financial
assets and Note 2.12 for the remaining relevant accounting
policies.

The carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost
above approximate their fair values.

BRI BEREEREIR

BENEHBREBDHEREESE
V& EF2RMWE 2.2 BEEER

MHEREETEER - FSHME2.12 -

IR AT R H S RE
ENREEELATERE -



e MBRRME

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16. RERREEEY
As at 31 December

®12831H
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥T T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 1,179,910 1,130,205

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 20175
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBF T ARBT T
RVB ARE 443,585 421,458
us$ E 440,861 43,364
HK$ BT 295,464 665,383
Total st 1,179,910 1,130,205
As at 31 December 2018, the balance of RMB20,448,000 (2017: H2018F12A31H &£ &8 A KB
RMB3,462,000) represented deposits held in certain on line #500,448,000 7L (2017 F : AR #E
payment platforms. 3,462,000 7T ) BEE T HRBNARF
BRENER -
The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign LA R DI R AR E B Hhis
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies RS NS BN TESRRE
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject SELHETE  BESHEBFEGK
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control HWEB/IESHIFARER -

promulgated by the PRC government.
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

0]

Classification of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss (FVPL):

° debt investments that do not qualify for measurement
at either amortised cost or FVOCI,

° equity investments that are held for trading, and

o equity investments for which the entity has not elected
to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the

following:

17.

=

AHEFANRHZNEMEE

BAVEFABENERMEE
Pk

AEEBTIHEHEEDER
BRAVEFABZERATE

A

=32z

S53) -

TEERZBHERAER
BRAVPEFARMEE
W ENEBRE
FEXZHNRARE
54
ERTEZZEZEBHM
PEBEERQFER
mRBEENRARE -

BHR A FET ARSI 2N
TREERFENTEIA

As at 31 December

R12A31H

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥T T

Non-current assets EREBEE
Listed equity securities EHRAES 12,000 —

Current assets RENEE

Designated (a) 187 (a) = 32,671

a) Balance represented treasury products issued by
an unlisted company with guaranteed principal and
expected rate of return. Such assets are denominated
in US$, with maturity date in September 2018, and are
designated as financial assets are fair value through

profit or loss.

ZAEeRIgIE LT A A B
THRAR B EEFEE
ERENTEER - Z
EENETFE 2H
HA2018%F 98 » #18
EEBBRAFEFTABS
HEMERE -



17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following losses were recognised in
profit or loss:

17.

e MBRRME

BERFEFANBRGZHNEREE

(&)

(ii)

RESZARRNEHE
FR TIHEBERREZARE

iy .
ARG

2018 2017
20184 2017 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT
Fair value losses on FVPL REABA R W — F5E
recognised in other income and ~ HRMWIZAFEFT AERE
gains-net (Note 27) WD EEE (EE27) — 263
Risk exposure and fair value measurements (i) EfRHORAFEFAE

For information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value please refer to Note 3.3

Previous accounting policy: Classification of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss

In 2017, the Group classified financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss if they were acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term, i.e. are held for trading.
They were presented as current assets if they are expected
to be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period; otherwise they were presented as non-current
assets. The Group had elected to designate some financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. See Note 2.12 for
the Group’s other accounting policies for financial assets.

(iv)

BREE L FERAANG A
REBROER  F2HME
3.3°

BESFHE : BOFERTA
BRENSHEEND R

20176 MBASRMEE
MEIBREMNEREEHRLE
(AR Z) - AIXRKERE
HEREES BRRAFERT
ABENEREE - 5B
BHEESNBREHRE12ME
AAHE  AIBREEZIA
RBEE  BRIZIRIER
BE - AREEEBEENRIE
MEERLFEFTABRSES
B F2RME212T #AR
SEHMEESREENSS
BUR e
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18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. B A&
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 % 20175 2018 % 20175
Shares Shares US$’000 Us$’'000
Bzt il F£x EYH
Ordinary shares of 54%0.00001 =T
US$ 0.00001 each AL @R
— Authorised on -R2017F1818 -
1 January 2017, 20175 K 20185
31 December 2017 12 A 31 BERE
and 2018 5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: SRITREELER
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
LiEREE LTEREOE TERSHEEE
USs$ RMB’ 000
e AR®FT
On 1 January 2017, ®201751818
31 December 2017 and 2018 2017 £ R 2018
12A31H 1,046,900,000 10,469 68




e MBRRME

19. SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 19. FiEERM = EFFHRG

2018 2017 2018 2017

2018 4 2017 & 2018 4 2017 &

Shares Shares RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

Bz 15 B AR®FTRT AR%ETR

Shares held for employee FhEERMETEIFE

share scheme 7 AR 17 74,006,000 77,220,000 5 5
These shares are held by the Group’s RSU Trustee for the ZERNDERNEEZ R4 RMDEN
purpose of issuing shares under the Group’s RSU Scheme. Under ZIEAFREBENAERRS 0 AR
the RSU Scheme, in 2016, the Company repurchased 53,680,000 NEBZRERMDENFTEIRITIR
ordinary shares from JLJH YIHAI Ltd., one of the shareholders of M RHEZ - REZRERMDEN
the Company, at a total consideration of US$638,108 (equivalent T2 R2016FE AT BHARD
to RMB4,166,000). The shares under the RSU Scheme have been T H A — £ R EJILIH YIHAI Ltd.
changed to 77,220,000 after the capitalisation issue on 13 July B2 [0]53,680,000 18 Z B IR ' &
2016. (see Note 21 for further information). B 2638108 E T(HHER AR

4,1660,0007T ) = 7201657 B 13
HERLIEITE  IREIBRMEN
SFEIRHRHE R E A77,220,000
i o (FHERFSRHEE21) °

Number
of shares RMB’ 000
Details i iR 4= AR#TF T
Balance at 1 January 2017 20171 A1 AR 2017 F
and 31 December 2017 12 B 31 BH&EgR 77,220,000 5
Shares vested under ZIREBIA D B ET EIFRHY
RSU scheme CEBRG (3,214,000) —
Balance 31 December 2018 2018 12 B 31 H& R 74,006,000 5
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20. RESERVES 20. f#&

TRITEERBEREB#E 1
PARZEHBRFANEL-F
BAEEMAELER B NNHARR

The following table shows a breakdown of the balance sheet line
item ‘reserves’ and the movements in these reserves during the
year. A description of the nature and purpose of each reserve is

provided below the table. xiE o
Merger Statutory ~ Share-based
Share reserve reserve payment Retained
premium (Note a) (Note b) reserve earnings Total
IR AR
GG EERE fARGE
RIFEE (Mista) (Hztb) (Wac) RAER oy
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT  AR¥Fn  AREFR  AR®TR  AR#ETR  AR%TR
As at 1 January 2017 R2017E1518 956,590 (445) 22,159 102 287,736 1,266,142
Profit for the year ERRF - — - - 260,670 260,670
Appropriation to statutory reserves  B{EEE R - - 30,339 - (30,339) —
Share-based payment expense MRHAERNAFES
(Note 21) (RfzE21) = - - 8,510 - 8,510
Dividends paid (Note 31) BARE(MEE31) (33,996 - - — - (33,996)
As at 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31R 922,594 (445) 52,498 8,612 518,067 1,501,326
As at 1 January 2018 R2018%F1A1H 922,594 (445) 52,498 8,612 518,067 1,501,326
Profit for the year FEREF = = = = 517,793 517,793
Appropriation to statutory reserves  BHEEERE — — 20,919 — (20,919) —
Share-based payment expense IR BERNATEX
(Note 21) (MizE21) - — — 34,202 — 34,202
Shares vested under employee EERATEETEEN
share scheme (Note 21) Rf3 (HzE21) 28,284 = = (28,187) = 97
Dividends paid (Note 31) EARE (HEE31) (48,291) = = = = (48,291)
As at 31 December 2018 R20185 12331 R 902,587 (445) 73,417 14,627 1,014,941 2,005,127
(@ The merger reserve represented the aggregate difference (a) ABHtREEBECHAHREEREER

between the considerations paid and the carrying amounts
of the acquired Listed Business pursuant to the completion
of the Reorganisation.

AT RIS i R R ARE
BENEERE -
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20. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
required to make appropriations to statutory reserves from
their profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses
carried forward from prior years as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations and before distribution to
equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated to such
statutory reserve are determined according to the relevant
regulations in the PRC, and further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated fund is 50% or more of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries.

e MBRRME

20. f#fE(E)

(b)

2 B R B P A AL B Y
RNAABFRRFD - KHEH
REPESHROEENBE
FEAERITBREEURREG
REFBEADIKBF AT - =25
EERE o BAE R BRI
B2 e Ty R B o E AE B AR
o MR ESEWBQE
AMEARAS0%HE £ - B
AREROFE SRR -
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21.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Restricted Share Unit Scheme

The Company adopted the RSU Scheme on 24 February 2016
with a duration of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.
The objective of the RSU Scheme is to encourage and retain
selected participants which include directors, employees, officers,
and distributors of the Group, to work with the Group and to
provide additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals.

Save as disclosed in Note 19, the RSU shares have been held
by Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited (“RSU Trustee”) in trust for the
benefit of the participants to the scheme and will be released to
participants upon vesting of each RSU.

The maximum number of ordinary shares that may be awarded by
the Board of Directors pursuant to the Share Award Scheme must
not, on an aggregate basis, exceed 7.37% of the issued ordinary
shares in the share capital of the Company as at 24 February
2016 (being 77,220,000 shares).

The fair value of Restricted Shares based on the market value of
the Company’s shares on the grant date is charged as employee
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
statement of the Group.

On 28 December 2016, the Group granted an aggregate of
9,140,000 shares under the Share Award Scheme, according
to the vesting conditions approved by the Board of Directors,
selected participants complete a period of service in the Group
of 24 to 36 months from the date of grant. During the year end
2018, there was 1,704,000 and 620,000 RSU shares vested and
forfeited respectively (2017: Nil). The vested shares are transferred
to selected participants at the consideration of HKD 0.064, the
forfeited shares will be reallocated in subsequent grants.

On 9 December 2018, the Group granted an aggregate of
1,510,000 shares under the Share Award Scheme, amongst which
all awarded shares vested during the year. The vested shares are
transferred to selected participants at Nil consideration without
vesting conditions. Dividends declared for unvested awarded
shares shall become part of the trust fund for future grantees.

21.

AR B B R FB 8
ZRREIR G E et &
RRFR2016F2B24 A HRMZ
PREIRDEMETE - BRMBHE
STRMA10F - ZRFIRDEFE
NENATBREESESRE (8

BAEEES - EE -  sRBER
R NAEB I WAKER
HEINRBUBREERR -

BREMEF1I9OFEEE N SRR
EMNRMGUETESR EEVistra
Fiduciary (HK) Limited ([ 3 IR %/ B&

MENZTEA DR E /,\%E’ﬁl
BnEE URASEZRERGE

UEBEBERTRHEE -
E%émﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬁé@]*‘l‘i AIREEB

N 7Hx$ﬁ(‘2016¢2ﬁ 24H T 3%
TEERN7.37% (B0 77,220,000
B%) o

BAQARDARE BB SE
B EHNZ RO A2 FERAE
SEFeEEBERANEREEH
SZHIRR ©

A20165F 128288 ' A& B R
BEROEBENIRBESSHE
WEEBRE  mBERE ABETR
AEBRIE R4 = 361E 8 B E
B2EEREGH, 140 oooMﬁ
3 R2018FEFE D BICHE
1,704,000}%&&5&“4&620,0005§§BE
HIRMDEMRMD (2017 5F - &F) -
FERMCEETERSEE ﬁ
BA0.06478 7T BRIKRMDAER
HERBETFUEHIAE -

2018 1289H " AEBRE
f% 10 42 B 5+ E1#% & ££ 1,510,000
B > FiEREBRMERFREE
B -cEBRMECEEEBHRES
>‘RT$§;E§%3‘¥L/A% REA

c BARBRBROEIKNRE
Hﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁkﬁkﬁ‘%)\ﬁﬁ“ﬁ’\ EAEE -



21.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 21. KB AERBHEE)
Restricted Share Unit Scheme (Continuea) 5% PR il iR 17 B 5t &l (#F)
Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and EREZREBRHDEE REEATF
related fair value at grant date are as follows: BEWEENT :
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F

Weighted = Number of
average Restricted

fair value Shares
(per share) granted
fnREF 14 [SEid
~EE = PRl

(88) e
HK$ (Thousands)

e MBRRME

Weighted Number of
average Restricted

fair value Shares
(per share) granted
hnFEF =R
AFE SRR

(BR) RHEE
HK$ (Thousands)

BT (FB%) BT (FR)
As at 1 January MW1B18 3.18 9,140 3.18 9,140
Granted 2R 19.94 1,510 — —
Vested =] 11.12 (3,214) — —
Forfeited 2Rk 3.18 (620) — —
As at 31 December M12 8318 3.18 6,316 3.18 9,140
The fair value of Restricted Shares charged to the consolidated BZE2018F 12831 BILFE @ K
statement of comprehensive income was RMB34,202,000 during B2 HKRERVZREFHBKRO D

the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB8,510,000).

F1E R/ AR H34,202,000 7T (2017

F: AE#8,510,0007T) °
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22. TRADE PAYABLES 22, BHEMFE

ESRNRBETEFABERM
B BARKNEZERNRERFE
HBEAR30EWX -

R12A31H ERBZERAHMNE
ZRENFEREDTMNT ¢

Trade payables mainly arose from the purchase of materials. The
credit terms of trade payables granted by the vendors are usually
30 to 90 days.

At 31 December, the ageing analysis of the trade payables based
on invoice date is as follows:

As at 31 December
W12A31H

242

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARSI T ARBT T
Within 3 months 3R 172,376 134,084
3 to 6 months 3MEBZE6MEA 9,759 1,582
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1E 6,524 916
Total wet 188,659 136,582
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HEMZRERESFTER
As at 31 December

®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARET T
Advances from customers BEFEX = 30,823
Other tax payables Hi A HiE 27,716 27,490

Wages, salaries and other ITE - -#FekEMESRER

employee benefits 38,477 25,572
Sales rebates SHEIRF 21,728 16,182
Suppliers’ deposits HEmZRE 10,268 9,417
Payables for legal and professional fees B EREREEER 596 3,420
Payables for construction FE{T T2 511 806
Related parties (Note 35(d)) B8 75 (M95E 35(d)) 599 258
Others Hith 3,721 1,065
Total wEt 103,616 115,033
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. SHIERE
As at 31 December
W12H31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FR ARBTT
Advances from customers FEWE FFIE 45,350 —
() Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities: () HMENEBEEINKRE :
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRIRARIREEAE R EE
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried- EESVEEEBENRES
forward contract liabilities. ZH o

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20175
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARBT T

Revenue recognised that was included st AHIMI SN ARG

in the contract liability balance e R E

at the beginning of the period 30,500 —
The Group changed the presentation of contract liabilities REBE TR LA A EHMBFESR
in relation to contracts were previously included in other HZERESTEANSYEES
payables and accruals to reflect the terminology of IFRS HEBEHNAFR UNME
15. The fluctuation of the contract liabilities in 2018 and P B 7% 3R 45 2 I S5 1595 AU 1T
advances from customers in 2017 is due to the business E . AHBRBN0ISERTE
development and increasing the number of distributors. WEEHIFER2017 FEHE K

B AR -
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25. EXPENSES BY NATURE 25. BEEHE SRR
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution expenses and FTASEERA - LHEEY - THE
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: MBS AT

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARETT
Changes in inventories of finished goods 7= X i3 £2
and work in progress EERNE 361,034 139,330
Raw materials and consumables used  FR# R & E#E S ER 1,100,348 769,955
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) 1 E%&FIB8 3 (FizE 26) 308,169 183,768
Transportation and related charges EmREBERH 70,196 37,469
Advertising and other
marketing expenses EEREMEHERY 42,098 30,110
Non-income taxes and surcharges PSR IE R M nE 23,831 17,729
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BMERZIEBITE
equipment (Note 8) (FfIEE8) 21,166 14,471
Utilities X BERBREH 24,554 14,108
Rental expenses Hemx 16,198 14,001
Warehouse expenses EREA 21,954 12,541
Legal and professional fees EEREEEHR 14,143 11,674
Travel and entertainment expenses ERRIBEE 14,627 9,027
Auditor’s remuneration A CIEAT
— Audit services — ZE R 2,100 2,055
- Non-audit services — B R T 329 322
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 7) EFEE#H (FEE7) 1,177 851
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) L b {F FARE# S (FizE6) 1,135 773
Write-down of inventories (Note 11) TFEMOR (MEE11) 165 279
Net impairment losses on TRIEEREREFE
financial assets 290 77
Other expenses Hibpx 23,632 16,905
Total e 2,047,146 1,275,445
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 26. EEEH
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - HeRE4 273,967 175,258
Restricted share granted to RYIESREENZIREIRMD

directors and employees 34,202 8,510
Total wet 308,169 183,768

Five highest paid individuals EEZESHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 include 3 (2017: 2)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown
in Note 37. The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining 2
(2017: 3) individuals during the year are as follows:

AEBEHZE2018F 1231 HILF
ENEERETFMALBEBEIRE
EQ7TE 28)  HMNE M
7RI DT RBR - FRESTRIE
8B T2BAL(2017F :3F)H

MemT :
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - FEekial 4,517 2,456
Restricted share granted to RTFESREENZIRGIRMD
directors and employees 5,143 2,034
Total HEtT 9,660 4,490
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

26. EEEFI(HE)
MENRUTEE :

Number of individuals

A
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 %
Emolument bands (in RMB) HeeE(ARYE)
Nil - RMB3,000,000 £ 2 AR# 3,000,000 7T — 3
AK# 3,000,000 TE
RMB3,000,000 - RMB6,000,000 AR #6,000,000 7T 2 —

None of the above employees were paid by the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. No retirement benefits were paid
to or receivable by any of the above employees.

REMMITEE LHES TSR
FERBEEMAREBESHMARE
BENRBNFESBEBHEE - Ll
R 2 5 40 428 W B = B U IR (R
A e



27. OTHER INCOMES AND GAINS - NET

e MBRRME

27. HtARYLEFHE

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Government grants (a) BB (a) 40,951 23,008
Interest income from financial assets at 22 F{EzH ABZEHY
fair value through profit or loss TRIEENREWRA 8,753 5,241
Sales of scrap materials EERIHE 3,524 887
Change in fair value of financial assets & AF{EFT AB&=H
at fair value through profit or loss EMEEN AT ELE 1,725 (263)
Loss on disposal of property, BEYXE  KE - RER
plant and equipment and BEEENEE
intangible assets (612) (284)
Others (b) Hb (b) 2,134 15,159
Total other incomes and gains - net Hi AR W& BaaE 5 56,475 43,748

(@)

Government grant is mainly from value added tax refund
for growing local economic development. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to
these grants. The Group did not benefit directly from any
other forms of government assistance.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, included on amount
of RMB14 million which represented a reward provided by
an independent third party, being an authorised operator
as approved by the local government for planning and
construction of an industrial park in the PRC, in which the
Company has incorporated an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary in 2015.

(@) BFWBIEZRREANEA M
FREBRBIBERRY - I
BEEEZSHYNRETER
REMBARER - AEEILE
BHEZEMEAH AR KA

(b) # £2017F12A31H Ik F
B HEPFARB14EELA
ST EMBNEEZRRBER
EXEBENBLE= ARG
BADNTR205FEEZESE
BEKINZE T AGINERE
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28.

29.

FINANCE INCOME/(COST)-NET

28.

REBN(RA) -8

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FR ARBTT

Finance Income AHE WA
- Foreign exchange gains —ERUWA 29,728 —
— Interest income e =V PN 10,071 6,651
Finance Costs B
- Foreign exchange losses —EREBX — (52,095)
Finance income/(cost) - net REWA(FA) —F58 39,799 (45,444)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 29. FiBHAX

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT ARETT

Current income tax BNHA AT 1881 195,932 111,960
Deferred tax credit (Note 10) IEER IR % (FHEE10) (13,335) (3,970)
Income tax expense FriS®ipx 182,597 107,990




29.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of local income tax.

Hong Kong income tax

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as there are no
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate
of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for the years
end 31 December 2018 and 2017, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC withholding tax (“WHT”)

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC as
approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007, the profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
derived will be subject to withholding tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
based in or companies incorporated in Hong Kong, or for
other foreign investors respectively.

According to a shareholder’s resolution of the immediate
holding company of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group dated
31 December 2018, the retained earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC as at 31 December
2018 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. As a
result, no deferred tax liability was recognised.

e MBRRME

29. FifaBifs (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

MEHRBEREHR

RARREFHSFHBEQEER
FEHSEMELAERRE
REEAR  WERRANE
Ho IS o

HENEH

BN AE =2018%12A31H
LEFEE » RRBAWREERBE
ERREEFTERBEF -
AU BEBLSEBREH -
(2017 : &)

FREEMERTLEERS
Bil) o

REBCRBBIT LA - 258
REBEFANRBE2018FER
2017512 A318 Lt FE
& 5T FE SR B R F 12 25% KO B
R EH PR ERRTEHIE
& -

FREITRA ([ R )

REZBEBARRXRARKER
2007316 B EBWHE
EMEFE  NEEFEH
BABFEL SR ARG E
BEBINEREES B BTMK
SWARRREMIIREIRE
EDRZERFEHBN5% K
10% BYFE IR -

R B 8 H2018F12 A 31
HHAKEFEMEARNE
BEEZERARNBRERRER  ®
2018 12 A 31 BAREENF
Bl FE AR L BB B A B RIIR BB
BFEFERTRRRIIK °
Hit WHEEBRELHRIES

& o
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29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 29. FhiiRHiFEZ (&)
(d) PRC withholding tax (“WHT”) (Continued) (d) "EFEMSB (BN (&)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the AR BRRT AR R B R
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax BIEERMEEE NIERBK
rate as follows: WEREWNT :

2018 2017

2018 4 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBT T

Profit before income tax BR PSR AT 2 Al 730,501 369,080

Tax calculated at domestic tax REBERERN SR
rates applicable to profits in the ~ BRI R ERFE

respective countries 173,851 108,408
Expenses not deductible for IR S

tax purposes 8,950 672
Tax losses for which no deferred  WEEFELEFIEHREEMN

income tax asset was recognised FiIEE 1S 1,103 —
Previously unrecognised tax losses #&:2LARTF E R ERE B

now recognised (1,307) —
Income not subject to tax BERBIUWA — (1,090)
Taxation charge BB H 182,597 107,990
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

a. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for each of the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 are calculated by dividing the
profit of the Group attributable to the owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
less shares held for RSU Scheme during the year.

e MBRRME

30. EREF

a. BREFERF

B Z£2018F K 2017 % 12 B 31
B SREXBRIIZADEE
B AEBEREBZRBRIT 3
T B INFEF D EUR R Z R
BB D BT BIFTS IR TE -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 %
Profit attributable to owners of A B HE AFELER]
the Company (RMB’000) (AR#FT) 517,793 260,670
Weighted average number of B2 {TZ @RI INETF
ordinary shares in issue less ~ BUREMZBRFIAR 0B
shares held for RSU SEEENRS (TR)
Scheme (thousands) 969,801 969,680
Basic earnings per share
(RMB cents) BRERBI(ARES) 53.4 26.9
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

b.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The restricted shares granted and assumed vested
(“Restricted Shares”) are the only dilutive potential ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

30.

BREN(E)

b.

sREERT

EREERFRERBREME
BrE#EEEREOCER  #
MARCSBTEBERMESF
HEEESE - R2017FE K
2018% 12 B31H ' ERHER
B FBHZREIRM ([ZR
HRD 1) B — BB ES
wh -

Year ended 31 December

HEZ12A31HLEEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to owners of the ZN2 B#EH AL EF]
Company (RMB’000) (AR®FT) 517,793 260,670
Profit used to determine diluted ~ FARNETEESREEEF
earnings per share (RMB’000) FEA(AREFT) 517,793 260,670
Weighted average number of ARFTESRERZFH
ordinary shares in issue for basic B 2{TEERKR
earnings per share (thousands) IR (FAR) 969,801 969,680
Adjustments for: MUTEIEELARE :
- Restricted Shares granted and —ERHERBREFEE
assumed vested (thousands) H 32 BR$IA 10 (FAR) 6,293 5,291
Weighted average number of AR ESREERENN
ordinary shares for diluted EERMEE I (TR)
earnings per share (thousands) 976,094 974,971
Diluted earnings per share BREERA(ARE D)
(RMB cents) 53.1 26.7




31.

DIVIDENDS

(i)

(ii)

Ordinary shares

The total dividends paid in 2018 amounted to RMB48,291,000
or RMB4.9822 cents per share (2017: RMB33,996,000),
netting the dividend of RMB3,867,000 (2017: RMB2,646,000)
to the shares held for Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting
period

Pursuant to resolution passed on 26 March 2019, the board
of directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of
RMB14.83789 cents per ordinary share of the Company,
amounting to RMB155,338,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 from the Company’s share premium.
The final dividend is to be proposed for approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
to be held on 21 May 2019.

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent

liabilities.

31.

iR2

(ii)

e MBRRME

ZER
R2018FENRELTEA A
E 48,291,000 T H & K A
 #498227 (20175 1 A
F#33,996,0007T) * %
B SRR DB 8F
ENRORKETHIEREEARY
3,867,000 L(2017F : A B
2,646,000 7T) °

RBERRREZHNRE

RIEN2019F3 826 HEB
FREBER AR REETEES
LA 2 Bl R 2 Bl A BRI A5 R
HREBRAQATDEBERAR
%514.83789% © HE £2018
F12AMBLEENESHES
AR #5155,338,000 7 » 7 &
REEHN2019F5 821 B &
THRRBFARZELEEARRD
TR AL ©

32, HHKREE

H2018E 12831 H » NEEINE
BEEASHREE -
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Cash generated from operations:

33. THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INFORMATION:

33. HREREREREH:

() REmMBHRE:

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARET T
Profit before income tax FREFISFLRRF] 730,501 369,080
Adjustments for: MUTEIBEELARE :
Change in fair value of RATETT BRI
financial assets at fair value ETRMEEATE
through profit or loss =) (1,725) 263
Share-based payment LR 0 B ER IR
expense (Note 21) (F¥zE21) 34,202 8,510
Depreciation of property, plant Y - MERRBITE
and equipment (Note 8) (FFEE8) 21,166 14,471
Amortisation of land b 5 FAREI 85 (Ff5E 6)
use rights (Note 6) 1,135 773
Amortisation of intangible B EEEHEMET)
assets (Note 7) 1,177 851
Losses on disposal of property, EEY% - BERSE
plant and equipment and DR EFEENERE
intangible assets (Note 27) (MizE27) 612 284
Net impairment losses SREERERSE
on financial assets 290 77
Write-down of inventories (Note 11) #4775 (X 11) 165 279
Finance (income)/cost-net AE (W), A — F 58 (39,906) 45,680
Interest income from financial BRATETTABRN
assets at fair value through profit £ @IEEH
or loss FIEUWA (8,753) (5,241)
Changes in working capital: SIEESHE
Inventories FE (128,363) (17,400)
Trade and other receivables, B R EMEKRFIE -
prepayments and contract liabilites FE{NFRIERSYAE (217,602) (102,907)
Trade and other payables BENEMENSTIER
and accruals FEsTE A 86,107 123,961
Cash generated from operations K& TEIRE 479,006 438,681




e MBRRME

33. THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33. ZA8R&RERER : (&)
INFORMATION: (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEVE - BERRKEMER
and intangible assets comprise: HEE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Net book amount - property, BEEEE - BE
plant and equipment and REBUREBLERE
intangible assets (Note 7 and 8) (FFsE7 K 8) 4,080 744
Loss on disposal of property, BEEYX BMERRE
plant and equipment and DR EREENER
intangible assets (Note 27) (MgEE27) (612) (284)
Proceeds from disposal of property, EE¥% - HEK
plant and equipment and HREUREREE
intangible assets FRSRIE 3,468 460
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. RiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of FREFTVEHRERBEE
year but not recognised as liabilities is as follow: NWERERBEZAT :
As at 31 December
w12A381H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 21,380 40,186
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (b) FAHEREHEE
The Group leases various offices and warehouses under NREBREATRHEKCEHE
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future BEEEZERAERARE -
minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating O LEREBB TN GEE
leases contracted for at the balance sheet dates but not ACETHNEREAAEBENE
recognised as liabilities, are as follows: REEBEEESHRENT -

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥F T
Within 1 year —FR 10,972 4,416
Between 1 to 5 years —ZhE[ 12,862 2,455
Total et 23,834 6,871
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control. Members of key
management and their close family member of the Group are also
considered as related parties.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated financial
information, the Group has the following related transactions,
and they were carried out in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business and were determined based on mutually agreed terms.

Name and relationship with related parties:

e MBRRME

35. FBARS

M—ARRIEESBEEHS -
FHEYE - FEHMBEREERE
TEEAZE D AZHFHRRAE
BARE - MREX RIS FHR
HRSERY AEEEEETEE
BB R HT ISR BRARE T o

BRAGREMBENHE IS TKE
B ARERUATEBERS @ %
ERXGRAEERABERBETE
TRENEETEIRREE °

AR5 £ N B R T HVBRIR ¢

Names of the related parties

BB 77 2

Nature of relationship

EEE

Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries
(“Sichuan Haidilao Group”)

m)IgEEREWE LR TINEEEEE D)

HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. and its subsidiaries
(“Singapore Haidilao Group”)

HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. R B 2 &)
(MFI R ERE )

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
(“Shuhai Supply Chain”)

FE(AR)HESEEEAREE AR H5MtEE])

Youdingyou (Beijing) Food Ltd. (“Youdingyou”)

LtRELREEREEERARDIEIE]D

Companies beneficially owned
by the ultimate shareholders

HBERRREDEBNDF

Companies beneficially owned
by the ultimate shareholders

HEARREZHEENATE

Companies beneficially owned
by the ultimate shareholders

HBERRREZEBN AR

Companies beneficially owned
by the ultimate shareholders

HEABRREZEEN AT

Sichuan Haidilao Group and Singapore Haidilao Group are

collectively referred to as “Haidilao Group”.

All the transactions with related parties were conducted in
accordance with the terms of contracts entered into between the

Group and the related parties.

EsESEREER -

79113 e 455 5 1 X DB IR 15 5=

HEBRLTNAERSZ IREAEE
R EAHE T 2 IR LIS HRTGET
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

35. BABKAR 5 (&)

(a) SHEE®

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ET T ARETT
Sales of goods to related parties  [EEBEE S SHERE M@ 1,176,095 915,911
Warehouse and rental expenses b)) EEREERX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARETT
Warehouse expenses BEMX 5,553 4,308
Rental expenses HERX 2,869 2,869
Total s 8,422 7,177

All the transactions with related parties were conducted in
accordance with the terms of contracts entered into between
the Group and the related parties.

Key management personnel compensation

RS AT B X 5 I IRIBA
SEKEEE S 2B MNEN

IRFREETT o

(c) EEEBAESHM

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Salaries, allowance and e EMREMEF
other benefits 11,568 4,422




35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

e MBRRME

35. BABKAR 5 (&)

Year-end balances with related parties were as follows: (d) EHREBAIHEREROT
As at 31 December
W12H31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Assets BE
Trade receivables B ZEWFIE 164,801 110,107
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Liabilities af&
Trade payables g S ENRIE 218 218
Other payables and accrual Hitt A RRIERETER 599 258
Contract liabilities =¥ S)-Ri 28 =
Total A 845 476

All the balances with related parties are unsecured, bear no
interest and short-term in nature.

Free trademark license agreement

On 1 December 2015, the Group entered into two trademark
license agreements with Sichuan Haidilao in respect of
certain trademarks which had been registered by the name
of Sichuan Haidilao in the PRC and certain trademarks which
are in the process of registration by Sichuan Haidilao in the
PRC (collectively, the “Trademark License Agreements”),
pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao agreed to license such
trademarks for the Group to use in connection with the
Group’s operations on an exclusive and royalty-free basis
for a perpetual term commencing from 1 January 2007 to
the extent permissible under the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”), relevant laws
and regulations.

(e)

EERARE S T B SRRV E 1T
BRERAE  RERES -

REBRT AR

MR2015F 12818 A& H
H)IBEBHIN)IEREEE
ERE LA TERE &=
W= T M EEPEBIE
MHETEHET LMD EE
FaumERGEEET T
) Bl mIERBEE
RERR RIS EEAERE
HOAEBERTBHERZT
BRAB(EBBRAT]) EH
RAIRARBEEERAFNE
MTIREEREEKRAERZ
ZHEiE 320071 B1HE
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36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

36. ARREEABRRMHFEED

COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company AATREEEER
As at 31 December
n12H31H
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Assets BiE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARNIRE 1,167,448 1,138,510
Current assets REEE
Other receivables =R AR — 169,570
Other financial assets at R E R AT E
amortised cost HNEMESMEE 143,765 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEY 714,158 700,426
Total current assets RENEELE 857,923 869,996
Total assets EEHE 2,025,371 2,008,506
Equity B
Equity attributable to equity holders AR FEFIFEABGERS
of the Company
Share capital I 68 68
Share held for employee EER DT EFENRS
share scheme (Note 19) (MH3E19) (5) 6)
Reserves (a) f#1% (@) 2,024,896 2,005,108
Total equity W B 2,024,959 2,005,171
Liabilities &’
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables Hh I8 412 3,335
Total liabilities BEEE 412 3,335
Total equity and liabilities EZRaEEs 2,025,371 2,008,506

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf.

RRREEEBXREN2019F3 8
HEEEESHMAE WOREE
% o

SHI YONGHONG
1 5k 7=
Director
EE
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36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 36. A )R8 EEBE X EREHEEF
COMPANY (Continued) (&

(a) AATRREED

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

Share- Retained
based earnings/
Share payment Capital (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses) Total
AR AR RER%/
BROEE  HAHRE ExfE  (RHER) @t
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥Tn AR%FR AR%®Tn AR%TR
As at 1 January 2017 R2017£1R18 959,752 102 1,130,000 2,235 2,092,089
Loss for the year EREE — = = (58,849) (58,849)
Share-based payment IR BERNAFTRX
expense (Note 21) (MfEE21) — 8,510 — — 8,510
Dividends declared/paid BER/EHRE (36,642) — = = (36,642)
As at 31 December 2017 R2017412R31A 923,110 8,612 1,130,000 (56,614) 2,005,108
As at 1 January 2018 R20185£1A1H 923,110 8,612 1,130,000 (56,614) 2,005,108
Profit for the year ERiai - - - 37,820 37,820
Share-based payment IR RERNAFRS
expense (Note 21) (MfEE21) = 34,202 = = 34,202
Shares vested under REZRHRDEL
RSU Scheme BE e 28,111 (28,187) — — (76)
Dividends declared/paid BER/EARE (52,158) = — — (52,158)
As at 31 December 2018 R20184%12R31A 899,063 14,627 1,130,000 (18,794) 2,024,896
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37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37. EEFEKER

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a) EERFETHAEMSE

The remuneration of each director and chief executives for ZRESERITETHAEEZE
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: 2018 12 A 31 A IL F E YN
ST :

Estimated

money

value of

benefits

(Note (i)

LR
Fees Salary fhstEEERE Total
Name ®E g HE (&L () Mt
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETT ARETT AREFR

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Shi Yonghong kR EE

(Chairman) (£fE) — 800 3,505 4,305
Ms. Dang Chunxiang EREuL — 3,392 3,780 7,172
Mr. Sun Shengfeng Bislts — 2,358 2,673 5,031
Ms. Shu Ping H¥ut — — 1,753 1,753
Non-executive directors JEH{TES
Mr. Zhang Yong RBEAE — — 3,505 3,505
Mr. Pan Di iyl — — — —
Independent BiEgiTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi BRELE 167 — — 167
Mr. Qian Mingxing RPEEE 167 — — 167
Ms. Ye Shujun ¥FEat 167 — — 167
Chief executives FETBAE
Mr. Du Zhuang FA A — 2,274 2,869 5,143
Mr. Guo Qiang I S S — 2,243 2,274 4,517
Total st 501 11,067 20,359 31,927
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37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (Continued)

e MBRRME

37. EEFHRERE)

(a) EFEREFETHAEME(A)

The remuneration of each director and chief executives for ZESERTETHAEEZE
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below: 2017 %12 A 31 B IL F E AN
0T ¢
Estimated
money
value of
benefits
(Note (i)
R
Fees Salary fhst&HER Total
Name ¥4 e HE (PR EE (i) st
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥FTR ARETR AR®TR
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Dang Chunxiang ERBRuL — 1,285 1,154 2,439
Mr. Sun Shengfeng BEBBEE — 1,033 571 1,604
Independent BiAEHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi BREEE 173 — — 173
Mr. Qian Mingxing BHELE 173 = — 173
Ms. Ye Shujun ¥FEat 173 = = 173
Chief executives EfTBAER
Mr. Du Zhuang s — 849 1,120 1,069
Mr. Xu Hai #HigEsE — 736 571 1,307
Total st 519 3,903 3,416 7,838
() Estmated money value of benefits include the fair value of @i BAKEEREEREREF

RSU Scheme at grant date charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income during the year.

(i) Ms. Shu Ping were appointed as executive directors on 21

March 2018.

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman) were appointed as executive
directors on 10 December 2018.

Mr. Guo Qiang were appointed as chief executives on 10

December 2018.

(ili)  No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as a compensation for loss of office as director.

(ii

(ii)

AR B ARA 2 ER
3R W R AR B3R
AFE -

¥ 2 M 2018F3 A 21
AEZEAHITES -

ek 2= S (EFE ) 72018
;gﬁ 10 RERERIIT

2B 5@ & 4 R20185F 12
HEZERERTHRA
=K

BEAR QBB IESHER
WS - BASEE I G A
D B E 3B 3 AR AT B
- ERREMAREER
SINAAEBR R B
RREZESBHNUMHE -
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37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking.

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment during the year ended
31 December 2018.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ service

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company.

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2018.

37. EEFHRERE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EENRAREF
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HIfB QR EHEENEBR
5 177 UL ER = B W B AT SR K AR
e
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& £2018F 128310 It &
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{E‘* °
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